
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The following document was not prepared by the Office of the State Auditor, but was 
prepared by and submitted to the Office of the State Auditor by a private CPA firm.  The 
document was placed on this web page as it was submitted.  The Office of the State 
Auditor assumes no responsibility for its content or for any errors located in the 
document.  Any questions of accuracy or authenticity concerning this document should 
be submitted to the CPA firm that prepared the document. The name and address of the 
CPA firm appears in the document. 



CITY OF MERIDIAN 

Abetter longitude on life. 

Mayor: 
CHERI BARRY 
(601) 485-1927 
FAX: (601) 485-1911 

Council Members: 
GEORGE M THOMAS 
Ward 1 

MARY A. B. PERRY 
Ward 2 

BARBARA HENSON 
Ward 3 

JESSE E. PALMER, SR. 
Ward 4 

BOBBY R. SMITH 
Ward 5 

COUNCIL CLERK 
(601) 485-1959 
FAX: (601)485-1913 

CITY DEPARTMENTS: 

ChiefAdministrative Officer 
(601) 485-1929 
FAX: (601)485·1911 

Community Development: 
(601) 485-191 0 
FAX: (601)484-6813 

Finance and Records: 
(601) 485-1946 
FAX: (601)485-1979 

Fire: 
(601) 485-1922 
FAX: (601)485-1035 

Homeland Security: 
(601) 484-6890 
FAX: (601) 484·6895 

Parks and Recreation: 
(601) 485-1802 
FAX: (601)485-1851 

Police: 
(601) 485-1841 
FAX: (601) 484-6832 

Public Works: 
(601) 485-1920 
FAX: (601) 485-1864 

601 23rd Avenue 
Post Office Box 1430 
Meridian, MS 39302-1430 
www.l1leridianms.org 

May 20,2013 

Mr. Stacey E. Pickering 
Mississippi Office of the State Auditor 
P. O. Box 956 
Jackson, Mississippi 39205 

Re: Annual Municipal Audit FY2012 

Dear Mr. Pickering: 

Accompanying this letter are three copies (two bound and one 
electronic) of the annual audit of the City of Meridian, Mississippi, for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. In connection with this 
audit, a separate management letter was written to the city. 
Enclosed you will find two copies (one hard copy and one electronic) 
of this management letter along with the three previously mentioned 
audit reports. 

Sincerely, 

Cheri M. Barry 
Mayor 
City of Meridian 

CMB/bl 
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MAY 2 9 2013 

http:www.l1leridianms.org




CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Management Letter 


September 30,2012 


RECEIVED 

MAY 29 2013 



t 




----------:--::---=-:=:-:=-=-=--=~::---------------- «"-~-~ 

BREAZEALE, SAUNDERS t!t O'NEIL LTD. 

The Honorable Mayor Cheri M. Barry and 
Honorable Members of the City Council 

City of Meridian, Mississippi: 

In planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund infonnation ofthe City of Meridian, Mississippi ("City") as ofand for 
the year ended September 30, 2012, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States, we considered the City's 
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City's internal controL Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

However, during our audit, we became aware of matters that are opportunities for strengthening 
internal controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter 
summarizes our comments and recommendations regarding these matters. We previously reported 
on the City'S internal control in our report dated April 26, 2013. This letter does not affect our report 
dated April 26, 2013, on the financial statements of the City. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already 
discussed these comments and recommendations with City personnel, and we will be pleased to 
discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perfonn any additional study ofthese matters, 
or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. 

To ensure that continuing attention is given to internal control matters, the Council members should 
periodically review prior years' management letters to ascertain if there are matters that need 
additional corrective action. 

We wish to thank all employees for their support and assistance during our audit. This report is 
intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, honorable members ofthe City 
Council, management, and others within the City. 

:E ~ 5a..L ~ ()~ 1/1'). 
Jackson, Mississippi ~ I RECEIVED 
April 26, 2013 

MAY 2 9 2013 

120 NORTH CONGRESS STREET i SUITE 300 I p" 0" BOX 80 I JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI, 39205-0080 
TELEPHONE: 601-969-7440 I TELECOPIER: 601-355-9003 i www,bsolldcom 





CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Independent Auditors' Findings and Recommendations 


With Respect to Internal Controls 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012 


The following findings and recommendations include conditions noted during the course ofour audit 
for the year ended September 30, 2012. 

SUBSIDIARY LEDGER RECONCILIATIONS 

Finding: 

During our audit, we noted that the City'S existing system does not provide a monthly reconciliation 
of the subsidiary ledgers of the water and sewer receivables and deposits to the general ledger. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the City adopt a policy requiring monthly reconciliations of all balance sheet 
account subsidiary ledgers to the general ledger activity. Such reconciliations will help ensure that 
the recording oftransactions is accurate and proper, and that any adjustments or write-offs have been 
properly approved and recorded. 

DOCUMENTATION OF PAY RATES 

Finding: 

During our audit, we noted that the payroll processing system is updated for changes in pay rates; 
however, the current approved pay rate for each employee is not documented. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the City implement procedures to ensure that approval for all changes to pay 
rates and the resulting new rates are documented. 

RECEIVED 


MAY 29 2613 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Independent Auditors' Findings and Recommendations 


With Respect to Internal Controls 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012 


GOLF COURSE FUND CHART OF ACCOUNTS 


Finding: 

During our audit, we noted that the chart ofaccounts used for the golf course fUnd does not provide a 
separate account for cost of sales. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the City review the golf course fund chart of accounts and make appropriate 
revisions to include additional accounts. Such revisions should provide management adequate 
information for consideration in making financial decisions to aid in mitigating operating deficits. 
Also, the City should consider implementing procedures to ensure that financial trends are easily 
monitored. 

NONSUFFICIENT FUNDS CHECKS 

Finding: 

During our audit, we noted that the nonsufficient funds balance in the general ledger is not 
adequately substantiated by the underlying returned checks. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the City maintain an aged schedule ofall returned checks due to nonsufficient 
funds, which will be reviewed monthly. After such review, any uncollectible checks should be 
written off. This list should include only items for which the City, or its representative, is in 
possession of the returned check. The City should assign one individual to maintain the returned 
checks and keep a detailed list of any checks forwarded for collection. 

RECEIVED 

MAY 29 2013 
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April 26, 2013 

To the Honorable Members of the City Council 
and Citizens of the City of Meridian, Mississippi: 

State of Mississippi law requires that every municipality in the state shall have 
its books audited annually, prior to the close of the next succeeding fiscal year, 
either by a competent accountant approved by the State Auditor or by a 
certified public accountant. The audit shall be made in accordance with 
regulations promulgated by the State Auditor. Pursuant to that requirement, 
we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of 
Meridian, Mississippi ("City") for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances 
of the City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the 
completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. 
To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management 
of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is 
designed both to protect the City's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to 
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's 
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). Because the cost of 
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive 
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather 
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material 
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The City's financial statements have been audited in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by Breazeale, 
Saunders & O'Neil, Ltd., a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The 
goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, 
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that 
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the 
City'S financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 20l2, are 
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is 
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report . 
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The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally 
mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The 
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only 
on the fair presentation of the financial statements but also on the audited government's internal 
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and 
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are presented in 
the Single Audit section of this report. 

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
("MD&A"). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it. The City'S MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 
independent auditors. 

Profile of the Government 

The City, incorporated in 1860, is located in east central Mississippi, and is the county seat of 
Lauderdale County. The City currently occupies a land area of approximately 54.3 square miles 
and has an official 2010 population of 41,148. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on 
real and personal properties, utilities and motor vehicles located within its boundaries. It is also 
empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs 
periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing authorities and approved by the 
appropriate court ofjurisdiction. 

The City has operated under the mayor-council form of government since 1985. Legislative 
authority is vested in a part-time governing city council consisting of five council members 
elected by wards. The city council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, 
adopting the budget and hiring an independent accountant to provide a full and complete 
examination of all books of the City at the end of each fiscal year. Executive authority is vested 
in a full-time mayor elected at-large. The mayor is responsible, among other things, for 
enforcing the charter and ordinances of the municipality and all general laws applicable thereto, 
for overseeing day-to-day operation of the City, appointing the heads of the various departments 
subject to council confirmation, annually reporting to council and the public on the work of the 
previous year, making recommendations for action by the council and supervising all of the 
departments of the City. The mayor may approve ordinances adopted by the council or veto 
such action within ten (10) business days, stating the reasons for such veto. No ordinance so 
vetoed shall take effect unless council within ten (l0) business days resolves to override the veto 
by a vote of two-thirds (213) of the members present and voting to override. If the mayor takes 
no action to approve or veto an ordinance, there is a period of fifteen (IS) business days before 
the ordinance could become effective. The mayor and council serve concurrent, four-year terms. 

The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; general 
administration; construction and maintenance of streets, drainage ways and other infrastructure; 
waste and trash collection and disposal; water and sewer services; community and economic 

-
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development services; and recreational activities and cultural events. Discretely presented .. .. 
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.. component units are reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to 
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their 
financial position. results of operations and cash flows from those of the primary government. 
The Meridian Airport Authority, the Meridian Transportation Commission and, the Meridian and .. 	 Bonita Lakes Development Authority are reported as discretely presented component units. The 
Meridian Redevelopment Agency is reported as a blended component unit. 

.. 
The annual budget serves as the fc)Undation for the City's financial planning and control. All.. departments of the City submit requests for appropriations to the mayor in May of each year. 
The mayor uses the requests as a starting point for developing a proposed budget. The mayor 

-
then presents this proposed budget to the council for review in July. The council is required to 
hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than September 
15. The budget is prepared by ilmd and department. The level of budgetary control (that is, the 
level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is adopted by major 
expenditure classifications within departments or funds. These major classi lications are: -
personnel services, supplies and expenses, capital outlay. and transfers and other charges. - Department heads. with approval from the Chief Administrative Officer, may make transfers of.. appropriations within one of the major classifications within a department. A transfer of 
appropriations between classifications. however. requires a budget amendment approved by the 
counci I. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood \vhen it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the speeit1e environment \vithin which the City 
operates.- Local economy. The City continues to have a diverse economy with industries ranging from 
electronic music and sOllnd equipment to aircraft parts and steel fabrication to distribution - centers for office products. flower bulbs. and beverages. Meridian is located at the intersection 
of five US highways and two major interstates: 1-20. which runs from western Texas to South- Carolina and I-59. which connects southeast Louisiana to northern Georgia. Meridian is the 
center of a large trade area and continues to meet the medical, retail. industrial, cultural and 
recreational needs of hundreds ofthoLlsands of people in east Mississippi and west Alabama. 

The City serves as a regional health center, with five hospitals that employ over 6,000 healthcare 
professionals and stafr The federal government has a major presence in the area \\ ith the -- Meridian Naval Air Station ("NAS Meridian"). which provides training for both naval carrier 
pilots and technical training for various enlisted personnel. NAS Meridian also provides the 
RCTA or Regional Counter-Drug Training Academy. The ReTA ofkrs training for a variety of- law enforcement entities fmlll throughout the southeast in the war on drugs. Meridian is also 
home to the G.V. "Sonny" Montgomery National Guard Complex. -
The City's Public Safety Training Facility is situated on approximately 99 acres and is 
recognized as a Level 2 law enforcement academy by the Mississippi Police Board of Standards--- 5 
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and Training. The facility provides training in a variety of courses for multiple entities both 
from within the state and out of state. Additionally, the Public Safety Training Facility has a 
three-story drill tower with live fire capabilities, a driving track, firing ranges and a working 
Amtrak rail site complete with rail cars. The facility is one of the only active training sites in the 
country for passenger rail rescue courses. The City is also home to the first municipal 
Department of Homeland Security in the state and is included in a nine county regional response 
team that serves central Mississippi. The team is part of a 27 county task force that is supported 
by the Mississippi Department of Homeland Security. -
The City of Meridian worked with Mississippi State University and the Riley Foundation to 
donate the Kress Building to the University. This donation, along with the Riley Foundation's 
donation to the University of the Newberry Building, allowed Mississippi State to greatly expand 
their presence in downtown Meridian. The first classes of the University's downtown campus ­
began in January 2012 with the opening of the Business School in the Newberry building. Plans 
are currently in the works to create a new school at the University that would be housed in the 
Kress Building. .. ..The restoration of historic 1915 City Hall opened for business in February, 2012. This project 
returned the National Register of Historic Places building to its original look while integrating ..
modern technology. Another sign ificant project completed in November, 201 I was a major 
computer and software conversion of the water, sewer and garbage bi II ing and collection systems .. 
to replace and improve the City's information technology systems. Other projects completed 
duri ng the year include the rehabi I itation 0 f the Bonita Lakes Dam, pump station construction at 
the Waste Water Treatment Plant and a sanitary sewer line rehabilitation project. ­... 
Long-term financial planning. With the current economic conditions, greater emphasis will be 

on provision of basic services. Revenue will be allocated as needed toward the basic .. 

governmental services of water and sewer and public safety. Emphasis will be placed on long 

terlll tinancing and grant procurement to address capital needs of the water and sewer system and .. 

law enforcement needs. 
 .. 
Relevant financial policies. In addition to the establishment ol'a comprehensive internal control 

framework and tormal budgetary procedurcs. the City's manageillent is also committed to 

conservatism in projecting annual revenues and allocating one time revenues. These policies .. 

prevent drastic reductions due to under budgeted or unbudgeted costs and ensure that operating 

expenses are not increased for one time revenues. .. 

Major initiatives. Two significant ongoing projects at September 30, 2012 include construction .. 

ofa new fire station in the annexed north portion of the City, which opened in March, 2013 and 

acquisition of a new police complex. Significant projects to be addressed include continued ... 

replacement and maintenance of aging water and sewer plants and lines to be financed through 
 ..grants and bond issues. .. 


.. 
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Awards and Aclmmvlcdgclllcnts 

The Government Finance Ofliccrs Associ at lOll of the Lnited Statt.!s and Canada ("GFOX') 
awarded a CcnilicalL' or Achievement t'\)r Excellence ill FintllH;ial Reporting In Ihe ('ity for ils 

comprehensive annual II nandal report ("CA FR") for the lisen] year ended SeptL'lllber ~(). 2(J 1I, 
This was the sixteenth consecutive year thilt the City has m:lJic\'t.:d this prestigious award. In 
order to bc awarded a Ccrlilicatc or AC]lic\eJllCIlL the City published an easily readable and 
efficient1 y orgallized C;\ FR. This rcpLlrt Sllt is lied bOlh Ci ,\:\ P and appJ icablc kga I requi n:ment;>, 

;\ Ccnilicate of Achievement is valid 1'01' a pL'riod Dr nile ye~\r only, We bdic\'e Ihat our current 
CAFR continlles to meet the Ct.!rtilicatc or Achic\CIlll"t1t I>rngram's requircments alld wc arc 
submitting it to the GFOA 10 detcrminc its eligibility li)r al1l1thcr certiliealL'. 

The preparation of this report would nlll ha\c beell j11)ssibk witillHIt the ci'IIl:1cnt and dedicated 
services of the entire swtlol'the Financc :lnd Rel'orlis Dep"rtmCIlI. We \\nuld likL: \0 express our 
appreciation to all members of the department who assisted allt! contributed to the prcparalilm or 
Ihis repon. Credit also !HIlSI be gi\ell 1\) the L'ily cuuncil for it:; 11ll1:liling StlP]1url flll'lllaillwillillg 
the highest ::.wmlards urprol(:ssionallsl1I ill the lll;tnagelllL'lIi oi'tilL' Clly'S linance~, 

. L .. S].;ipPl'r 

\!avur C1l!I'i' lillanl'ial oniClT 


f:: IvED 

MAY 29 2013 
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Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Meridian 

Mississippi 


For its Comprehensive Annual 


Financial Report 


for the Fiscal Year Ended 


September 30.2011 


A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 

Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers 


Association of the United States and Canada to 

government units and public employee retirement 

systems whose comprehensive annual financial 


reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest 

standards in government accounting 


and financial reporting. 
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President 

Executive Director 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Organizational Structure 


September 30.2012 
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,,1:CliRITY 
DIR1,CTOR 
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CITY COURT JUDGE 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Listing of City Officials 

September 30, 20 J2 

EJected Officials 
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Council Melnber - Ward I 
Council Melnber - Ward 2 
Council Melnber - Ward 3 
Council Member - Ward 4 
Council Melnber - Ward 5 

Appointed Officials 

..................................................................... .. 


...................................................................... . 


...................................................................... . 


...................................................................... . 


....................................................................... 


Chief Administrative Officer .................................................................. . 

Finance & Records Director/City Clerk ................................................. . 

Public Works Director ............................................................................ . 

Parks & Recreation Director ................................................................... . 

Community Development Director ......................................................... . 

Fire Chief ................................................................................................ . 
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BREAZEALE, SAUNDERS & O'NEIL, LTD. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC 

... INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor Cheri M. Barry and 

Honorable Members offhe City Council 


City of Meridian, Mississippi: 

--
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Meridian, Mississippi ("City") as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the 

.. 
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Meridian Airport Authority, which represent 99.97 percent, 100 percent, 
and 98.58 percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets, and operating revenues of the discretely 
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has 
been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for this component 
unit, are based on the report of the other auditors. 

.. 

.. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, .. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of.. material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

.. 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinions . 

.. 	 In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental .. 	 activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2012, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary - comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America . .. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 26, 
2013, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its-

13 .. 120 NORTH CONGRESS STREET I SUITE 300 I p, 0, BOX 80! JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI, 39205-0080 
TELEPHONE: 601-969-7440 I TELECOPIER: 601-355-9003! www,bsoltd,com 



.. 

The Honorable Mayor Cheri M. Barry and 

Honorable Members of the City Council 
City of Meridian, Mississippi: 
Page two 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 15 through 24 and the schedule of funding progress on page 94 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opInions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining 
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, other supplementary information, and 
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circu lar A-133, 
Audits ofStates, Local Governments. and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of 
the financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
schedules, other supplementary information, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been SUbjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on them. 

s...4. 

Jackson, Mississippi 
April 26, 2013 
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-
.. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Management's DisclIssion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 

As 	 management of the City of Meridian, Mississippi ("City"), we offer readers of the City's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for .. the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. We encourage readers to consider the information 

.. presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of 
transmittal, which can be found on pages 3 - 7 of this report. All amounts, unless otherwise 
ind icated, are expressed 	in thousands of dollars . .. 
Financial Highlights - • The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 

$116,445 (net assels). or this amount, $9,143 (unreslricJed nel assels) may be used to - meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
• 	 The City'S total net assets increased by $4.137. This change in net assets is largely 

attributable to a $986 increase in water and sewer capital grants. an $820 increase in 
public works capital grants, a $783 increase in water and sewer charges, and a $1,172 - decrease in culture and recreation expenses. 

• 	 As of the close of the current fiscal year. the City's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $24,853, an increase of $3,940 in comparison with the -	 prior year. Approximately 30 percent of this total amount, $7.494, is avai!ah!ej(Jr 
spending at the City's discretion (unassignedjimd ha!aflcej. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the general Illnd was.. $7,494 or 28 percent of total general fund expenditures . 
• 	 The City'S total debt increased by $626 (1.03 percent) during the current liscal year. .. 	 During the year. the City issued $6,318 in new debt and retired $5.692 of previously 

issued debt. - Overview of the Financiul Stutements 

.. 


.. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 

statements. The City'S basic linancial statements are comprised of three components: (I) 

government -wide financial statements, (2) tlll1d nnancial statements. and (3) notes to the 

financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to 
the hasic financial statements themselves. -.. Government-wide financial statements. The gm'ernlllcflt-wide financial statemenls are 
designed to provide readers with a hroad overvie\\ of the City'S finances. in a manner similar to a 
private-sector business. 

.. The slatement oiliel assels presents inf()rmation on all of the City'S assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as nel assets. Over time. increases or decreases in net assets 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position or the City is improving or - deteriorating.- The statement 01 aclivilies presents information showing how the City's net assets changed .. during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless o/lhe timinx olre!ated cash/lows... 

15--



Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are I11III 

principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmenlal activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type aClivilies). The governmental activities of the City include ­
general government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, and economic -development. The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer services, waste 
collection and disposal, a golf course, Union Station, and citywide concessions. -
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary 
governmen/), but also the following legally separate entities for which the City is financially 
accountable: (I) Meridian Airport Authority, (2) Meridian Transportation Commission, and (3) 
Meridian and Bonita Lakes Development Authority. Financial information for these component .. 
units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government 
itself The Meridian Redevelopment Agency, although also legally separate, functions for all 
practical purposes as a department of the City. and therefore has been included as an integral part 
of the primary government. 

The government-wide financial statements can be /t)und on pages 26 - 29 of this report. -
Fund financial statements. A .Iimd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for speci tic activities or objectives. The City. 
like other state and local governments. uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate -
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into three categories: governmental funds. proprietary funds. and fiduciary funds. ­

I11III 

Governmenttlllund.,', Gowrmllentaljim£!.\ are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmenlal (fclivilies in the government-wide financial statements. However, .. 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements f(}clls 
on near-term il!/loH's und outfloH's oj'.\pendab/e resources. as well as on halances (?l·\pendab/e -reso/lrces available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating 
the City's near-term financing requirements. -
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that or the government-wide financial 
statements. it is useful to compare the information presented for govermlle11la/fimds with similar .. 
in/(xmatioll presented for governmental aclil'ilies in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so. readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City'S near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds 
statement of revenues. expenditures. and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
laci I itate th is comparison between governmental jimds and governmental act il'ilies. .. 
The City maintains 21 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, -expenditures. and changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund, and 2012 
General Obligation Bonds ftmd all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the -
other 18 non major governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregate presentation. .. 

Individual fund data f(x each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of 

comhining statements elsewhere in this report. .. 
..16 
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.. 


.. The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 30 37 of this report. 

.. 

.. 

Proprielttry fUflds. The City maintains two di ITerent types of proprietary funds. Enterprise 
fund,' are used to report the same functions presented as Imsiness-type (.fetivitie.",· in the 
government-wide financial statements. The City lIses enterprise funds to account for its water 
and sewer fund, waste collection and disposal fund, golf course fund. Union Station fund and a 
citywide concessions fund. Internal servicefimds are an accounting device used to accumulate 
and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses internal serv ice 
funds ( I ) to account tor serv ice and mai ntenance costs for its fleet of veh ic les, (2) to account for 
office supplies. (3) to account tor health and Ii Ie insurance claims. and (4) to account tor 

-
unemployment insurance and claims. Bccause these services predominantly benefit 
governmental rather than business-type functions. they have been included within governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements . .. 
Proprietary funds prov ide the same type of information as the government-wide tinancial 
statements. only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information tl)r the business-type activities of the water and sewer fund and the waste collection 
and disposal fund. which are considered to be major funds of the City. Data from the nonmajor - enterprise funds are combined into a single. aggregate presentation. The internal service funds 

-
.. are also combined into a single. aggregate presentation in the proprietary fund financial 

statements. Individual fund data fix the three 110nmajor enterprise funds and the lour internal 
service lunds is provided in the form of combining statclIlents elsewhere in this report. 

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be /tHlI1d on pages 38 - 43 of'this report. -- Fitlud(lryfunds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the bene tit of parties 
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are 110t retlected in the government-wide financial - statements because the resources of those funds are nol available to support the City'S own.. programs. file accounting used f()r fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds . 

The basic tiduciary funds financial statement can be found on page 44 of this report. -
Notes to the financial shltements. The notes provide additional inllHination that is essential to -
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-\\ide and I'und financial statements. 
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 47 - 92 of this report. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. this 
report also presents certain required slll'plemel1larr injiJrmatiof1 concerning the City'S progress in- funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary 
information can be found on page 93 of this report. -
The combining statements relerred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds. - nonmajor enterprise funds. internal service funds. fiduciary timds. and nonmajor component 
units arc presented immediately fl)lIowing the required supplementary intormation on pensions. -
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 95 - 127 of this 
report. --
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Government-wide Financial Analysis -
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $116,445 at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (82 percent) reflects its investment in capital 
assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used 
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although .. 
the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets .. 
themselves cannot be lIsed to liquidate these liabilities. .. 

Cin: of Meridian's Net Assets .. 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total .. 
Description 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 .. 

Current and other assets $ 30,915 26,580 14,207 14,629 45,122 41,209 ..Capital assets, net 106,033 107,235 35,332 32,832 141,365 140,067 ..Total assets 136,948 133,815 49,539 186,487 181,276 

Long-term liabilities olltstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets. 

net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

46,811 45,905 16.133 16.506 62,944 62,411 

4,373 2,370 2,184 7,098 
 ..

_51,539 50.278 18.503 JJh§90 70,042 68,968 .. 
75,049 74.694 20,841 19.795 95,890 94,489 

5,755 6,S19 5.657 5.151 11,412 11,670 ­.. .. 4.538 ~149 .,$~.8llQ2 ~~].ll7 ~LQJQ 116445 LI2,30~..~_L 

An additional portion of the City's net assets ( 10 percent) represents resources that are subject Lo .. 

external restrictions on how they may be used. The remain ing balance of $9,143 in unrestricted 

net assels may be llsed to meet the City's ongoing obligaLions to citizens and creditors. .. 

At the end of the current tiscal year. the City was able Lo report positive balances in all three -.
categories of net assets. both for the City as a whole. as well as for its separate governmental and 
business~type activities. The same situation held true for the prior tiscal year. • 
There was an increase of $506 in restricted net assets reporLed in connection with the City's 
business-type activities. This is a result or increased grant funds available for capital projects in 
the water and sewer system. -
The City's net assets increased $4,137 during the current tiscal year. This change in net assets is -largely attributable to a $986 increase in water and sewer capital grants, an $820 increase in ..publ ic works capital grants, a $783 increase in water and sewer charges, and a $1.172 decrease in 
culture and recreation expenses. --18 



--
Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $1,872. -
Key elements ofthese changes in net assets are as follows: ... 

- Citv of Meridian's Changes in Net Assets .. 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total-.. Description 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 .. Revenues: 

- Program revenues: 
Charges for services $ 1,778 1,720 15,453 14,604 17.231 16.324 
Operating grants 
and contributions 515 608 515 608 -

Capital grants and contributions 1.812 1.654 1.314 328 3,126 1,982 
General revenues: -

Property taxes 14,439 14.722 40 400 14,479 15.122 
Other taxes 17,345 17,238 17.345 17.238 -
Grants and contributions not .. 

restricted to specific programs 75 70 75 70 
Unrestricted investment earnings _~l 103 105-.. Total revenues 36.087 36,206 16,910 ~5,437 52,997 51.643 

Expenses:- General government 6.874 6,907 6.874 6,907 
Public safety 15,584 15.528 15,584 15.528- Public works 7,671 7,877 7.671 7.877 

~,'. ")")"... Culture and recreation 2.05\ __ J 2.051 3.223 
Economic development 169 124 169 124 ... Sanitation 1.876 1.825 1.876 1,825 
I nterest on long-term debt 1.908 2.061 1.908 2.061 

.- Other 24 19 846 838 870 857 
Water and sewer 11.857 lL.742 

-
-~--- rotal expenses 34.281 BA05 48.860 50.144 

f:xcess of revenues over ... expenses before tntnsfers 1,806 467 2.331 1.032 4.137 1.499 

Transfers 66 (936 ) (66) . 936 -
Change in net assets 1.872 (469) 2.265 1.968 4.137 1.499 -... 
Net assets - beginning 83,537 84.006 28,771 26.803 112.308 .1.1Q,809- Net assets - ending $ J5.,,40~ 83,211 J 12.3,08 ... 

.­
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.. ..
• 	 Property taxes decreased $643 or four percent in 2012 compared to 2011. This decrease 

in property tax receipts is primarily due to the acquisition of a tor-profit hospital with a .. 
2011 taxable assessed value of $4,900 by a nonprofit hospital. Additionally, there was a 
0.2 percent decrease in the City's 2012 combined tax rate from 118.35 mills in 20 II to 
118.15 m i Us, or $1 18.15 per $1,000 of assessed valuation. .. 

• 	 Charges for services increased $907 or six percent in 2012 compared to 20 I I. 

• 	 Operating grants and contributions decreased $93 or tifteen percent in 2012 compared to ..
2011. This was mostly due to a decrease in operating grants for public safety and public 

works. 
 .. 

• 	 Capital grants and contributions increased $1,144 or 58 percent in 2012 compared to 

20 II. This was mostly due to an increase in capital grants tor public works. 


• 	 Other taxes (which include sales taxes) increased $107 or one percent. .. 
• 	 Total revenues increased $1,354 or three percent. .. 
• 	 Total expenses decreased $1,284 or three percent. This was mainly due to a $ Lin .. 

decreasc in cu Iture and recreation expenses. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $2,265. This 

is primarily due to an $849 increase in charges for services and a $986 increase in capital grants. .. 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 	 .. 
As noted earlier. the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with .. 
linance-related legal requirements. .. 
GovemmeflltlJ funds. The fOCliS of the City's governmental/fll1c!., is to provide intormation on ..
near-term ihtlows. outtlows, and balances of spendable resources. Such in/()fInation is lIseful in 

assessing the City's financing requirements. In paliicular. unassignedjll/ld balance may serve as .. 

a useful measure of a government's net resources available tor spending at the end of the fiscal 

year. 


At the end of the current fiscal year, the City'S governmental funds reported combined end ing .. 

fund balances 01'$24.853. an increase 01'$3,940 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total, 

$13,456 is res/ric/cd due to external limitations on its use, such as by debt covenants, legal 

restrictions. or intention or grantors or donors. A total of $1,594 is considered nompendable ­..because it has been used for inventory and assets held tor resale. A total of $1,961 has been 
assigned, meaning there are limitations resulting from its intended lise. A total 01'$348 has been 
committed through tormal action of the City Council for construction or acquisition of capital -assets. The remaining $7,494 of the fund balance is unassigned. which is available tor spending .. 
at the City'S discretion. 


The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current tiscal year. 

unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $7,494, while total fund balance was $11.021. .. 

As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund 

balance and total fund balance to the total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance .. 

represents 28 percent of total general fund expend itures. wh i Ie total flmd balance represents 41 
 ..20 .. 



.. 


.. 


.. 


.. 


.. 

-
.. 

.. 
.. 
.. 

.. 
.. 

.. 
.. 

-
-
.. 

.. 

.. 
.. 

-
.. 
.. 

-
-
-
.. 

.. 

-


percent of that same amount. The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $1,662 
during the current fiscal year. This was primarily due to a $374 increase in sales taxes, a $277 
increase in transfers in from other funds, a $501 decrease in general government expenditures, 
and a $128 decrease in debt service expenditures . 

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $2,721, all of which is restricted for the 
payment of debt service. The net decrease of $20 during the current year in the debt service fund 
is a result of the $626 increase in total outstanding debt during the current year and the timing of 
payment due dates of long-term debt. The 2012 General Obligation Bonds fu nd has a total fund 
balance of $4.184, all of which is restricted for street paving projects throughout the City. The 
fund balance of the 2012 General Obligation Bonds fund increased $4,184 during the current 
fiscal year. This increase is from the proceeds of the bond issue less expenditures tor the street 
paving projects . 

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of int()rmation found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the water and sewer fund at the end of the year amounted to $3,761, 
and those for the waste collection and disposal tllJ1d amounted to $531. The total decrease in net 
assets tor the waste collection and disposal tlllld is $5 and the water and sewer fund net assets 
increased by $2.250 . 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

There was no difference between the original budget and the final amended budget 111 total 
expenditures. Further, there \'\'ere no changes within the levels of expenditures. 

Actual revenues exceeded the final amended budget by $870. 

The final amended budgeted expenditures exceeded the actual in all departments. Di fferenccs 
bet\\ecn the final amended budgeted expenditures and actual are as follows: 

Description 
General government 
Finance and records 
Community dcvelopment 
Parks and recreation 
Public works 
Police 
Firc 
Ilomeialld security 
Arts district parking garage 

Total 

21 

Actual Under 
Budget 

$ 	 759 
248 
154 
183 
569 
480 
276 
189 
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of September 30, 2012, amounts to $141,365 (net of accumulated depreciation). 
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements, machinery 
and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and bridges. 

Major capital asset events during the current tiscal year included the tollowing: 

• 	 Milling, leveling and overlay of various City streets. 

• 	 Repair of gabions along Gallagher Creek in Highland Park. .. 
• 	 Construction of Fire Station Number 9 in the newly annexed northeast part of the City. .. 
• 	 Continued replacing and upgrading the supervisory control and data acquisition ..

("SCADA") system at the Freshwater Treatment Plants. .. 
• 	 Continued replacement of South Waste Water Treatment Plant air blowers, digester 


blowers. process pumps, and associated electrical upgrades 


• 	 Completed renovation and restoration of City Hall. 

• 	 Completed installation of an integrated financial, customer, and maintenance .. 
management software system. 

• 	 Completed repairs to and stabilization of the Bonita Lakes Dam. 

-.City of Meridian's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total -Description 	 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 -

Land 	 $ 8,078 8,055 248 248 8.326 8,303 
-. 	 30Right of ways J 3 33 3 

Building and system 34,122 17,373 30,541 30,598 64,663 47,971 
Improvements other than buildings 2,894 2,023 25 25 2,919 2,048 ­
Machinery and equipment 5,071 3,837 698 572 5,769 4,409 .. 
Infrastructure 54,636 57,191 54,636 57,191 
Construction in progress 1,229 18.753 3,790 1,389 5,019 20,142 .. 

Total 	 $ JQ6,031 ]07,235 35,332 ~2.832 141.365 JAD..fr67 .. 
Additional intormation on the City's capital assets can be tound in note 5 on pages 71 - 74 of this 
report. .. 

--
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.. Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt 
olltstanding of $48,875. Of this amount, $33,520 comprises debt backed by the full faith and 
credit of the City. $4.670 is special obligation bonds, $4,475 is tax increment tlnancing bonds 
and $1.505 is special assessment debt for which the City is I iable in the event of default by the 
property owners subject to the assessment. The remainder of the City's dcbt represents bonds .. 	 secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e .. revenue bonds) . 

.. 	 The City's total bonded debt increased by $480 (one percent) during the current fiscal year. The 
increase is due to the issuance or new bonds exceeding retirements. - City of Meridian's Outstanding Debt 

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds .. 
.. Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

.. Description 	 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

- General obligation bonds $ 33.520 31,170 33,520 31.170 
Special obligation bonds 4,670 4,985 4,670 4,985 
Limited obligation tax - increment financing bonds 4,475 5,100 4.475 5,100 
Special assessment debt with 

governmental comm itment 1.505 1,720 1,505 1,720 
Revenue bonds 4,705 5.420 _~,705 5,420 -- Total 	 $ A1Jl0 .42,,'275 ,;tI~) ._S+420 .~~aL5 .._--

48,195 .. 	 --~.----

The City maintains excellent bond ratings tDr both general obligation and revenue bond debt. .. The general obligation bonds maintain an "Aa3" rating from Moody's Investors Service. The 
revenue bonds of the water and sewer fund arc rated "Baa 1" by Moody's Investors Serv ice. -

.. 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue to 15 
percent of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation of the City is $51,362 which is 
sign i licantly in excess of the City'S net outstanding general obi igation debt of $32,621 appl icable 
to the debt limitation . .. .. Additional in l<xl11ution on the City's long-term debt can be 1(llll1d in note 8 on pages 78 - 83 of 
this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates -
• The unemployment rate tor the City is currently 13.6 percent, which is a slight- increase from the rate of 13.3 pereent a year ago. The statewide average is 9.9 

percent as compared to the national average of 8.1 percent. -- • The revitalization of the City continued with the issuance of 687 building permits 
with a construction value of $17 million. 

-
-
... 

-




• 	 Inflationary trends in the City are slightly higher than the national average. The 

change in CPI in the past year for the City was an increase of 3.3 percent versus the 

national average increase of2.0 percent. 


• 	 Sales tax collections year to date in fiscal year 2013 are up 4.63 percent from thc 

previous fiscal year. During the first six months of fiscal year 2013, the City has 

received $7,155 in sales tax collections, compared to $6,838 received during the same 

period of fiscal year 2012. 


All ofthese factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2013 fiscal year. 

Duri ng the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the general fund increased to $7,494. 111M 
The City has appropriated $2,650 of this amount for spending in the 2013 fiscal year budget. .. 
Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those ­
with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the intormation provided in -this report or requests for additional tinancial information should be addressed to the Office of ..
the Chief Financial Officer, City of Meridian, P. O. Box 1430, Meridian, Mississippi 39302. 

.. 

.. 
111M 

.. .... 


.. 
.. .. .. 
-
.. .. .. .. ..
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Statement of Net Assets 


September 30, 2012 


Primar~ Government 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net: 

Taxes 

Accounts 

Special assessments 

Intergovernmental 

Interest 

Miscellaneous 


Due from component units 
Internal balances 
Inventory 
Prepaid items 
Deferred charges 
Temporarily restricted assets: 

Cash and investments 

Taxes receivable 

Intergovernmental receivables 


Assets held for resale 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Right of ways 
Collections - historical treasures 
Construction in progress 

Capital assets net of 
acculllulated depreciation: 

Buildings 
Water and sewer system 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 

Total assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 	 7,734,452 
1,550,000 

1,264,174 
709,406 
754,025 
133.629 

3.871 
42,188 

6244 
440.647 

53.302 
192.580 
914.536 

14.268.838 
29.769 

IA15.132 
1,401.802 

8,078.610 
2.600 

141.250 
1.228.787 

34,122.383 

2.893.942 
4,930.508 

136.948,403 

Business-type 

Activities 


4,228,107 

, ,247,063 

170,895 

(440.647) 
497AI9 

33,791 
174.264 

8.196,3 19 

247,787 
30,610 

3,789.771 

3,800 
30,537.016 

24.975 
697534 

49,538,704 

Total 

11,962,559 
1,550,000 

1,264,174 
1,956,469 

754,025 
304,524 

3,872 
42,188 

6,244 

550,721 
226,371 

1,188.800 

22.465.157 
29,769 

IAI5,I32 
lAO 1,802 

8,326,397 
33,210 

141,250 
5.018,558 

34.126,183 
30.537.016 

2.918,917 
5,628.()4:~ 

54,635,727 

186.487,1 07 

Component 
Units .. .. 

1,360,544 

.. 
817,416 .. 
301,795 .. .. .. 
350,197 

47,659 
 .. 

111.205 

.. ..2,427,975 .. 
3,086.686 .. 
8,901,628 .. 

16,180,980 
r,089,07 I .. .. 

34,675,156 .. 
(( 'onlinued) .. .. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Statement of Net Assets .. Septem ber 30, 2012 

- Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type Component- Activities Activities Units 

LIABILITIES -
.. - Accounts payable and 

other current liabi I ities $ 1,519,513 954,952 2,474,465 1,406,558 

Accrued interest 592,338 592,338 

Accrued salaries 966.871 204,837 1.171.708 

Accrued sales tax 11.825 11.825 -- Liabilities payable from restricted assets 1,648.628 1,198,251 2.846,879 

Unearned revenue 3,31 1 

Noncurrent liabilities: - Due within one year: 
Deterred revenue forward invested funds 37,390 37.390- Bonds, loans and leases payable 3,841,446 85.005 3,926.45 J 234.763 

Bonds and loans payable from 
restricted assets 1.961.748 1.961,748 

Compensated absences 453,934 61.828 515.762 -- Claims and judgments 1.207 1.207 

Due in Illore than one year: 

- Deferred revenue forward invested funds 76,490 76,4<)0 

Bonds, loans and leases payable 41,607.797 13.784,569 55.392.366 1.155,983 .. Compensated absences 907,867 I 1.033.3<)7 

.. Total liabilities 51,539,601 18.502,425 70.042.026 2.800.615 

NET ASSETS 

- Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 75.049.215 20.840.772 31,686.340 


Restricted for: 
Debt service 2,153.766 4.923.809 7.077575 
Sowashee Creck maintenance 346.385 733.658 1,080.043 111.205 

.. 
- Construction/acquisition of capital assets 396SU 396543.. Flood danwge repairs 76.465 76.465 

Purposes of grantors/donors 131.722 131,722 

-
Law entorcement 2,649.623 2.649.623 

Unrestricted 4.605,063 ,f.538'(140 I 103 76,996--.-­

Total net assets s; 85,408.802 31.036.179 II-- The notes to thefi;umcial statements are an integral purt ofthis statement.---

http:3,926.45


-----

.. 
CITY Of' 1\1 ERIOIAN, MISSISSI PPI 


Statement of Activities 
 .. 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 

Program Revenues 

Fu nctionslPrograms 

Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 

(Jeneral government 

Publie sal!:t y 

Public works 

Culture and recreation 

Economic development 

Oth.:r 

Int.:rest on long-term debt 


1 otal governmental activities 

Business-type aetivitics: 
Water and sew.:r 
Waste collection and disposal 
(jolr course 
lin ion Station 
Concessions 

"I otal business-type activities 

Total primar)" government 

CUll1lHmcnt units: 

M.:ridian Airport /\uthorit} 
Nonmujor cOll1pnllcntunils 

Total cOlllllOncnt units 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions 

$ 6.848.484 41 L594 39.040 
15.584,259 1.039.165 351.630 8.750 
7,670,520 819.999 

2.051,139 326,960 14.000 131.667 

169.095 J 50.000 786.828 

23.479 

1,908.428 


34.255.404 1,777.719 515.630 1.786.284 

11.856,98 I 13.187.356 1.314.463 

1.875.997 uno.slt) 
466.316 295.564 

352.864 64.325 

14.578.653 

$ 515,630 3.100.747 

S 13.015.737 11.976.881 16.638 4.1<)0.645 

I 208.334 

$ 

General revenues: 

Propcrty W:\cs 
Sales 1<1:\";, 

frandli,..; tu:\cs 
County road la;..es 
Motor the! Ill;..e,; 
(iranls and contrihlliions not restricted to spccill\: rrograms 
lJnn.:strictcd imlOstlllc!l1t 0arnings 

Transfers 

Total general revcnues and transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net IIssets, Octoher 1,2011, liS previously reported 

Prior period IIdjustment 

Net assets, Octoher 1,2011, as restated 

Net IIsscts, September .30, 2012 

1M .. 
.. 
.. 
-
.. 

.. 
.. 
.. 


.. 
.. 
.. 


.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 

The notes to the finallcial statements are (111 integral part o/this st(f{Cmellt, 
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I11III 

I11III 

r"Ict (Exllcnsc) Rcvcnuc and Changes in ~et Assets 
"rinHlry Government 

I11III 
Govcrnmental Business-type Component 

Activities ,\cthities linits 
I11III 

I11III 

(6.397.850) (6.31)7.850) 

I11III (14.184.714) ( 14.184.714) 

(6.850.521 ) (6.850.521 ) 

i 1.578.512) ( 1.578.5 12) 

767.733 
(23.'179)I11III 

I11III 

I11III 
2.644.838 2.644X;8 

(5.178) (5.178) 
I11III ( 170.752) (170.752 ) 

(288.539) (288.539) 
I11III 

2. I 89.(),)8 2.' 89.098 
I11III 

(30.17'.??I) "'.189.098 (27.986'()73) 

I11III 

3.171U27
I11III 

2.988.9·18 _ .. --....­----.-~~--

I11III 

I·L·L1Itnil 39.643 '·1.478.389 
14.082. f7.~ ',1.082.172 
2.4(,2.323 2,462.323.. 780.778 780.77g 

19..:'()2 19.562 
7)~ 127 75.127 

122.7.'9 102.(0) 225.344 1>.588 

I11III 

I11III 

- 2.264.896 2.99.:'.536--_..._­

112.308.059 28.762.358 -.. 28.77Ug3 

.. 'Ii 85.'108.802 116,445.081 

--.. 
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CITY OF i\U:RJI)IAN, ,\IISSISSIPPI 
Balance S hect 

Governmental Funds ... 
September 30, 2012 

2012 
General Nonmajol' Total 

Oeb! Obligation Governmental Governmental .. 
General Service Iwnds Funds Funds 

,\SSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents .. 7,502,631 19,950 7,522. 5R I 
I nI'eshnents 1,3S0,OOO 200,000 USO,OOO -
Reeel vablcs, net 

Tn,\cs 1.]64,174 1)64,174 
Accounts 70'l,406 709.406 
Intergovernmental I 27JJl2 127,012 
Inleresl U6R 2,280 224 3,X72 -
MIScellaneous 37.K~5 4,363 42,188 

Due from other fund, 1,(}()8566 603,140 1,611,706 
Due from component Uillts 5837 5,837 
!'rel'lld Items 192,580 192,580 .. 
/\sset held for resale UOI,8112 1.401,802 
Restricted assets 

C'n"h and cash eqll1\ aknts 347,548 2,292,'171 4.396,805 6,831,514 13,868,838 
1nvcstmcnts 400,000 400,OIJO 
({ecel\ables, net 

Taxes 29,769 29,769 


SpeCial asses~mcnts recclvubk' 754,025 754,025 

InlergtH crnmcntal rc.:ei\ abies _1,415,132 !A15,1.12 


~----

Tot,,1 asscls S 11 'J~~ Zdl) 1 H9 Q~~ ~ '1!!:zn'J 111 ~9l! <)?1 

IHIlIUTIFS ,\'10 I'l'NIlII.\L\NCES -
Liabililies: 

Account.... pa~ ~lhk $ Ll 03,513 J, lOS 1.106,618 

i\c..'ruI.?U satanes 966,g71 966,871 

Due to nther i'unds SID.272 ~ 12.347 847,162 1.56'! gg I 

LiabilitIes i"lIable ernlll restricted ,,,,cIs 
Accollnt.':. pa~'ahle 3,9K~ 1.2IKB]9 1.222,~21 

Accrued ~nlat I~'" 2,716 2,716 
DepOSIts pal'able 347548 347.'48 

Ddcrn:d n:\ enu.....- 754,1125 75,543 829,568-_...._- - ....~-~-

Totalliahiiil;!'s 2.t)2!(~{)-I 758JI07 212)47 2,147,.165 ... 6,1146023-_.... ­ .. 
';und Iml"nc"" 

NOl1spendahlc 
Prl!p,-lId Ih.:m'.; IlJ2,58tJ 192.5811 

As:-.el hdJ !'i:\r res!! Ie 1.4(11.8(12 1,401.802 ­
Rl'sinLl.....-<J II.H 

SO\\~biwl' Crl' ..... ~ tll<tlntell<'lnl.'C 346,385 346,385 ­
('om,trlleilOll arqul;..llloHlli" ~apHt11 <.b~cb 4.184458 3J21.756 7506,214 

I lood dam;'lgc fCPilll\ 76,.165 76,465 

Ikbl "'Cft.< I Cl' 2.721.038 25,066 :>,746104 -
Purpt\....es of grantor;., UOIlOfS 131,722 131.722 
I ,;H\ ~nfotrl'ml'lll 2,649,623 2.649.613 -

Committed to 

Snth\an.: l'()(\\cr... iof) I.l)SO 1.980 


lJrban rl'nl'\\al and redl..'\ dopment 345,786 ~45,7X6 


/\s .... igncu to 


(l\!IH.:ral g{Hl'rnment a..::ln IIIL'" I ,328,S70 1328.870 


Publl,' ,al"!l 245,0]0 1,565 266,595 


Pubile \\(lIb 3:'7,469 327,469 


Sport:. en:nl~ anu (,'oth('r rL~(f(:allon 29,183 8,490 37,673 


Unas!-.Igned 7A'J3.631 7,493,631 .. 
TOlal fund h"lanet'S 110~lJ545 2721 038 4184458 6,926,858 24,852,899 ..Tollllli"bilities and fund balances $ Ill)48719 347904'\ 9074321 10 898'P~~ 

... 
/ Itl' IIrl/(',\ III Ihe I,/WilL wI ,lafl'!I1enf-, arc <II/ IIItl',!!,I'U/ part 01 lit", \/O/l'IIWIII. ..
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI .. Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds 

to the Statement of Net Assets 
September 30,2012 .. 

.. .. Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are 
different because: .. 

Fund balances - total governmental funds .. 
Capital assets lIsed in governmental activities are not current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance -
sheet.-
Other long-term assets (special assessments) are not available to pay tor 
current-period expenditures and, there/ore, are deferred in the governmental -
funds balance sheet. -.. Bond issuance costs are amoliized over the life of the bonds on the statement 
of nel assets.-
Long-term liabi lities. including bonds and interest payable, are not due and 
payable in the current period and. theret()re. arc nol repolied in the 
governmental funds balance sheet. 

.. Internal service funds are lIsed to charge the costs of certain activities. such as 
garage services. oftice supplies. and unemployment compensation 10.. individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are 
included in governmental activities ill the statement of net assets (net of.. amollnt allocaled to business-Iype aclivities or $1 L941 ), .. 

Net assets of governmenhtl activities .. 
.. 
.. 
-.. 
.. 
.. 

The l10les 10 flie/inollcial stolemellls are an integral pori o/lhis slalemel1l.--

$ 24,852,899 

106,033,807 

754.025 

914,536 

(47,404589) 

258,124 

$ 85,408,802 

31 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances .. 

Governmental Funds 

For the Fiscal Y car Ended September 30. 2012 
liIIIIiI 

2012 .. 
Ceneral Nonmajor Total 

Debt Obligation Governmental (;overnmental ..
General Service llonds Funds Funds 

Revenues: ...Taxes: 


Property $ 9.694.512 4.618.951 14.313.463 

Sales 14.082.172 14.0S2.172 
 .. 
Franchise 2,462.323 2.462,32.1 
County road 7S0.778 780.778 .­
Motor fuel 19,562 19.562 

I.ieellscs and permits 250.688 250.688 ... 
Inlcrgovernmenlal 289.561 1.223.001 1.512.562 
Charges Ibr services 156.885 156.885 ... 
Fincs and Illricillires 1.021.767 17.398 1.039.165 

Spec illl asscssmcnls 74.475 74.475 
 ..PaYlllcnts in licu or lUxes 155.619 155.619 

Local contrihutions 440 440 
 ....Inlercst 011 il1\ CSlments 60.029 12.922 6.805 42.983 122.739 


Inleresl cosls and damages 140.942 140.942 


M iscellancous 2.708 _ .._-­301.464 

10lal n;\\:I1UCS 29.372.173 ·U09.056 6.805 35.413.277 -.. _ .._--­

Expenditures: 

Currenl: 

(ienern 1 gOI ernmenl 6.190.546 6.19().546 -
Public sa let} 1-1.409.587 942.069 15.351.656 ... 
PlIbl ic \\orb 4.195.414 4.195.414 


Cullure and recreation 2.068.736 11Il-856 2.185.592 
 ..I'eonolllic lkveiopilleill 231.008 231.008 
( Hiler 23.-179 23.479 

Capit,iI ()1I1Ia~ 1.2n002 2.221.002 

Debt sen ice: ­
Principalrelire11ll:nl 53.796 3.628.013 3.681.8()l) III 
Inlerest ami liseal dlllrgcs 17.-130 1.977.-147 1.994.877 

Hom] issllllncc costs . ...._-_.I HUlOn IIO.O()()-_..- _ --- ­ .. 
l,lIal expenditures 26.958.9811 110.000 36.185.383 _ ..._-­

Excess (dencicnc~) of rcn'lIl1CS -
onl' (1II1dn) cXJlenditures (1\96.-104) (103.1 ')5) (2.185.692 ) (772.106) 

Other lillllllcing sourccs (uscs): -
Trallslcrs ill 726.089 876.200 634.118 2.236.407 

TrJl1slcrs oul ( 1.477.336) (212.347) (544.274) 12.233.957) .. ­(ieneral obligation honds issued 4.500.000 ·1.500.000 


Loan proceeds 210.000
-_...._-
-~--


Tolal olhl:r iinancillg sources (uses) (751.247) 876.200 4.287.b53 
 -
Net changc in fllnd balant:cs 1.661,9311 (20.204 ) 4.184.-158 ( 1.885.1\41\) 3.940.344 .. 
Fund balances, October 1,2011 9.3511.607 11.1\12.706 20,912.555 .. 
Fund balances, Septembcr 30, 2012 $ 11.020.545 2.7)J.(138 4.184,458 6.926.858 24.852.899 .. 
The l10les Iv tille/inalleial sta/i!lIIellls uri! WI ill/i!gral pari o/this sla/ell/em. ..32 .. 



." CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Reconci liation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities -

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2012 -
Amounts reported for governmental activities in thc statement of activities are - different because: -
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 

-
Governmental funds rep0l1 capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the- statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current period. - Governmental funds only report the disposal of capital assets to the extent proceeds 
are received ft'om the sale. In the statement of activities, a gain or loss is reported --
 for each disposal. This is the cost of the capitnl assets disposed of. 


- Governmental funds do not report contributed capital assets because they do not 
rrovide current financial resources. However, in the statement of activities the lair 
values of contributed carital asscts is recorded as capital contributions. 

Special assessment revenues related to prior periods reported as revenues in the 
governmental funds are not reported as revenues in the statement of activities.- The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds. while the repayment of the rrincipal of long-term -

-
debt consumes the current Ilnaneial resources of governmental hmds. Nei1her 
transaction, however. has allY effect on net assets. Also. governmental funds rerort 
the eHect or issuance costs, premiums. discounts, and similar items when debt is 
tirst issued. whereas these amounts are deterred and amortized in the statement of 
activities. This amount is the net effect of these di fferences in the treatment of long·- term debt and reklted items. - Some e:-.penses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current linancial resources and. thereli.)fe. are not rerorted as expenditures III - governmcntal funds. .. 
Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of certain activities. ~uch as 
garage services. offiCI: surplies. and unemployment compensalion to individual-
funds. The net earnings of the internal service funds are rep0l1ed with 
govcrnmental activities (net of amount allocated to business-type activities of -
$535). 

3,940,344 

( 1.95:2,989) 

( 112,583) 

864,039 

(75,678) 

(1.03 7.7~ I) 

:228,743 

Change in net assets of governmental activities-- The notes /() fhejlnullciul stulell/enls orc tin illlcgrul 1'01'1 oj'/his slOlcmelll. MAY 2 9 2013 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

- General Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 

Actual Variance with - (Budgetary Final Budget ­
Budgeted Amounts Basis) Positive 

Odginlll Final Amounts (Negative}- Revenues: -
 Taxes: 
Ad valorem $ 9,455,000 9,455,000 9,549,546 94546 

Sales 13,~00,000 13.200,000 1],690,338 490,338 

County road 500,000 500,000 78~,589 ~82589 

Gasoline ~O,OOO 20,000 19,562 (438) 

Payment in lieu of taxes 70,000 70,000 115.()41 45,041 
1ntergovernmental: 

Alcoholic beverage 50,000 50,000 53,950 3,950 

State Fire Insurance Fund 200,000 200.000 214,436 14,436 
Municipal aid ~O.OOO 20,000 ~0,601 601 
Grants 12,00n 12.000 ( 12,000) 

Franchise: 
Mississippi Power Company 2,030,000 2,030,000 1.845,723 ( 184.277) 
At1l1oS Energy 150,000 150,000 117,673 (32,327) 

COl11cast Cable Company 420,000 420.000 457,449 37,449 
East Mississippi Electric Power Assn. 51.743 51,743 

Fines and forfeitures 1,000,000 1,000.000 1.021.767 21.767 
Licenses and permits: 

-

-
-


... 

-
.. 

-
-


Privilege license 
Building and allied permits 

Charges for services: 
Garbage collection 
Recreation 
Enterprise Funds 
Parking fees 
Training fees 

Ollt-of-county tonnage 
M iscellancolls 
1nterest on investments 
Interest costs and damages 

Total revenues 

120,000 
150,000 

1,800.000 
135,000 
645,500 

200.000 
80.000 

30.367.)00 
--~..--. 

120,000 
150.000 

1,800,000 
135.000 
645,500 

200,000 
80,OOn 

142,559 
108,129 

1.828,922 
127,015 
344,750 

5,800 
25,()70 

46,2:r2 
-t09,77 I 

31.180.229 
--~...-,, ­

22559 
(41.871 ) 

28,922 
(7,985) 

(300,750) 

5.800 
25.(J70 
4().232 

209.771 
{ 18.986) 

-
-

Expenditures: 

General government: 
Personnel services 1,186,950 1.186,950 1,168.540 18.410 
Supplies and expenses 816.439 816.43() 747.115 69,324 
Capital outlay 5,950 5,950 3.844 2,10() 
Transfers and other charges 1.618,000 1,618,000 948,6.38 -
-
 Total general government 3,627,339 2.868.137 

(( 'ol1lil1l1ed) 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
General Fund .. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 
 .. 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 .­
Actual Variance with ..(8udgetary Final 8udget­

8udgeted Amounts 8asis) Positive 
Ori~inal Final Amounts (Ne~ative) 

EXI}enditures (continued): -
.. ....Finance and records: 


Personnel services $ 1,272,750 1,272,750 1,104,419 168,331 

Supplies and expenses 1,792517 1,792,517 1,731,478 61.039 

Capital outlay 117,070 117,070 98,348 18,722 
 ..
Transfers and other charges 35,000 35,000 35,000 -Total finance and records 3,217,337 3,217,337 2,969,245 248,092 

Community development: -Personnel serviccs 884,350 904,350 881,623 22,727 
Supplics and cxpcnses 
Capital outlay 
Transfers and other charges 

211,908 
42,704 

604,600 

183,408 
42,704 

613,100 

150,153 
38,814 

519,301 

33,255 
3,890 

93,799 

.. .. 
Total community development 

Parks and recreation: 

1,743,562 1,743,562 1.589,891 1 I .. 
Personnel services 
Supplies and expenses 

1,323,400 
706.086 

1,330,400 
699,086 

1.283,201 
697,562 

47,199 
1,524 

.. 
Capital outlay 140,000 140,000 99,387 40,613 -Transfers and other charges 

Total parks and recreation 

312.000 

2,481,486 

312,000 

2,481,486 2.298,669 

93,481 

17 .. 
Public works: 

Persollnel services 
Supplies and expenses 
Capital outlay 
Transfers and other charges 

3,266,450 
1,278,648 

304,424 
2,215,000 

3.266,450 
1,278.648 

304.424 
l,2IS,00n 

2,988,476 
1.237,273 

304,371 
1,965,760 

277.974 
41,375 

53 
249,240 

.. .. 
-Total public works 

Police: 

_(!,49S_,880 568,642- ...~""".------ .. 
Personnel services 5,664,350 5,787,350 5,743,249 44,101 -Supplies and expenses 
Capital outlay 
Transfcrs and other charges 

Total police 

1,981,879 
378,500 

35,000 

8~OS9,729 

1.858,879 
378,500 

35,000 

8,059,729 

1.779.675 
21,500 
34,856 

7,579,280 

79.204 
357,000 

44 

480,449 

.. .. 
Fire: .. 

Personnel services 5,837,955 5,837,955 5,670,571 167,384 

Supplies and expenses 842,170 842,170 736.402 105,768 
 .. 
Capital outlay 220,900 220,900 218,221 2,679 

Transfers and other charges 55,000 55,000 
 .. 

Total fire 6,956,025 6,956,025 6,679,400 276,625 .. 
(( 'onlinlled) ..
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Page 3 of 3 ... CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI .. General Fund 

.. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in FlInd Balances ­
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 .. 

-
Actunl Vnrinllce with 

(Budgetary Final Budget ­
Budgeted Amounts Basis) Positive 

Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Expenditures (continued): 
Homeland Security: ... 

Personnel serv ices $ 330,900 330,900 213,609 117.291 
Supplies and expenses 219,485 219,485 164,814 54,671 
Capital outlay 25.000 10,249 14.751 
Transfers and other charges 2,000... 

Total homeland security 577,385 ..-l8J,&}~
~------------

Arts District Parking Garage: 

Personnel services 20,825 20,825 20.458 367... 
Supplies and expenses 93,126 93,126 60.449 32.677 
Capital outlay _.._6,000 __ 6,000 __1,000 _._5,OOQ... 

Total arts district parking garage 119,951 119,951 81,907 _ 38,044 

.. 


... 

-

.. 

... 
.. 
.. 

-
.. 

-
-
-
-
.. 

-

-


Totn! expenditures 33.847336 33.847,336 30,951,08.L 2.896,255
- ..~~.-~~. 

---~ 

Net change in fUlld bnlllllces $ 229.148 

Fund bnlances, October 1,2011 ~.405,9~9 

Fund balances, September 30, 2012 S; 9,635,077 

\/FD 

(he IlOles 10 Ihefimlncial sla/ell/enls (Ire 1111 illlexml parI (il/his slalemenl MAY 2 9 2013 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 


September 30.2012 
 ..Governmental 
Business-type Activities - Enter[!rise Funtls Activities ­

Waste Nonmlljor Total Internlll .. 
Wllter Collection Entel'prise Enterprise Service 


& Sewer & Disposal Funds Funtls Funtls 


Current assets: 
Cash anu cash equivaknls $ 3,321 161 644.723 262,223 4,22&, \07 211,871 .. ­I<estnclcd cash, cash eqlllvalcnts 


and investments: 

Customer derosits 839,261 &39,261 
 .. 
Rcvellue Bond Construction Funds 1571.9&1 1,571,981 

Other Construction Funds 664.467 664,467 
 ..Revenue Bond Debt Service Account 4.232.888 4,232,888 


Receivables: 

Accounts 1,265,978 186,537 1,452515 
 .. 

Less allowance lor uncollectible;; (205,452) 	 (205,452) 
Illtergovcmlllental 164.848 6.047 170,&95 6.617 


Due from other funds lLI86 8,186 410.763 

Due Ihllll comroncnt units 407 

Invcntor) 457.&73 39,546 497.419 53.302 

Prepaid items 


Total current assets 839.446 309,9()8 13.494,05X 682.960- ..---	 -_..­

l\	uncurrc nt lls~ets: 
Restricted cash. cash equivalent> 

and Illvcstmen[s: 

Revcnuc Bond Cushion Account 731.156 731,156 

l<cvclluc 130nd ('ol1tingcnt Acwul1t 78.283 78.2!G 

Revenue Bonu Depreciation Account 


IotaI restm:lcu cash. cash .. 
equivaients and invc:stlm:nh 

Ikli:rrcd dwrgcs 	 274,264 ..Capilal a,scts' 
I.and 247787 247.787 

Right of\\ays .10.610 30,61 () 

Buildlllgs 1 26.62!i 1 26.62!i 

Watcr allll sewer system 96.857.34!i 96.&57.348 

Improvements other [ilan buildings 98.924 9&.924 

Mw.:hmcr) .lIlU equipment 3.·177.437 19.626 434.XSO 3.931,913 
 ..Construction in pmgrc;;s -_....-


Towl capital assets 104...102.953 19,626 660A02 105,082,9!i1 
 ..Less uccul1lulated depreciatioll (69.157,027) (69,751,4&8) 


Capital asscb (I)<:t or 
 ..accuillulated depreciation) \.963 83,604 35,331,493 

Totlll noncurrent assets 36,407,912 1.963 !i3,604 36,493,479 

Totlll assets 

_ ..._­

_841,4()9 49,9&7,537 6!i2.960 .. 
(( 'ol1lil1ued) .. ..
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Statem~nl ofNd Assets 


Proprietary Funds 


September 30. 2012 


- Governmental 

Business-In)\, Ac:tivities - .:nterprise Funds Activities ­

- Waste Nonmajor Total Inlermll 

Water Collection Enterprise Enterprise SCI'Vice 

& Se\~cr & [)isJlosal ~ Funds Funds 

LIABILITIES -- Current liabilities: 

!\<.:wunts payabJ..: $ 622JlMl 300A37 32,.147 95·~.952 412Jl95 

Liahilities payahle from r..:slriLled assels:- Cuslomer lkposils !(J'J.26I 839261 

A~eollilis payahk 162, I g9 162.189 

R<.:VCIllIC honds payahle 711,3XO 74U80- Prom issor} loans 1.220.368 1.220,368 

Int<.:resl payahle 1l)6,XI) I 196.801 

J\<.:<.:rucd liahiliti.:s: -- Payroll IS7.1;:1') 7,654 40,144 204.837 

('ompcnsatcd ahsences 6UQ8 61,828 

- Sales la.\ 9.-177 2.34R 1 U\25 
Due 10 olhcr funds 4WX54 :;0 !no 460,774 
Ikl0rred n:lcnll<.: j()rward inVl:sh:d IllllUS J7.3lJ(} 37,390 

Currcnt portion of capital leases XI.7~7 


Tntal curren/liabilities 


i\oncurrcnt liabili/ies: 

Ikli:lTcd rc\t~l1l1C f(mqml inn.'stnl funds 76.4')() 76.490 
COlllpcnsal<;d abs,I1<:,s 125.5.10 125.'i30 

i<ClcIHIC bonds payahle (nCI "I' ueli:rreu 
rclllIHling <.:osls oi''b43A48) 


l'wllllssnry loans (nd 0 f dderrcd 


rL'illiltiing <.:OSls of $61 /)3.1) 


('apHal leases payahle -
Tntal noncunent lillbili/ics- TO/lIlliabilitics 

i\ET \SSETS 

111\ <'slcd 111 capital asse'tS. nel or n;lat.:d d.:bt 1.%3 X2.300 
i<cstricted I()f 

D<.:bt s<'nice .1():>3.XI)9 .1.9:>3,XII9 
Cnpil,,1 proiceb 7.n.658 733.651\ -

'nrestricti.'li 


Total lie/assets 
-
Reconciliation /0 gonrnmcnl-widc sla/emcnt of net assets: -

i\djthtlncnllo rclkct the consolidation ol'intcrn:rl senic.: IllllLis 

activilles related 10 enterprise Illilds 
-

"'let assels of husincss-t~pc Ilc:lh'i!ics $ --
I'll<' Iwles la Ihe /il/(/II(,IIII slalemellls ilrt' 1111 /II/egrol parI of IIliS s/ole/lWI/I --

39--
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CITY OF MERIOI"':"i, MISSISSIPPI 

Statement of Rcvcllucs. Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Asscts -
Proprietary Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Emlcd Septcmber 30. 2012 -
Govcrnmental -

Business·type Activities - .:nter~rise Funds Activities 

Waslt' Nonmajor Total Internal 

Watu Collection Enterprise Enterprise Sen ire 

& Sewer & Oi slloslll Fnnds I'unds Funds- OpenHing rennues: 

Charg", Ii)r sales and scrvices: 

Water ,aks $ 6.779.283 6.779.283 

Sc\\er charges 5.899.542 5.899.542 

Tap I\;cs 35.726 35,726 - Garhage collection lees I.R22.092 1.822.092 

()lI!-ol~c()lIll!Y IOlll1ag.: 4x.727 4R.727 

Mcmhcrsillp, 57.936 57.936 

- (irccn t\;es 69.009 69,009 

Carl rental (12.S07 62.R07 

C ollcessiol1s 139.882 t 39.882 

In!enwl service charges 3.1\18.510- Rental il1wllle 64.325 64.325 

M isccllam:ous 472.80) ... 1.154 -l73.95') 108.305 
~- ~-~-~-.--- ---.-­... 

lowl opefil!ing relienuc.s l'J!I,J56 1.870.819 395.113 15.453.288 H.J7.315 
~~~- -~~ ---...~ - .. ...- --.. 

Operating exllen,,'s: - f)ersotlnel Stcn 11'C~ 3 . .l86.016 :':'1.30-1 329.1-14 3.770.'1(,", 

Supplies and malerial, 676,363 292 1.ll).257 X15.912 ",X3.tn 

Renl and IIlililles 1.164AX5 414 65.300 UJO.I 'N -
(Jpcral iOI1. lIJ:1inh:ll~lIl,e. and repairs 741,758 2.447 IHO.937 925.1"'2 52n67- (iaroagl.: di~IH'I:-;aJ :-.cn it,;t.,'s IX 14.72.' UiI4,725 

I kprc,lllllon and :llllorti/alion .L6·10.2Ili 12.212 3.652.430- ('Iaims paid 2-'J86858 

Mi,eellan<,olls I 575.!1(jl) __J.j{J~ IIX.740 1696.564--_..- - ... ..­~~-~-

I"o!al opcratlng ":'pens<" 11.1 i\3.X49 1.X75.997 845590 13.'10'.436 3.993.tS03- Operatinl-: income (Inss) _J). 17l1.i _\450=-477) 1.547.8:;2 ~.4Ji!i)
"~--...~~~... 

"nllt)penllin~ n'YellllCS inpclIscs): 
Ad \ alon:m la,e, J'l.6-1 \ 19,643 
1111<,resl in,ollle 97.2(,7 4.15-1 11\4 102.605 ()')4 

Inkr.:sl ",pelbl: (713.-1-15 ) (li' ) (713.5.10 ) 

{ialll on di~posal o,'l.2apHal as:-.~l 39.778 J9.77'1l 
-.--.~"~~ --~--

Il)lallHHH'pcmling r~\~IHIl':-' (t:'pl.:fbe-;) (576::l11Q) ... 43.797 IJ)9') -.l511.504 ) <)94 - ~~-- ~---~-.' -------

IIlCflme (lms) heron' Cll11ital 

con tl"iblltioll.s :lIld trallsft'r, .18.619 ..J44 l)..l TIi.) 1.016.J4X _J4'i4'1i) 

(·llllital cnntrihutiolls and transftTs: - (·apilal cOlllri\JIIII(111S 1.31-1.4(1.> 1.314.46., 

I"r;lIlskrs 111 I09.60() 46'J.45() 579.0'10 6-1.000 
rransl\;rs (lUi ~1.50()l ~)(i()) ~(64'i.5001 

.--~--
TOlal cupllal ,Olllrihuli(1lb and transkr., iin.5h.l _..J.:l.:!Jlt!.!l.) 4(,9..\50 1.24X.1I13 64.0()O 

~-- --.~- ~~~-- Chanl?,e illlH'tasset, 2.~.j'l.(17(l (5JH I) 20.072 2,264.361 1&506 

'\rl assrt,. Octnht", 1.2011 27.lJ25.()OI 53ii.6-1<J 2<)(>327 251.55'1 ...~~~.-.._---­ ~------ ~-'~~ -
"e! assels. September 30.2012 $- l{t'COIll'iliatioll to gonl'l1lll flit-wide sla tement nf activities: 

.'\djusill1elll 10 r.:lkel Ih~ consolidation of internal ,cn ICC funds -
acli, itics rdated 10 enterprise funds 535 

('hal1l!c in 111'1 asscts of business-Iype activities -
'he IWles 10 Ihe jll1(1m. /OI.";ftl/(!lIu!llls art' (111 liJlegral parI (~llllIS S/(J/CJJJ(,Ilf. -

41--
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
 .. 
Statement of Cash Flows 


Proprietary Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 
 .. ..Governmental 

Husiness-ty~e Activities • Enter~risc Funds Activities 

Water 
& Sewer 

Wasil.' 
(:oliection 

& Dis(!osal 

Nonmajor 

Entel'prise 
Funds 

Total 
Entcl'prise 

Funds 

Inlernal 

Service 
Funds 

lilt 

... 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts thJlll clistomers and lIsers 
Pnyments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

$ 13.207.498 
0.737.345) 
(3.399.168) 

1.917.116 
( 1.804.0:m 

400.260 
(515.282) 
(329.961 ) 

15.524.874 
(6.056.664) 
0.7li4.222l 

4.167.670 
(4.187.086 ) 

.. .. 
Net cash provided by (used in) 

operating activities 6J)70.985 57.986 (444.983) 5.683.988 (19.416) .. 
('ash nows from noncapitallinaneing activities: 

Ad valorem taxes received 39.M3 39.643 
T ranslers to other lunds (601.500) (44.000 ) (645.500) 
TranstCrs trom other Ilmus 109.600 469.450 .._ ....._-­

-"---~ 

Net cash provided by (used in) 


noncapital tinancing acthitics """"" (49!,900) 469.450 __ (26.807) M.OO() 


CllSh 110\\S from capitlliand related .. 
tinllncing activities: 

Capital contributiolls 1.037.52:' 1.037.52:' ..Proceeds Ihlln sak or capilal a~sc\s 4Ul92 41.092 

Acquisition and ~onstrllction of capital assets (5.755.633) (6.806) (5.762.439) 

Proceeds frolll promissory notes 1.608.",23 1.601U2:l 
 .. 
Paymcnts on long-knn debt: 


Revenuc honds (715.1)00) (715 '()OO) 
 .. 
I'rol11issor) notes ( 1.215.000 I ( 1.215.0()O) 


Capital lease payments (79.904) (262) (80.166) 
 .. 
Interest paid on rcyellllC bonds and other ddll (85) 


:\1'1 cash used in capitallllld 
 .. 
related limlncing activities (5.816.631 ) (7.153) ~,823.7R4)-._._-,-- ­ ..('ash nows from innsting acth ities ­

Interest recch"cd ~. 56.407 ___U5-1 -~ ()1.745 994 

'\et int'rease (decrease) in cash and cash eqnhalents (I X1.139) 57.7R3 18.498 ( 104.858) 45.S7li 

("ash and cash equivalents, September 30,2011 .. 
(including $7,885,858 in restricted accounlsj 10.210.906 586.940 IU)41.571 

---~ ..('ash and cash equivalents, September 30,2012 
(including S6,708.606 in restricted accounts) $ 211.871 .. 

I( 'onlllJlIed} .. 

.. ..42 .. 
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... Page 2 of2 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI ... Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30. 2012-... 

Governmental... 
Business-tYile Acthities Enterprise Funds Activities ­

Waste Nonmajor Total Internlll... 
Water ( 'ollection Enterprise Enterprise Senicc 

& Sc\\er & llis[mslIl Funds Funds Funds... 
Reconciliation of operllting income (loss) to net 


cllsh pro\'h.led by (used in) operating acthities:
- Operating inco1llc (loss) ~ 2.00:1.507 (46.4X1\) 
-~~,,--- Aujustmcnts to reconcile operating incom.: (loss) to 

net cash provideu b) (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation und amortization 3.640,211\ 12.212 3.652,430... 
Changes in assdS unu liahilities: 

Accounts reccivahle (50,125) 6.6711 1.965 ( 41.482) ... Receivahles - miscellaneous 4.223 
Due from other 11.lI1ds 542 39.619 40.161 213.608 
Due from componcnt un its 3.1!l2 3.1 R2 2.525 - Inventory (66.S!)O) 6,!)26 (59.664) (2.0')2 ) 

Prepaid items (2.111 ) (1St) 0.365 )- Ac!.:ollllts pa) able IH474 16.607 ( IR.2(3) 141.!l7!\ ( 191.192) 

l\ccJ'u!.:J liaoilitics ( L\,O!lO) 211 (RM) (13.733)- Customcr dcp<bits 6'U25 69.725 

Due to oth!.:r runds 3-t)~525 4() 346.004 
'''---­- lotal adjustmenb .. 63.164 

",,-_...- ""--
4.1;'6.136 

..~-
n.onU)67An 5,494- -~~,~ -..----.~- ~~.-..­

Net cash providell hy (used ill) 


Ollcrllting activities $ 
- !\oncash in\"esting, capital, and tinllncing ac!hitics: ... Alllorti/,atioll or uelerred revenue liJrward 
illl ested runus ... 

Increasc in 1l1ir vahlc of imcstlllcnts ... 
Nom:ash capilal ":lliltrihutions-

Walcr and selICI' system infrastructure - contributed o} dCH:iopers ... 
-... 
--... MAY 292013 

file 1101l'S 10 liJl'jil1<1J1ciu/ SIU/l'lIlel/lS {Ire 11/1 ill/I'gru/ /l(irI v/II/IS S/d/eli/ell/,-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 
Fiduciary Funds 

September 30, 2012 .. .. 
-.. .. 

Agency ..Funds 
ASSETS -

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.480.953 .. MIll 
Intergovernmental receivables ­

County 153,232 

MIllTotal assets $ 1.634,185 .. 
LIABILITIES .. 

Intergovernmental payables: ..Schools $ 1.347.223 

PERS 209,797 ..
State 28,419 

Employee insurance withheld 48.746 .. ..Total liabilities $ 185 .. .. 
... 
.. lilt 

.. .. .. 

... 
The notes to the jinancial stalements are an inlegral part ()lthis statemenl. .. ..

44 ... 
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.. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI .. 
 Statement of Net Assets 


.. 
 Component Units 

September 30, 2012 


Meridian Nonmajor Total 
Airport Component Component.. Authority Cnits Units 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.]56,233 4311 1,360.544 -.. 
 Receivables: 

Accounts 817,416 817,416 .. Intergovernmental: 

Federal 253,459 253,459 

State 44,007 4,329 48,336 

Inventory 350,197 350.197 

Prepaid items 47.659 47.659- Restricted assets - cash 111,205 111,205 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 2,427,975 2,427,975 

Construction in progress 3,086,686 3,086.686 - Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): .. Buildings 8.901,628 8.901,628 .. Improvements other than buildings 16,180,980 16.180,980 

~1achiner) and cquipment 1,088,227 844 1,089,071 .. Total assets 34,665,6Tl ~4.675.156 .. LI AHI LlTi ES 

Bank overdrati 17 17- Accounls payable 1.201.716 14,261 l.215.977 
i\ccrued liabilitics 190,564 190564 - Linearned l'e\enue 3.311 3.~ 11.. Noncurrcnt liabiiilie,,: .. ]\;ote payable due within one year 231,007 ],756 234.763 

i\ole payabk due in more than one ycm I I 126 1.155.983
" 7 

Tohliliabilitil.'s 2.770,724 2.800,615 -.. 
NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets. net of related debt 31,685.496 844 31.686.140 -
Restricted for capital projects 111,205 111,205 
Unrestricted 98,247 (21,251) 76,996 -

Total net llssets $ J I ,894,948 --- The nole.\ to Ihe,linuncial shltelllen/s are un infc!g}'uj parI o/'lhis s/afc!fI1el1l . .. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Statement of Activities 

Component Units 


for the Fiseal Year Ended September 30. 2012 
 .. 

.. 


Net (Expense) Revenue 
Program Revenues and Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Meridian Nonmajor 
Charges for Crlmts and Grants and Airport Component .. 

Functions/Programs f:xpenscs Contributions Contributions A !!thority II nits Tota I 

Component units: 
Meridlall Alrporl AUlilorJly $ 13015.737 11.976.881 26,638 4,190,645 3,178,427 3.178.427 ..
Not1major cOlllponclllllllilS ( 189,479) . (189,479) 

.~-- .. 
Total component units S 13,43l).O58 12.002,389 234,972 4,190,645 3,178.427 ( 18l),479) 2,988.948 

General revenues ­
1 nleresl I11COI11C 
 .. 

(,hunge in net assets .. 
i'ljellissels, October 1,2011, as p"evio!!sly reported 28.5l)3.326 169.032 28,762.358 

Prior period ad,juslment 116,6-17 116.6-17 .. 
169.032 28,879005'lei assets, Oclobcr r. 2011, as restated .. 

31.874.541NcilIsscts (deficit), September 30, 2(H2 

.. 


.. 
.. .. .. .. .. .. 
1111: noles 10 Ille/inal1cI(I/slolellleIllS (Ire all II1legm/ pori of IIliS s/(Ilelllcnl. .. ..
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2012 

-.. (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Reporting Entitv 

... The City of Meridian, Mississippi ('"City") is a municipal corporation governed 
by an elected mayor and a five-member council. It provides the following ... 

-
services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire), highways and 
streets, sanitation, health and social services, culture and recreation, public 
improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of .. 	 America, the accompanying financial statements present the City (the primary 
government) and its component units, entities for which the City is considered to 
be financially accountable. -
Government Accounting Standards Board (,-GASS'") has set forth criteria to be 
considered in determining financial accountability. "Financial accountability" is 
the benchmark f()r determining which organizations are component units of a 
primary government. Financial accountability exists when an organization is 
fiscally dependent on a primary government. or when a primary government has - appointed a voting majority 	 of the governing body of a legally separate.. .. organization and (I) is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a 
potential for the organization to provide specific financial bene tits to, or impose 

.. specific linancial burdens on, the primary government. GASB provides 
additional guidance to determine whether certain organizations for which the 
primary government is not 	 financially accountable should be reported as .. 	 component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with 
the primary government. Generally. it requires reporting. as discretely presented .. 	 component units, organizations that raise and hold economic resources lor the 
direct benefit of the primary government. 

Discrctcl) presented component units arc reported in a separate column in the.. 	 governillent-\\ ide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate 
from the City. The component units discussed below are included in the City's .. 

- reporting entity because or the signilicam:e of their operational or financial 
relationships with the City. 

.. 	 Blended Component Unit-

Meridian Redevelopment Agency -
Meridian Redevelopment Agency ("the Agency") was established by the City on.. 
May 4, 20 I0, in accordance with Title 43, Chapter 35, Article I of the Mississippi 
Code of 1972 to serve as the City's urban renewal and redevelopment agency . ... 
The members of the Agency's live-member governing Board of directors are 
appointed by the City's Mayor with the consent of the City Council. 

... 	 47 

-



.. 

CITY 01<' MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 


(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) ... 
(a) Reporting Entity (Continued) .. 

Major Discretely Presented Component Unit­ -
Meridian Airport Authority 

Meridian Airport Authority ("MAA .,) was established by the City on March 17, 
1992, in accordance with Title 61, Chapter 3, Article V of the Mississippi Code of ­
1972 to manage the local airport facilities within the City's jurisdiction. MAA 
has a five-member Board appointed by the City's Mayor and approved by the 
City Council. Also, the City has the ability to impose its will upon MAA because 
it has reserved the right to uililaterally abolish MAA at its discretion. ­.. 
Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Meridian Transportation Commission 

Meridian Transportation Commission ("MTC") was created by the City on 
November 7, 1972. in accordance with Title 21, Chapter 27, Article 13 of the 
Mississippi Code of 1972 to manage the local mass transit system of the City and .. 
to provide public transportation systems and tacilities. MTC has a five-member 
board appointed by the City's Mayor and approved by the City Council. members .. 
of which may be removed at the wi II of the City. The City finances a signiticant 
portion of MTCs annual operations; therefore, MTC is considered financially 
dependent on the City. Effective February 29, 2012. MTCs board elected to 
discontinue all transportation services. All vehicles were transferred to the 
Mississippi Department ofTranspol1ation. 

Meridian and Bonita Lakes Development Authority .. 
Meridian and Bonita Lakes Development Authority ("MBLDA ") was created by 
resolution of the City Council on August 6, 1991. As such, it is a political 
subdivision for the purpose of constructing or leasing a convention center and/or .. 
coliseum facility and of developing and operating any improvements, land or ..structure and commercial activities compatible with a sllstained and viable 
tourism industry within the City of Meridian. the County of Lauderdale or the ..general geographic region. MBLDA has a nine-member board appointed by the 
City'S Mayor and approved by the City Council. Also, the City has the ability to .. 
impose its will lipan MBLDA because it has reserved the right to unilaterally 
abolish MBLDA at its discretion. 

MAA and MTC have September 30 year ends, whereas MBLDA has a December 
31 year end. ..48 .. 
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.. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI .. 
 Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 .. 

.. 
(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) .. 

(a) Reporting Entity (Continued) .. 
Complete financial statements for each of the individual component units may be.. obtained at the entities' adm in istrative offices as follows: .. 

.. Meridian Airport Authority IYkridian Transportation Commission 
281 I Highway 11 South 1901 Front Street 
Meridian, Mississippi Meridian, Mississippi .. 

- Meridian and Bonita Lakes 
Development Authority 

723 23 rd A venue .. Meridian, Mississippi 

Related Organizations: -
With approval orthe City CoullciL the City's Mayor is responsible f()r appointing -
a voting majority of members to the boards and comm issiolls I isted below. The 
City also makes other types of ministerial approvals ltw these organizations: -- however, the City's accountability for these organizations does not e:-.tend beyond 

making the appointments or approvals . 
.. 

Following is a list orrelated organizations: - • Building Code Board of Adjustments and Appeals/Board of Adjustments.. and Appeals lor Elimination and Repair of Unsate Buildings .. • Civil Service Commission 

• Election Commission .. • Electrical Examining Board 
• Historic Preservation COllll11 ission.. • Housing Authority of the City of Meridian 
• Iiousing Board of Adjustments and Appeals 
• Mechanical Board -.. 
 • Trustees of Meridian Community Colkge District 

• Trustees of Meridian Munic ipal Separate School District 

- • Meridian Planning Commission 
• Meridian Public Improvement Corporation ... • The Meridian Railroad Museum Advisory Board 
• Taxicab Advisory Board - • Tree Commission 

-
-
-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 


(1) 	 Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(b) 	 Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 

statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the non fiduciary 

activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental .. 

activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 

are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant .. 

extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is 

reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the .. 

primary government is financially accountable. 


The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses 

of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses 
 -
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. 
Program revenues include (I) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
lise, or directly benefit from goods. services. or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requircments of a particular function or scgment. Taxes 
and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported ­
instead as general revenues. .. 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. proprietary .. 
funds. and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the ..government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and 
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund ..
1i nanc ial statements. .. 

(c) 	 Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 

Presentation 
 .. 
The government-wide financial statements are reported lIsing the economic 
resources measurement thcus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the ­
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. (Agency funds, 
however, do not have a measurement focus since they do not report cquity or 
present an operating statement reporting changes in equity.) Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as -
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. -.. ..
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 CITY OF MERlDIAN, MISSISSIPPI - Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 -- (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) - (c) 	 Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation (Continued) -
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial -
resources measurement focLls and the modified accrual basis of accounting . .. 

-
-

Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and avai lab Ie. 
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enoLlgh thereatler to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected - within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred. as under accrual accounting. However. debt 
service expenditures. as \\'e11 as expenditures related to compensated absences and ... claims and judgments. are recorded only when payment is due. Expenditure­
driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have ... been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 

... Property taxes, sales and liquor tax\.:s. t,'anchise tees. licenses and interest 
associated with the current fiscal p\.:riod are all considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current tiscal period. -
Only the portion of spe\.:ial ass\.:ssillents receivable due within the current fiscal - period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current tiscal 

.- period. AII other revenue items are considered to be measurable and avai lable 
only when cash is received by the City. - The City reports the fl)lImving major governmental tll11ds:... 

The genernl fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts ft)r all... financial resources of th\.: general government. except those required to be 
accounted t()f in another Ilrnd .. ­
The debt service fund accounts ft)!, the resources accumulated and payments ... 
made for principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of 
governmental funds. -... 	 The 2012 General Obligation Bonds fund accounts for bond proceeds to be 
lIsed for street paving projects throughollt the City . ... 

. ­

- MAY 29 2013 . ­
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30,2012 


(1) 	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) .. 
(c) 	 Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 


Presentation (Continued) 


The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The water and sewer fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer 
services to residents of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, .. 
operations and maintenance of the water and sewer system, and billing and 
collection activities. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources .. 
for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal and interest for water and ..sewer debt. ..
The waste collection and disposal fund accounts for operations of solid 
waste collection and disposal services. .. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

The special revenue fund accounts for specific revenue sources that are .. 

legally restricted to expenditures 1'01' public safety, culture and recreation. and 

economic development. Revenue sources lor this fund are provided mainly 

from grants and contributions and rrom narcotic related t(]rfeitures. 
 .. 
The internal service funds which account luI' the garage and fuel supply. ..ot11ce supply. health and lite insurance. and unemployment compensation 
provided to departments ofthe City and to other governmental units on a cost 
reimbursement basis, .. 
The agency funds which account lor dedicated property tax assessments and 
collections forwarded to the Public Employees' Retirement System ("PERS"), 
Meridian Community College. and Meridian Separate School District; state ­
fines and fees collected by the City Municipal Court for the State of .. 
Mississippi; and additional amounts withheld fl'om employees' pay for the 
purpose of offsetting potential large future rate increases on hospital insurance -premiums. These resources are held by the City in a purely custodial capacity 
(assets equal liabilities). Agency funds involve only the receipt. temporary -investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources (property collections. fines 

II1II
and tees, and employee withholdings) to individuals, organizations. or other 
governments. --
-
..
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.. .. .. .. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 .. 
.. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) .. 
(c) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement.. Presentation (Continued) .. .. Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to 

December I, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not .. conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector .. guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this 
same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector ... guidance . 

.. ... The accompanying financial statements reflect the elimination of interfund 
activity with the exception of the charges to the City's proprietary funds. These 
amounts are shown on the statement of net assets as internal balances . .. Amounts reported as program revenues include (I) charges to customers or .. applicants lor goods, services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and 
contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions. including special 
assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues... 
rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes . ... 

.. 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating.. items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result ii'om providing services 
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund"s.. principal ongoing operations. All other revenues and expenses are reported as 
nonoperati ng. 

.. 
 (d) Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 


The preparation of financ ia I statements in con form ity with accollnti ng princi pies ... 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make .. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial.. statements and the reported amounts 01' revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates . .. .. .. .. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 


(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposit accounts, petty cash, and 
certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three months or less from the 
date of acqu isition. .. 
State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, State 
of Mississippi, or of any county or municipality of the State of Mississippi. 

Investments are stated at cost, plus accrued interest, or amortized cost (which 
approximates fair value) since the investment portfolio is comprised of money 
market investments with an original maturity of one year or less and debt 
securities held under forward interest contracts which relieve the City of all 
market risk. On certain water and sewer reserve funds, the City received a lump­
sum payment in exchange for future interest earnings and market appreciation or 
depreciation on the securities held under the forward interest contracts. The 
lump-sum payment has been deferred and will be recognized in earnings over the 
Jite of the securities under the forward interest contract using the interest method. 
Investments are represented by certificates of deposit and U. S. Government 
securities, some of which are subject to repurchase agreements. 

(I) Receivables and Pavables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other 
funds" (i.e .. the current portion or interfund loans) or "advances to/tl'om other ..
funds" (i .e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). AII other outstand ing 

balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds". Any residual .. 

balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type 

activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal .. 

balances". 


AII accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts, 

where applicable. This allowance is based on the average write-offs over the past 

ten years. 


Property taxes attach as an enforcement I ien on property as of January I. Taxes 

are levied in September of the prior year and are payable in three installments on 

February I (1/2), May I (114), and August I (1/4). Taxes are considered past due 

after February I, at which time the applicable property is subject to penalties and 

interest. Property with delinquent assessments is sold at a public sale each 

August. .. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
.. 
 Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2012 .. 
.. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) .. 
(f) Receivables and Payables (Continued) .. 

The City has an agreement with Lauderdale County pursuant to which the tax .... 
.. collector of Lauderdale County has assumed the duty and responsibility for billing 

and collecting all City and Meridian Municipal Separate School District ad 

.. valorem taxes including, but not limited to, all taxes on real property, personal 
property, public uti lities property and special taxes and assessments assessed by 
the City. The County disburses collections due the City and Meridian Separate .. School District to the City and the City disburses the funds due the Meridian 
Separate School District to the District. 

.... 

.... The City recognizes tax revenues upon collection from the county tax collector. 

In addition, the City makes an accrual for amounts collected by the county tax 

collector as of September 30 and remitted to the City within 30 days atter year­


.. .... end . 

.. 
 The tax rate of the City is expressed in terms of mills (ten mills equal one cent). 

For the year ended September 30, 2012, the City's 2012 combined tax rate for 


.. general governml'ntal services and other municipal purposes was 118.15 or 

$1 18.15 per $1.000 of assessed valuation. expressed as follows: 


Mills- Increase.. I)escription 2012 2011 (Decrease) 

.. 
.. General 28.72 29.65 (.93) 

Sol id waste fund .95 1.30 (.35) 


.. 
 Fire and police disability retirement 

fund (closed) 4.93 4.48 .45 


General municipal retirement 
1'1.1 nd (c losed) 3.00 3.00.... 

Debt serv ice (genera 1 bonds and interest) 13.24 12.41 .83 
Meridian Sl'parate School District 60.31 60.51 (.20).... 
Meridian Community College 7.00 7.00 ... 

Total mills _LL8~lj JJJt15- (g) Inventories and Prepaid Items .... .. .. 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in/tirst-otlt 
("FIFO") method. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual 
inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased . 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2012 


(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(g) Inventories and Prepaid Items (Continued) 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial 
statements. .. 

(h) Assets Held for Resale .. 
Property acquired through tax forfeitures and property acquired for the purpose of 
redevelopment and sale, are recognized as assets and stated at the lower of cost or 
net realizable value and are offset by a nonspendable fund balance. Upon final .. 
disposition or a decline in the value of the property, gain or loss is charged or 
credited to operations. 

(i) Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of the City's enterprise fund water and sewer revenue bonds, as 
well as certain resources set aside tor their repayment are classified as restricted 
assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond 
covenants. Revenues collected from operations of the system are transferred to 
various accounts established pursuant to the revenue bond ordinance. Certain 
other assets are classified as restricted because their use is limited by parties 
external to the City, including citizens. grantors. other governments, and courts. 
Restrictions may also be imposed by laws through constitutional provisions or 
legally enforceable enabling legislation. 

The "revenue bond operation and maintenance" account receives suftlcient 
amounts to provide fix the payment of current expenses to be paid each month. 
plus any prior Illonth deficiencies. The "revenue bond construction" accounts are 
lIsed to report those proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted tor use 
in construction. The "revenue bond current debt service" account is lIsed to 
segregate resources accuillulated li)r debt service payments over the next twelve 
Illonths. The "revenue bond cllsh ion" account is used to report resources set aside .. 
to make up potential futurc deficiencies in the revenue bond current debt service 
account. The "revenuc bond contingenC account is used to report resources set 
aside to pay tor unforeseen contingencies arising from the operation and 
maintenance of the system, including thc construction of reasonable and proper 
improvements. betterments and extensions, upon written certification of the .. 

-
-

engineers. The "revenue bond depreciation" account is lIsed to report resources 
set aside to pay tor replacing sllch parts of the system as may need replaceillent in 
order to keep the system operating in an economical and efficient manner. upon 
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 CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2012 

-- (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) - (i) Restricted Assets (Continued) .. 
- written certitlcation of the engineers. Any surplus remaining after all deposits 

and transfers required and allowed by the bond resolution are to be used solely for 

- purposes pertaining to the system. As of September 30. 2012, all accounts 
required under the bond resolution were fully funded as required. 

(j) Ca,)ital Assets -- Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment. and infrastructure assets - (e.g .. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial 

..- statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial 
individual cost as outlined below and an estimated useful life in excess of one 

. ­ year. 

. ­ Capital asset thresholds are as follo\\s: 

. ­
Property Class Cost Threshold 

. ­
Land and infrastructure No minimum cost threshold 

.- Buildings SSO,OOO 
Improvements other than buildings $2S,OOO 

.- Machinery and equipment S5,OOO 

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if- purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated 
. ­ fair value at the date of donation . 

. ­ In accordanee with (;overl1lnental Ac<..:Ounting Standards Board Statement No. 34. 
genera I government infi'astrllcture assets have been capital ized retroactively to. ­
1980 at estimated historical cost. 

. ­
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 

.- asset or materially extend the asset' s Ii f'e are not capital ized . 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are - eonstructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of- business-type activities is included as part of thc capitalized value of thc assets 
constructed. The total interest expensc incurred in the business-type activities . ­ during the current tiscal year was $763,514. Of this amount, $49,984 was 

- inc Illded as part of the cost of capital assets under construction. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements .. 
September 30, 2012 .. .. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) .. 
(j) Capital Assets (Continued) 

Capital assets of the component units are generally reported llsing the same 
policies as the City. -. .. 
Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 

following estimated useful lives: .. 


Property Class .. 
Buildings 20 - 40 .. 
Water and sewer system 20 - 40 ..Improvements other than buildings 20 
Machinery and equipment 3 - 25 .. 
I nfrastructllre 20 - 50 .. 

(k) Compensated Absences 

Annual and eligible sick leave are accrued when incurred in the government-wide 

and proprietary financial statements. A liabi I ity for thesc amounts is reported in .. 

governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of 

employee resignations and retirements. .. 
..There is no limit to the accumulation of annual or sick leave. Upon termination of 
employment. each employee shall be paid for not more than 30 days of accrued .. 
annual leave. No payment will be made for accrued sick leave upon termination, 

with an exception for a transitional provision described below and also fix an .. 

employee who presents medical evidence that a physical condition is such that 

he/she can no longer work in a capacity of City employment. in which case he/she 

may be paid tor not more than 120 days ofaccllmulaled sick leave. 
 .. 
All full-time employees accrue credit for annual and sick leave as follows: .. 

Period of Accrual Rate of Accrual Rate of Hours per Year ..Continuous Service Hours per Year Annual Sick Lcnve ..
1 month to 3 years 144 96 
37 months to 8 years 168 84 
97 months to 15 years 192 72 
Over 1 5 years 216 60 .. .. 

...
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI - Notes to Financial Statements .. 
September 30,2012-.. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued).. 
-
... 


(k) Compensated Absences (Continued) 


Upon retirement or death, those full-time employees employed at October I, 

1991, with less than 30 years continuous service will be compensated, in cash. at 
their regular rate of pay fbr 1/2 of their accumulated sick leave. Employees with 
30 years or more continuolls service will be compensated. in cash, at their regular -
rate of pay, tor 3/4 of their accumulated sick leave. Accrual of sick leave for this .. 
provision is limited to 180 days and shall not exceed the number of hours of sick 
leave actually accrued as of October I, 1991. 

(I) Long-term Obligations/Deferred Charges 

In the government-wide tinancial statements and proprietary fund types in the -
.­

fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiullls and 
discounts. as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the lite of the 
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as 
deferred charges and am0l1 ized over the term ofthe related debt. . ­
In the fund t1nancial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond 
premiullls and discounts. as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. 
The race amount of debt issued is reported as other tinancing sources. Premiums 
received on debt issuances are reported as other nnancing sources while discounts 

.- on debt issuances are reported as other financing llses. Issuance costs, whether or 

-
 not withheld ti'om the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures . 

. ­
(m) Other Post Emplovment Benefits 

The City does not provide post-elllployment health or dental care benents Itlr any 
retirees or their dependents. 

(n) Fund Balances/Net Assets 

On the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net assets, the City 
reports net assets in the following three categories: 

- Invested in capital assets, net of related debt ~ consists of capital assets net 
of acculllulated depreciation reduced by the outstanding balances of any 

-
 bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition. 
construction. or improvement of those assets. -
-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements .. 
September 30, 2012 .. .. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(n) Fund Balances/Net Assets (Continued) 

Restricted net assets - consists of assets, less any related liabilities, restricted 
externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. .. ..Unrestricted net assets - consists of net assets that are not classified as 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted net assets. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the ­..City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they 
are needed. -On the fund financial statements, the governmental funds balance sheet reports .. 
assets in excess of liabilities as fund balances. The fund balances are segregated 
into the following classifications indicating the extent to which the City is bound 
to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which those funds can be spent: -.. 

Nonspendable - the fund balance is reported as nonspendable when the 

resources are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually .. 

required to be maintained intact. 
 .. 
Restricted - the fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed .. on the resources are (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other .. 
governments: or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 

enabling legislation. .. 

Committed - the fund balance is reported as committed for amounts that can .. 

only be used for specific purposes as a result of constraints imposed by the 

adoption or an ordinance, order, or resolution by the City Council. .. 

Committed amounts cannot be modified or uncommitted except by removing 

the constraints through the same formal action by City Council. 


Assigned - the fund balance is reported as assigned for resources that are 

constrained by the City's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are 
 ..
neither restricted nor committed. Intent can be expressed by the City Council 

or authorized by the City Clerk and Chief Adm inistrative OHicer through the .. 

purchase order process. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only 

exist temporarily and do not require additional action to be taken for the ... 

removal of the assignment. 
 ... ..
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. ­.. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 

. ­.. 
(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

. ­
(n) Fund BalancesINet Assets (Continued)-

.. .. Unassigned - the unassigned fund balance is the residual classitication for the 
general fund. This classification represents general fund balance that is not 
otherwise reported as nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to 

.. specific purposes. This classification is also used to report any negative fund 
balance in other governmental funds . 

When fund balance resources are available for sped tic purposes in more than one - classification, it is the City's policy to use the most restrictive fund first in the 
following order: restricted, committed. assigned. and then unassigned as needed.-

.- (0) New Accounting Pronounccment 

Effective for fiscal year 2012, the City implemented the t()lIowing new standard - issued by GASH:-
GASB Statement No. 64, Deril'Cllil '(! Ins/ruments: Application of HedKe... 
AccountinK Termination Provisions- an WJWmllllellt of eJA)'B Stu/ell/elll No. 53, .. etTectiw for financial statement periods beginning after June 15. 20 II this 
statement provides clarification on whether an effective hedging relationship 
continues after the replacement of a swap counterparty or a swap counterparty's - credit support provider. The adoption of this statement does not have any impact .. on the City's financial statements . 

(p) Financial Statement Format -.. Comparative total data f()], the prior year have been presented in selected sections 

- of the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an undcrstanding of 
the changes in the City's financial position and operations. For consistency, 
certain 20 II financial statement amollnts have been reclassilied to conf(mn with 
the 2012 financial statement presentation. Such reclassifications had no material -.. effect on the City's linancial position. changes in financial position. or cash flows . 

The "increase/(decrease)" eolumlls in the financial statements and f()otnotes are - presented only to facilitate financial analysis and understanding. Data in thcse 
columns are not required disclosures and do not present financial position, - changes in financial position, or cash flows in conlormity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. --
-
-
-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements .. 
September 30. 2012 .. 

(2) 	 Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements .. 
(a) 	 Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance 


Sheet and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 
 ..The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconci I iation between fund 
balances total governmental funds and net assets governmental activities as ..
reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that 
reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities. including bonds and interest .. 
payable. are not due and payable in the current period and. therefore. are not 
reported in the governmental funds balance sheet". 
are as follows: 

Description 

Bonds payable 

Deterred charges - refunded debt 

Premium on refunded debt issue 

Promissory loans payable 

Negotiable notes payable 

Accrued interest payable 

Capital leases payable 

Compensated absences 

Claims and judgments 


Net adjustment to reduce fund balances 
total governmental funds to arrive at net 
assets - governmental activities 

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "Internal service funds are 
used to charge the costs of certain activities, such as garage services. oftice 
supplies. and unemployment compensation to individual funds. The assets and 
liabilitics of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in 
the statement of net assets". The details of this difterence are as follows: 

The details of this difference .. .. 
Amount .. 

$ (44.170,000) 
177,624 	 .. 
(58.465) 

(466.462) 

(660,000) 
 ..(592.338) 
(271.940) ..( 1,361.80 I) 


( 1207) 
 .. 
$ (47-404.589) .. 
.. 


Description 

Net assets of the internal service funds 

Less internal payable representing charges in 
excess of cost to business-type activities 

Net adjustment to increase fund balances 
total governmental funds to arrive at net 
assets - governmental activities 

62 

..Amount 

$ 270.065 .. .. 
(11,941 ) .. .. 

$ .. .. .. 

http:1,361.80
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.. .. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30,2012 .. .. 
(2) Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued).. 

(b) Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund 

.. 

.. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and 
tbe Government-Wide Statement of Activities 

.. The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 

.. balances includes a reconciliation between net change in fund balances total 
governmental funds and change in net assets of governmental activities as reported in 

.. the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation 
explains that "Governmental funds repoli capital outlays as expenditures. However, 

-
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense". The details of this difference are 
as follows: .. 

Description Amount .. 
Capital outlay $ 3,170.569.. Depreciation expense 1o')J23,551i) .. Net adjustment to reduce net change in 

fund b~.lunces total governmental 
.- funds to arrive at change in net assets 

of governmental activities .. 
Another element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds do not .­.. report contributed capital assets because they do not provide current financial 
resources. However. in the stalement of activities the fair values of contributed 
capital assets are recorded as capital contributions. The details of this difference are 
as follows:-

Descrilltion Amount-.. Street improvements contributed by developers $ 819.999 
1997 Freightl incr trolley contributed by the .. Meridian Transportation Commission 35,000 
Land contributed by individuals 4.040 
Relgian Malinois K-9 donated to the police department 5,000-

Net ~Idjustment to increase net change in- fund balances - total governmental funds 
to arrive at change in net ~lssets of- govern mental activities --
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CITY OF MERlDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 .. .. 

(2) Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Con tin ued) .. 
(b) Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund ..

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and 
the Government-Wide Statement of Activities (Continued) 

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "The issuance of long-term debt .. 
(e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while 
the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial 
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net 
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, 
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities". The details of this difference 
are as follows: 

Description 

Debt issued: 

Issuance of general obligation bonds 

Issuance of energy conservation loan 

Deferred charges for new debt issues 

Amortization of deferred charges 

Amortization of debt premium 


Principal repayments: 

Ronds payable 

Promissory loans payable 

Negotiable notes payable 

Capital leases payable 


Net adjustment to reduce net change in 
fund bahmces total governmental 
funds to arrive at change in net assets 
of governmental nctivities 

.. 
Amount 

...$ (4,500,000) 
(210,000) ..110,000 

( 129,698) 


10,168 


3,305,000 

103,013 
 .. 
220.000 

.. 
$ Jl.9l1221) .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 
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.. .. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 .. 
... 

(2) Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued).. 
(b) Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund 

.. .. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and 
the Government-Wide Statement of Activities (Continued) 

.. Another element of that reconciliation explains that "some expenses reported in 

.. the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources 
and. therefore. are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds", The 
details of this difference are as follows: .. 

Description Amount ... 
Claims and judgments $ 136.707.. Accrued interest expense 86.449 
Compensated absences 5,587.. .. 
 Net adjustment to increase net change 


.. in fund balances - tot~ll governmental 
funds to arrive a t change in net assets 
of governmental activities $ .. 

-
Another element of that reconciliation explains that '"Internal service funds are .. used to charge the costs or certain activities, sllch as garage services. oftice 
supplies, and unemployment compensation to individual fLlI1ds. The net revenue .. of the internal service funds is reported ""ith governmental activities", The details 
of this difference are as fl)lIows: 

Description Amount.. 
.. Change in net assets of the internal service funds $ 18,506 

Less loss from charges to business-type activities -
.. 
.. Net adjustment to increase net change 

in fund balances - total governmental.. funds to arrive at ctmnge in net ~lssets 
of governmental activities $ 

---- 65 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2012 

(2) 	 Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

(c) 	 Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Proprietary Fund Statement 

of Net Assets and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 


The proprietary fund statement of net assets includes a reconciliation between net 
assets - total enterprise funds and net assets of business-type activ ities as reported .. 
in the government-wide statement of net assets. The description of the sole 
element of that reconciliation is "adjustment to reflect the consolidation of 
internal service funds activities related to enterprise funds". The details of this ..ditlerence are as follows: 

Description 

Internal receivable representing charges in 
excess of cost to business-type activities: 

Prior year 
Current year activities 

Net adjustment to increase net assets 
total enterprise funds to arrive at net 
assets - husiness-type activities 

(3) 	 Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

(a) 	 Budgetary Information 

..Amount .. .. 
$ IIA06 

535 .. ..$ .. .. 
The City adopts annual budgets for all governmental, proprietary and fiduciary 

funds on a basis consistent with state law, the more significant of which is 

discussed below. For 2012, the original total budgeted expenditures were 

$96.723,595 and werc increased by amendments to $97.745,845. 


The City adopts annual budgets in accordance with statutory requirements .. 

established by the Mississippi Municipal Budget Law, Section 21-35-1, 

Mississippi Code Ann. (1972), Chapter 35 of Title 21 and regulatory requirements 
 -established by Section 21-35-29, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972). State law 
requires revenues and expenditures to be budgeted as follows: revenues which -should 	be credited to the budget are those which are legally receipted (cash basis) ..
from October I through September 30 at the minimum legal level required by the 
state auditor: expenditures which should be charged to the budget are those which 
are legally budgeted and disbursed during the fiscal year or within 30 days 
thereafter. The purpose level or object (personnel services, supplies and .. 

-
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 CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
.. 	 Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 .. .. 
(3) Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued) .. 

(a) Budgetary Information (Continued) 

-
.. 

expenses, capital outlay, and transfers and other charges) is the minimum legal 
level determined by the State Auditor where expenditures may not exceed 

- appropriations. The City adopts budgets for capital project and internal service 
funds by fund type as a whole rather than by individual funds. A governing - authority may, at its discretion, adopt an annual budget at a more detailed level if 
it so desires. Expenditures for uncompleted improvements in progress of .. construction may be charged to the budget at any time. Penalties for exceeding 
the budget apply at the legal level (lowest level adopted by the governing 
authority) except tt)r capital outlay, election expenses and payment of emergency- warrants. All appropriations lapse 30 days atter year-end. Appropriations paid 
atter this period must be budgeted again during the next budget year. State law -	 requires all funds receiving revenues from the municipality, funds which will 

.. ... require approval from the governing authorities for expenditures to be made, 
proprietary flmds and funds confiscated and forfeited in connection with drug and 
liquor cascs to have an adopted budget. Fiduciary tlmds do not require board 
approval to make disbursements. -
The City's appropriated budget is adopted by fund. flmction and object. State lav\.. 
allows a governing authority to revise its budget at any time except in speeific 
situations as detined in Mississippi Munieipal Budget Law, Section 21-35-25. - Budget revisions that result in more than a 10 percent change in the department's 
original budget must be published. This publication must explain the revision, - including the amounts, need and purpose. Management may amend the budget 
without the approval of the City Council for expenditures tailing in different - accounts within the level at which the City Council adopts its budget. The City 

.- Council may. by unanimous vote, make expenditures, borrow mom:y or incur 
Iiabi IHies necessary to meet any emergency as defined by state statute \\ ithout . ­ further notice or hearing and may revise the budget accordingly . 

. ­
The budget process is initiated by the Mayor, who, with the assistance or 
management formulates a proposed operating budget lor the next fiscal year and. ­
submits it to the City Council for discussion and approval. Public notice is given ... 	 regarding public budget hearings to obtain taxpayer comments. Atter discussion 
of the proposed budget and after a consensus is reached. the budget is adopted by... 	 cOllncil ordinance no later than September 15 of eaeh year. In the event the 
proposcd budget is not adopted by September 15. no expenditure may be ... .. authorized nor any warrant issued. except for bonds, notes, debt and interest. aller 
October I in each year. unless and until sllch time as the budget is adopted . 

.. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 


(3) Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued) 

(b) Budget/GAAP Reconciliation ... 
The following schedule reconciles the amounts on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budgetary 
Basis) to the amounts on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes ... 
in Fund Balances: 

Description 

Net change in fund balanccs ­
budgetary basis 

Basis differences: 
Net accrued revenues and 

related receivables 
Net accrued expenditures and 

related liabi I ities 

Net change in fund baJances 
GAAP basis 

(4) Deposits and Investments 

Deposits 

GeneraJ 

Fund 


$ 229,148 ... 
...(1,337,506) 


2,770,296 


... 
Custodial credit risk: In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank ... 

failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. At year end, the City's carrying 

amount of deposits was $34,966,548 and the bank balance was $34,984,025. The entire ... 

bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized in accordance 
 ...with state law. The collateral for public entities' deposits in financial institutions are held 
in the name of the Mississippi State Treasurer under a program established by the 
Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5 Miss. Code Ann. 
(1972). Under this program. the City's funds are protected through a collateral pool ..
administered by the State 'freasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public 
funds mllst pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event offailure of .. 
a financial institution, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the 
State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depository 
Insurance Corporation. .. .. 

... 
68 .. 




.. 

.. .. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 .. .. 
(4) Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

The carrying amount of deposits tor discretely presented component units was 
$1,471,749 and the bank balance was $1. 741,562. These bank balances were covered by 
federal depository insurance or collateralized in accordance with State law as described .. above . .. I nve.\'lmenl,'\ .. 
At year end, the City's investment balances. reported at fair value. and maturities were as .. follows: 

Maturity Date.. Fair (Within 
Description Value One Year) 

U.S. Government Securities: 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporate Discount Notes $ 751,681 12/27/2012 
U. S. Treasury Notes 	 303,676 03/15/2013 
U. S. Treasury ~otes 427.062 11/15/2012 

Federated Government Obligation Fund 5.292 
Certi licates of Deposit:.. Citizens National Bank 675,000 12127/2012 

COllllllUn ity Bank 675.000 01/03/2013 
Citizens National Bank 200.000 01/0712013- Citizens National Bank 	 400,000 11110/2012.. Total investments 	 $ ~~",4JZ,lU 

-
.. Interesl rail' risk: Interest rale risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely 

affect lhe fair value of an investment. Investments held rix longer periods are subject to 
increased risk of adverse interest rate changes. The City's investment polky is limited to 
complying with the Slate's investment statutes. The Stale law has nol addressed an 
interest rale risk; however, the City's policy is to hold all investments to maturity. thereby 
reducing any interest rate risk. 

.. 	 Credil risk: The City and its eomponent units are allowed, by State statute. to invest 
excess funds in any bonds or other direct obligations of the United States of America. of 
the Stale of Mississippi, or of any county or municipality of Mississippi. when such -	 county or municipal bonds have been properly approved: or in obligations issued or 

-

-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

Septem ber 30, 2012 


(4) Deposits and Investments (Continued) .. 
guaranteed in full as to principal and interest by the United States of America which are 

subject to a repurchase agreement with a qualified depository; or in interest-bearing time 

certificates of deposit with any financial institution approved for the deposit of state 

funds. It is the City's policy to limit its investments to those allowed by the State statute. 

The City's investments in the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporate Discount Notes 

are rated AA+ by Standard & Poor's and Aaa by Moody's Investors Service. 

Investments in Federated Government Obligations Fund are rated AAA by Standard & 

Poor's and Aaa by Moody's Investors Service. 


Concentration of credit risk: The City complies with the State statute regarding 

investments; as a result, concentration risk is limited. .. 

C1fstodial credil risk: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of .. 
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. To minimize this risk, .. 
the City's requires that all negotiable instruments be held in safekeeping in the trust 
department of a bank. The City's investments are insured or registered, or are securities 
held by the City or its agent in the City's name. .. 
A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the government-wide statement of 
net assets for the primary government follows: 

Description 

Cash on hand 
Cash with trustee 
Carrying amount of deposits (including certificates 
of deposits) 

Carrying amount of investments (securities) 

Total cash and investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and investments - restricted 

Investments 


Total reported on the government­
wide statement of net assets 

Cash and cash equivalents reported on the 
statement of fiduciary assets and liabilities 
not included on the government-wide 
statement of net assets 

Total reported 

70 

Amount 

$ 3,740 -1,000.670 


34,966,548 
 .. 
~_ 1,487.711 

$ JZd~,Qb9 

$ I 1,962,559 -
22,465,157 .. 
~I ,550.000 .. 
35,977,716 .. 

1,480,953 .. 
$ 31.45~669 --
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CITY OF MERIDJAN, MISSISSIPPI .. Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 

... .. (5) Capital Assets 

Primary government: 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2012, was as follows: .. .. .. 
 Balance Balance 


September 30, September 30, 


2011 Increases Decreases 2012 .. 
Governmental activities: 

Capital assets. not being Jeprecialcu: .. I.and $ !U155.370 23.240 lU17X.61 () 

Right of 1\ a:, ~ 2.6()0 2.6()() 

Collection!'. hi,tnricallrcaslires 141.250 141.250 - ( 'onstrlletion-in-progre,>s 


lowl capiwlllssctS. not being depreciated 


.. .. - Capital assets. being deprcciawd: 

Builuing'> 24.394.X I () 17.511.42<) 60.(JOO 41.X46.23<) 

Illlpl'()\enH.'nt'> uther than buildings 4.011.797 I.023.2.fX 100 5.034.!)45 

... MachineI') lind eljuipmcnt 13Ji63.074 2.166.052 56X.X63 15.-160.263 

lnhlstrllUure IO!).960.2()X 
-~".....--- ­.. 
 llltaleapital assets. being \JcpreeiatcJ 
 62X.'!63 1.655 

.. less accumulated depreciation It)!': 

Buildings 7.021.-1Y5 70-1.5(11 2.20() 7.723.X56 

I mprm ell1cnlS other lil,m bll i Idings I.')X9.IOX 1:iI.X'>5 2.1-11.003 -
MachineI') and cljllipment X76.5X2 51-1.1 XO I (l.52,). 755 

In frastructllre 

lutul accul1luklted ucprecialion 516.3XO 75.719.0Y5 .. 
lotal capital assets. heing dL'preeiateJ. net .. 
Total governmental activities .. callital assets, lIet $ .. .. 71 

21.535.<)l)X 

http:I.023.2.fX
http:41.X46.23
http:17.511.42
http:lU17X.61


CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 

(5) Capital Assets (Continued) .. 
Balance Balance 

September 30, Sel)tember 30, 

2011 Increases Decreases 2012 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets. not being depreciated: 


Land $ 247.787 247.787 


Right of\\uys 30.610 30.610 


C'onstru ctio n-i n- rm1grcss 1.388.1\42 5.173553 I 

-~....--"". 

rotal capital ussc\s. not bcing lli:preciutcd 5.204.163 4.068.168 

Capital assets. bcing depreciateu: .. 
nuildings 126.628 126.628 

Water and sewer system 93.587.760 3.269.588 96.857.348 .. 
lmprO\ elllellls other than builuings 98.924 98.924 

Machincry and equipment 3.769.264 342.178 179.529 

Totul capital assets. bcing uepreciateu 97.582.576 
--"-­

3.611.766 \0 J.() 14.813 

Less accumulated depreciation I()r: .. 
Buildings 121.878 950 122.828 

Water and se\\er system 

Illlprmements othcr than buildings 

62.994.271 

73.949 

3.326Jl61 66.32().J32 

73.949 .. 
Machiner) anu cquipment 3.196.810 215.784 178.2' 5 

Total m:cul11ulateu ueprecialion 66.386.9()8 3.542.795 178.215 69.751.488 

Total capital assets. being depreciated. net 31.195.668 68.971 4 .. 
Total business-type activities 

capital assets, net $ 32.832.297 35.331.493 

.. 
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.. 	 CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 .. 
.. (5) Capital Assets (Continued) 

.. 	 Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as 

follows: 

.. Amount 
Governmental activities: 

.. 
General government $ 675,824 .. Public salety 769,300 

Public works 3,596,986 

Culture and recreation 	 81 .. 
Total depreciation expense - governmental nctivities $ 5,123,558 ... 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer department 	 $ 3,530,583 

Golf course 	 7.499.. Union Station 	 13 .. Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 3,542,795 .. 
Constructioll-in-progr~ss is composed of: 

Governmental Hctivities: .. 	 Stred milling. leveling and overlay $ 987.973 

Fire Station No.9 construction 118535 

.. .. Medical district traffic engineering 96.275 

Safe routes to school project 21504 
Gallagher Creek gabions 	 4.500 .. 

Total governmental activities .. 
Business-type activities: .. 	 Headworks improvements 2,384,045 

SCADA upgrades 1,076,736 

Wastewater treatment plant air - blowers and dectricalupgrade 	 328.990... 
Total business-type activities 	 3,789,771... 

- Total construction-in-progress 	 $ 

-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2012 


(5) Capital Assets (Continued) ..
Discretely presented component units: 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2012, was as follows: .. 

Balance Balance ..


September 30, September 30, 

2011 Increases Decreases 2012 

Meridian Airport Authority: 

Capital assets. not being depreciated: 

I,and $ 2.427.975 2.427.975 

('onstruetion-i n-progress 7.930.323 4.534363 9.378.000 3.086.686 

fotal capital assets. not being depreciated 1n.3 58.298 9.378.000 5.514.66 I 

Capitul assets. being depreciated: 

Buildings 5.Cl97.287 5.326.781 I I.024JJ68 

Irnpl'm l'l11ents other than buildings 22.460355 4JI6!Uol 20.528.910 

MachineI') and equipment 29 

Intal capi tal assets. being depreciated 30.769.296 39.788 40.283.113 

Lcss uceul11ulatcd depreciation I(lr: 

Buildings 

ImprO\ el11ents other than buildings 

MachineI') and equipment 

1.694.687 

9.133.767 

1.3 19.517 

427.753 

1.214.i(l9 

31>1.1116 39.43 I 

2.122.440 

10.347.936 

1.641.902 

-
rutal w,:clll11ulated depn:ciati(ln 12.147.971 14.112.278 

Total capital assets. being depreciated. net 

Total I\lc.-idian Airport Authority $ 

7.549.8(,7 357 26.170.835 .. 
Nonmajor component units: 

('apital asseb. being derm:ciated: 

i'vluehinel';' and equipment 

I ,ess aeeul11ulated depreciation 

$ 705.875 

51 25.670 
~----

648.658 

487.970-_....­

57.217 

.. 
Total nonmajor component units $ 187.202 (25.ll70) 160.688 844 

..74 



.. .. .. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2012 
.. 
- (6) Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 


The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2012, is as follows: 
.. 
Due to/from other funds:.. .. 
 Receivable fund Payable fund 	 Amount 


.. 
 General Fund 	 Water & Sewer Fund $ 300.750 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 707,816 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund .251.347 -
2012 General Obi igation Bonds .2 J2.347.. 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 139,446 .. 

Waste Collectiol1 & Disposal Fund General Fund 8,186 

Internal Serv Funds General Fund 250,739.. 	 Water & Sewer Fund 159.1 04 
Waste Collection & Disposal 50 
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds... 

Total due tom'om other funds 	 $ _2,Q1Q>62~ -
Due to primary government Due from component units .. 	 General Fund Meridian Airport Authority $ 5,837 

Internal Service Funds Meridian Transportation COlllmission $ 

.. ... These balances represent temporary timing differences related to ( I ) routine advances to 
provide funds lor operations and grant projects that require expenditures prior to 

- reimbursement and (2) routine charges due to internal service funds lI'om varioLis City 
departments fi)r service and maintenance of City vehicles. office suppl ies, health and lite 
insurance claims and unemployment insurance and claims . .. .. 

.. 

... 
REC[!VL':D- MAY 29 2u13... 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2012 


(6) Interfund Receivables. Payables and Transfers (Continued) 

Interfund transfers: 

Transfers in: 

Debt ~onma,ior Water Nonmajor Internal Total 

General Sen ice Govcrnmental & Sewer Enterprise Service transfers 

Transfers out: "untl Funtl !'untls Funtl Funtls Funtls out ..General Funtl S 876.200 63.086 4.600 469,450 64.000 1.477.336 

2012 General 

Obligation Bontls 212.347 212.347 

Nonmajor 

Governmental Funtls 80,589 358.685 105.000 544.274 

Water & Sewer Funtl 601.50() 60 1.500 

Wasle Collection & 

Disposal Fund 44.000 

Total tl'ansfcrs in $ 726.089 876.200 634.118 I09.60{) ­
Transfers are used to (I) move revenues from the general fund to capital projects to fund authorized projects and (2) 
transfer support from one hillel to another. 

.. 


.. 


.. 
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.. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2012 
.. .. 
(7) Leases.. 

Capital Leases 

.. The City leases certain trucks and equipment which qualify as capital leases for 
accounting purposes and, therefore, were recorded as of the lease inception date at the .. 
 present value of future minimum lease payments in the governmental and business-type 

activities . .. 
A summary of leased equipment capitalized in the financial statements at September 30, .. 2012, follows: 

.. Governmental Business-type 
Description Activities Activities.. 

... Machinery and equipment $ 709,066 1,056,641 
Less accumulated depreciation (508,164) ( 459,838) 

... .. 
 Total leased equipment 

capitalized $ 


The i'uturc minimum lease obligations and the net present valuc of minimum lease... 
commitments at September 30, 2012. f()lIows: .. 

Year Ending Governmental lJusiness-type.. Septem ber 30, Activities Activities 

.. 2013 $ 71.226 106.140 .. 2014 71.226 106,140 
2015 71,226 106,140 
2016 71.226 106.140 
2017 17,807 26.535 

Total minimulll lease commitments 302,711 451.095 .. 
Less amount rcpresenting imputed interest (30,771) (52.760) 

Present value of minimum lease payments 271.940 398335 ... 
Current portion ofobligations under capital leases (57,043) (85,005).. .. 
 Obi igations under capital leases, 


less current installments $ 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 20 J2 


(8) 	 Long-Term Liabilities 

A summary of long-term liabilities at September 30,2012, follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Outstanding bonds: 

General government 
Special obligation bonds parking facilities 
Limited obligation bonds tax increment financing 
Special assessment debt with City commitment 
Less deferred issue costs on refunding bonds 
Plus premiums on refunding bonds 

Other debt: 

Promissory loans 

Negotiable notes 

Capital leases 

Compensated absences 

Claims and judgments 


Total governmental activities 

Less current portion payable 

Governmenbll activities, net 

Business-tYfle activities: 
Water & sewer revenue bonds: 

Improvements and repairs to water system 
Improvements, repairs and extension to water system 
Improvements, repairs and extension to water system 
Less deferred issue costs on refunding bonds 

Total revenue bonds 

Water & sewer promissory loans 

Less deferred issue eosts on refunding bonds 


Total promissory loans 


Capital leases 

Deferred revenue forward invested funds 

Compensated absences 


Total business-tYfle activities 

Less current portion payable 

Business activities, net 

Discretely presented comflonent units­
Promissory loans 
Less current portion payable 

Discretely presented component unit, net 

78 

Interest 

Rates 


1.9 - 5.7% 
2.75 - 5.375% 

5.0 9.0% 
4.5 6.75% 

.25 - 3.0% 
2.71% 
5.87% 

4.6 6.5% 
4.5 6.375~''O 

5,0 - 6.25%, 

5.87% 

3.75% - 8.0% 

Amount 

$ 33,520,000 
4,670,000 
4,475,000 .. 
1505,000 

(177,624 ) 
 .. 

58,465 

466,462 ..660,000 
271.940 


1361,801 

1.207 

46,812,251 

$ 

$ 	 1.510.000 
2,090.000 
1.105.000 

4,642,932 	

.. 
113,880 

187,358 


16.132.560 .. 
$ .. 

$ 1,390,746 

(234,763) 

$ 



.. 
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.. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 .. .. 
(8) Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) .. 

A summary of annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds, special obligation bonds, .. lim ited obligation bonds, special assessment debt, certificates of participation, promissory loans and revenue bonds 
follows: 

Governmental Activities.. General Special Limited Special 
Year Ending Obligation Obligation Obligations Assessment Promissory Negotiable 

September 30: Bonds Bonds Bonds Debt Loans Notes Total .. 	 2013 $ 3,425,709 535.200 1.028,775 307,713 113,170 237,886 5.648.453 
2014 3,348.307 536,037 510,844 310,542 113,170 231,924 5,050,824 

2015 3,257,648 536,207 513,875 312,525 113,170 225.962 4.959,387 -.. 2016 3.099,145 541.843 515,125 313,555 85,558 4,555,226 

2017 3,101.384 540,544 514,625 137,875 30,301 4,324,729 ... 2018-2022 13,679.584 2,768,969 2,558,937 455.430 30,30 I 19.493,221 

2023-2027 10,940,306 564,875 1,437,594 12.942.775.. 2028-2032 2,866,286 .. Total $ 43,718,369 	 485,670 695.71'.2 

Interest included - in above totHls 1,353.675 2.604.775 332,640 	 14.544,439.. 
Discretely 

Presented 


Component 


Business-type Activities 	 Units -
Yellr Ending 	 Revenue Prolll issory Promissory... 

SCIHembcr 30: Donds Loans Total 	 Loans 

2013 $ 971.190 1,722.591 2.693.782 307.505 .. :W14 974.286 1.783,357 2.757.643 305,484 

2015 990,881 955.311 1.946,192 245,165 
2016 994.994 951.736 1,946.730 753.284 

2017 576,66.\ 951,948 1,528.611 
2018-2022 940,418 4,897.752 5,838.170- 2023-2027 2.263.067 2,263,067 
2028-2032 483.860 483,860 
2033-2037 32,257 

.. 
- Total $ 	 19,490,312 - Interest included .. in above totals $ 743.432 3.128.557 220,692 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements IIIIiI 
Scptem bel' 30. 2012 .. 

(8) Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) -.. 
A summary of changes in the long-term liabilities during the year ended September 30. 2012, follows: .. 

October I, September 30, I)ue Within 
I)escription 2011 Additions Deletions 2012 One Year .. 

Governmental activitics: 
Bonds payable: 

General obligation debt $ 31.170.000 4.500.00() 2.150.000 33,520.000 2.250.000 ­..L<.:ss deterred issue costs on 
r<.:Cunding bonds (20s.515) (30.891 ) (l77.624 ) (30.s91) 

Pills premiums on refunding bonds 6s.633 10.168 58.465 10.1611 .. 
Special obligation bonds ~.9s5.{)()O 315.000 ~.67().OOO 330.000 

Limited obligation bonds 5.100.000 625.000 4.475.000 675.000 
 .. 
Specia I aSSCSSl11elll wi til 


Cily commitment I. no.OO() 215.000 1.505.000 
 .. 
Tolal bonds payable H.1I35.1111 4.500.000 3.21\4.277 44.050.R41 3.459.277 .. 

Promissory IOHns 359.475 210.000 103.013 466.462 105.126 
Negoliable noles sIIO.OOO 220.000 660.0()O 220.000 III 

Capital Ieascs 325.736 53.7% 271.940 57.()~3 

COl11pcllsllIeu abscnces 1.367.31111 1.123.006 1.128.593 1.361.801 453.934 .. 
Claims andjudglllenls 137.914 

(;o\cmmcntal activities .­
IOllg-term liabilities 'I> 5.310.600 46.1112.251 4.296.5117 

.­
Husincss-typc activities: 


RCVClllll: bonds '\) 5A20.000 715.000 4.70S.000 760.000 

Less uderred isslIl: costs Oil 
 -

refunding. bonds (110.689) ( 18.(21) (62.068) ( 111.(20) .. 
I'romissory 10,1115 10.520.000 1.608.323 1.215.000 IO.l) 13.323 1.2112.t)02 


Less dclerrl:d isslIl: costs 011 
 .­rcltlilding loans ( 11I4.9()2) (61.63,t) ( 123.2(8) (61.63·1) 
Capilal Icascs ~78.50 I 110.166 398~335 115.005 
Deterred revenue Il)l'\\ard ill\csted flilltb 152.715 311.1145 113.11110 37.]90 
(, 'ompel1sated llbsCllCCS 200.119 ­

Busincss-Iype acthilies 
lung-term lillbilitks S 1.813.5')9 2.186.793 16.132.560 2.145.971 .. -

Iliscrctcly IJI'escntcd componenlunits; 

\lcl'idillll ,\iqllIl1 .\uthol'it) ­ .. 

Promissory loans '\) 2J)43.69,) 668.566 1.375.133 231.007 

\Icridian Transportatiun Commission ­ .. 

Promissory loans 3.14lJ 

Ilisel'dely IlrcsClltcd .­
component ullits 'I> 2.062.461 671.715 1.390.746 23~.7f,3 

Mil 

For governmcntal actj\ ilies. com pen"ated absem:cs. pension obi igalion. and daims and judgments arc generally 
liquidated by the general fund. .. ..80 .. 

http:2J)43.69
http:4.500.00
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 CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 

- September 30, 2012 

- (8) Long-Term Lhlbilities (Continued) 

- General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquIsition and 
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations 
and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. The original amount of general obligation 
bonds issued in prior years was $38,710,000. 

The City issued general obligation bonds dming tiscal year 2012, in the amount of 
$4.500,000. The proceeds from this bond issue will be Llsed for street paving prqjects 
throughout the City. 

Special Obligation Bonds 

During fiscal year 2003, the City issued $7.000.000 in special obligation bonds to provide 
funds for the costs of constructing the performing arts and educationaliconference center - parking facilities. These special obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the 
full faith and credit of the City. Rewnues raised from operations of the parking facility 
are to be used lor payment of principal and interest due on these bonds. 

Limited Obligation Bonds 

The original amount ot'tax increment limited obligation bonds issued by the City in prior 
years to prov ide timds for the costs {) f constructing ccrtai n infrastructure im provcments.. was $7.600.000. The bonds arc payable from and secured by a pledge of taxes levied 011 

-


the incremental increase in the assessed value or the project and certain sales tax 
revenues. The City entered into an interlocal agreement with Lauderdale County. 
whereby the County has also pledged additional ad valorem tax revenues generated by 
the project to provide a pro rata portion of annllal debt service on the bonds. As a result. 
the bonds are not a general obi igatioll of the City. 

Special Assessment Debt 

The City isslles special assessment bonds to provide financing for certain capital street 
illl provemcnts to bene fi t spec ific tax payers. Spec ial assessment bonds are direct 
obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. Annual debt service is 
provided through collection or special assessments 011 benefited property and ad valorem 
taxes levied lor debt service. The original amount of special assessment bonds issued in 
prior years was $3,625.000. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 
 ... .. 

(8) Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) .. 
Revenue Bonds .. 
The City also issues bonds whereby the City pledges income derived from user fees of its .. 

water and sewer operations. The balance of revenue bonds outstanding as of September 

30, 2012 amounted to $4,642,932, net of $62,068 of long-term financing costs. The .. 

original amount of revenue bonds issued in prior years totals $12,000,000. 
 .. 
Prom issory Loans ... 
The City entered into a loan agreement whereby the Mississippi Development Bank ...issued Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds and loaned the proceeds 

in the amount of $5.300,000 to the City. The loan was made in fiscal year 1998 to fund 
 .. 
water and sewer line improvements to the west side of Meridian adjacent to the East 

Mississippi Correctional Facility and toward the annexed area of the City located on the 
 .. 
eastern side of the City. .. 
In fiscal year 200 I, the City entered into a $1,000.000 capital improvements revolving 

loan from the Mississippi Development Authority to provide drainage and flood control .. 

improvements at the South I ndustrial Park. 
 .. 
In fiscal year 2002, the City entered into a loan agreement whereby the Mississippi ..Development Bank issued Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds and 

loaned the proceeds in the amount of$3.1 00,000 to the City. The proceeds Irom this loan 

were used to provide sewer lines to the Naval Air Station and water and sewer service to 

the Phase II annexed areas. 


In fiscal year 2003, the City entered into a loan agreement whereby the Mississippi 

Development Bank issued Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds and 

loaned the proceeds in the amount of$7,590.000 to the City. The proceeds trom this loan 

were Llsed to refund the City's 1994 Combined Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds. 

As a result of this refunding. the 1994 bonds are considered fully defeased in substance, 

and the liability is not reported in the City's financial statements. As of September 30, 

2012, the outstanding balance on the defeased bonds was $1,650.000. This refunding .. 

resulted in a decrease in future debt service payments of$549,006. 
 .. 
In fiscal year 2004, the City entered into a loan agreement whereby the Mississippi 

Development Bank issued Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds and 

loaned the proceeds in the amount of$2,900,000 to the City. The proceeds from this loan 

were used to provide water and sewer lines to the new industrial park and for various 

other small projects. 
 .. ..

82 .. 



CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2012 


- (8) Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) - In fiscal year 20 I L the City entered into a $210,000 energy conservation loan agreement 
with the Mississippi Development Authority to provide for the installation of various - energy conservation measures during the renovation of the City Hall. 

During tiscal year 2012, the City entered into an $8,411,225 loan agreement with the 
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality through the EPA Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund Program. The proceeds from this note are to be used for the- rehabilitation of the South Wastewater Treatment Plant. The City has drawn $1,608,323 
against these loan funds as of September 30, 2012. -
Negotiable Notes -
During tiscal year 2010, the City issued taxable negotiable notes in the amount of 

- $1, I 00.000. The proceeds from these notes were lIsed tor the payment of pre­
development expenses incurred in conjunction with the Redevelopment Agreement that 
was terminated in December, 2009. 

Letter ol'Credit 

The City maintains a $600,000 unsecured irrevoc<lble letter of credit with Citizens- National Bank. This letter of credit was issued I()r a fee of $7.575 in favor of Travelers 
Indemnity Company for support of the City's deductible for workers compensation 
claims. This letter of credit expires August I. 2013, with an automatic extension tor one 
year. As of September 30. 2012, the City had no outstanding balance on this letter of- credit. The interest rate is set at 1.25 percent... 
Discretely Presented Component lJnits: 

- During liscal year 20 I O. the Meridian Airport Authority entered into a four percent 
promissory loan agreement in the amount of $291.618 to finance a portion of the 
purchase of Dean Aircraft Service. Inc. 

.. During fiscal year 2011. the Meridian Airport Authority entered into a 3.75 percent 
promissory loan agreement in the amount of $2,000,(}OO tor construction of an aircraft 
maintenance hangar. 

During tiscal year 20 II, the Meridian Transportation Commission entered into an 8.0 
percent unsecured prom issory loan agreement in the amount or $19.845 for the purpose 
of providing operating capital. 

-
 MAY 29 2m3 
83 

-




-
.. .. 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements .. 
September 30, 2012 .. .. 

(9) Lessor Operating Leases .. 
The City of Meridian and Meridian Airport Authority (a discretely presented component 

unit) lease space to others under various lease agreements. A summary of minimum 

future rental income on these leases as of September 30. 2012, and for each of the next 

five years and in aggregate, follows: 


Year Ending 
Septem ber 30, 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 

Meridian .. 
City of Airport 


Meridian Authority 


$ 	 44,066 54,180 
26,581 35,802 ..23,580 32330 

20,736 29,201 

13,513 28.533 


159.568 

Tohll minimum future rentals $ 	 339,614 .. 
(10) Risk Management 

The City is exposed to varioLis risks of loss related to torts; theft at: damage to and 

destruction of assets: errors and am issions: injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

The City carries commercial insurance to protect against these and other types of risks. .. 

except medical claims of City employees and their covered dependents. Coverage limits 

vary by exposure/policy and are decided on from examination of the number and types or 

prior claims. as well as from monitoring of judicial decisions. awards and trend factors. 
 ..
Premiums are paid from the general fund. water and sewer fund, golf course fi.ll1d and 

Union Station fund, as well as the appropriate department within each fund and by .. 

component units. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal 

2012. from the prior year. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any .. 

of the past several years. 
 .. 
Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amollnt of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated. Since the City is insured for losses above the sel r.. .. 
insured retention ("SIR"), its insurers have the responsibility of reserving, discounting. 
and making other similar calculations. The aggregate SIR claims, which include incurred 
but not reported ("'IBN R") claims. were derived by obtaining an average of the four most .. 
recent years of loss histories and increasing this average by approximately one standard 

deviation above the mean to determine claim liabilities. 
 .. -
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CITY OF MERIDIAN. MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30,2012 


(10) Risk Management (Continued) 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the fiscal years ended September 30, .. 2012 and 20 I I, follows: .. Description 

Unpaid claims, beginning of year 

.. 


.. Incurred claims (including IBNR's) 


Claim payments 


Unpaid claims, end of year 


Effective October I. 2004. the City contracts 
administer a partially self insured health plan. 

2012 2011 

$ 137,914 273,041 

384.214 410.118 

(520,921 ) (545,245) 

$ .. 1.207 _137.914 

with a third party administrator to 
The City moved from a fully insured 

contract and, based on historical projections, maintains the same level of funding. 
Aggregate ($1.000,000) and specific ($100,000 per participant) stop-loss insurance .. 	 coverages were obtained to guard against any large un!(xeseen claim losses. Fully 
insured transplant coverage was also secured to allow transplants to be fully insured 
outside of specific and aggregate insurance limits. This plan also provides lite insurance 
on each employee for $25,000 double indemnity. The City established the health and lite 
insurance reserve fund ("the Fund") in the internal service fund group to account tor this 
activity. 

Benefit payments plus an administrative charge arc made to the third-party administrator .. who approves and processes all claims. The Fund collects interfulld premiums from 
insured funds and departments. Interfund premiums are based on the insured funds' 
claims experience and are adjusted to cover all reported claims. Claims settlement and 
loss expenses are accrued in the Fund for the settlement value of claims reported and 
estimated value of claims incurred but not reported. up to stop-loss. No actuarial study .. 	 has been performed on the Fund . 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the fiscal years ended September 30. 
2012 and 201 1 !t)llows: 

Description 	 2012 2011 

Unpaid claims. beginning of year $ 406,036 332,741 .. 
Incurred claims (including IBNR 's) 2,964.274 3,316,831 .. 
Claim payments 	 Q,096,222) 

Unpaid claims, end of year 	 $ 274.088 .. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2012 .. .. 

(11) Contingent Liabilities .. .. 
The City is a defendant in various litigation arising out of normal business activities. .. 
A Ithough the City carries commercial insurance to protect itself against damage claims, it 
is possible that the ultimate resolution of cases may exceed the City's insured limits. .. 
Management, with the advice of legal counsel, is of the opinion that the ultimate 
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial .. 
statements. 

Federally Assisted Programs - Compliance Audits 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 

by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, 

including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. 

The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be 

determined at this time, although the City expects slIch amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 


(12) Construction and Other Significant Commitments .. 
The City has approved contracts for replacing and upgrading the supervisory control and .. 

data acquisition ("SCADA") system at the Freshwater Treatment Plants. The cost of this 

project is estimated to be $1.200.000 and wi II be funded with proceeds from the sale of .. 

bonds issued by the City. 
 .. 
The City has approved three projects at the South Waste Water Treatment Plant. 

including (I) the replacement of headworks: (2) the replacement of plant air blowers and 

digester blowers, addition of variable frequency drives for improved air control, upgrades 
 .. 
to the air distributions system, replacement or process pumps. and associated electrical; 

and (3) electrical upgrades, including the replacing generator No. I and associated 

automatic transfer switch, replacement of motor control centers, replacement of 

underground conduits and wires, and new overhead and underground conduits and wires. 

'rhe total estimated cost of these projects is $8,4 1 J.225 and is being funded by a Water 

Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund agreement through the Mississippi Department .. 

of Environmental Quality. 
 .. 
The City has received grant approval for sidewalk improvements between Meridian ..Public Schools and the Boys and Girls Club. The cost of this project is estimated to be 

$775,833 in sidewalk improvements and $24,793 in activities to promote pedestrian 

safety and reduce speeds in school zones, The total project cost of $800,626 is funded 

100 percent from a Safe Routes to School grant through the M ississi ppi Department of 

Transportation ("MOOT"). 
 .. 

-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
.. Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30. 2012 .. .. 
(12) Construction and Other Sil!nificant Commitments (Continued).. 

The City has approved a contract to mill. level and overlay sections of various city routes, 
29 th 81h 

-
.. .. including 7th Street, A venue, Street, 14th Street, Country Club Drive and 

Grandview Ave. The estimated construction cost of this project is $1,355.700 and will be 
funded 20 percent from local funds and 80 percent from grant funds provided through 
MDOT. 

The City has approved contracts to repair gabions along Gallagher Creek in Ilighiand... 
Park. This project will provide watershed protection measures to relieve hazards created .. by a storm on April 20, 20 II. The total cost of this project is estimated to be $130,000, 
of which $102.000 will bc provided by a grant through the National Resources 

..... Conservation Service. Grant matching funds of $16,843 will be provided by the Pat 
Harrison Watervvay District and the remaining match will come from local funds. 

.. 
- 'rile City has executed a lease agreement for a new law entorcement center-The lease.. term is to begin upon the earlier of actual occupancy or substantial completion of the 

premises and continue for twenty years with an option to purchase the premises upon 
expiration of the primary lease terill. The base rental will be $305.000 annually fbI' the 
tirst tive years and wi II be adjusted every five years thereafter accord ing to the Consuiller ..... Price Index tor Urban Wage and Clerical Workers ('"CPI-U") . .. 
The City has approved a contract tor construction of Fire Station Number 9 in the newly .. annexed northeast part of the City. The cost of this construction is $844.500 and will be 
funded from the sale of bonds issued by the City . .. 
Other signilicant commitments include encumbrances outstanding for the general fund as.. follows: 

.. 

.. Encumbrance 
Description Amount 

.. General I'und committed to solhvare conversion $ 1.980 
General fund assigned 10r various governmental services .. 

Total outstanding encumbrances s --.. 
.. 
-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements .. 
September 30, 2012 .. .. 

(13) Solid Waste Management Services Accounting 

The City contracts its solid waste collection and disposal needs to a private contractor. ..
Pursuant to Section 17-17-347 of the Mississippi Code Ann. (1972), each unit of local 

government, beginning with fiscal year end 1992, shall determine during its regular audit 
 .. 
the full and complete cost for solid waste management within the service area of the unit 

of local government for the previous fiscal year and shall update the full and complete .. 

cost every year thereafter. The City is in compliance with this requirement. These costs 

are accounted for in the waste collection and disposal enterprise fund. .. 


(14) Prior Period Adjustment .. 
The October I, 20 II beginning balance of the net assets of the Meridian Airport 

Authority (a discretely presented component unit) has been restated to correct a 

promissory loan balance. The correction has no etlect on the results of the current year's 

activities. however the cumulative effect increased net assets by $116,647. 


(15) Su bseguent Events .. 
Events that occur after the statement of net assets date, but before the financial statements .. 
arc available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of 
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of 
net assets date require recognition in the financial statements. Subsequent events that 
provide evidence about conditions that existed aller the statenlent of net assets date .. 
require disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. Management evaluated the 
activity of the City through April 26, 2013. (the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued) and noted the following items which require disclosure in the 
notes to the tinancial statements. 

I n December. 2012, the City authorized and directed the issuance of $12,415.000 in 

Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2013. The purpose of 

this bond issue is to refund the Series 1995. 1997 and 2000 Water and Sewer Revenue 

Bonds and the Series 1998,200 I Band 2004 Water and Sewer Promissory Loans. 


In April. 2013, the City authorized and directed the issuance of in General Obligation .. 

Water and Sewer Bonds. Series 2013 not to exceed $1,200,000. The purpose of this bond 

issue is to provide funds tor water and sewer infrastructure improvements. 
 -
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2012 --

(16) Pension and Retirement Plans -	 Public Employees Retirement System: 

Plan Descriptioll- The City and its component units contribute to the Public Employees' Retirement System 
of Mississippi CPERS"), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. 
PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and 
death benefits to plan members and beneticiaries. Benefit provisions are established by.. state law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues 
a publicly available financial report that includes tinancial statements and required.. supplementary information. That information may be obtained by writing to Public 
Employees' Retirement System. At:t:ounting Department, 429 Mississippi Street,.. Jackson, MS 3920 1-1005 or by t:all ing (60 I) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS . 

-
The payroll for employees covered by PFRS (statewide) for the year ended June 30. 
2012. was $5,857.789.000. The City's payroll for employees covered by PERS for the 
year ended September 30. 2012. was $15,976.068: the City's total payroll was 
$16.691.654 for the year ended September 30. 2012. 

- Participating employees "vho arc vested and retire at or atter age 60 or those who retire 
regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of creditable .. service fbI' employees who became members of PERS bef()re July I, 201 I) nre entitled . 
upon application. to an annual retirement allowance payable monthly tor life. in an.. amount equal to two percent of their average compensation f()f each year of credited 
service. Lip to and including 30 years (25 years lor those who bet:ame members of PERS.. before July I. 20 II). plus 2.5 percent lor each additional year of credited service with an 
actuarial reduction in the benelit fix eat:h year of'creditable service below 30 years or the .. number of years in age that the member is below 65. whichever is less. Average 
compensation is the avt:rage or the member's earnings during the f()ur highest 
compensated years of 	credited service. A member may elect a reduced retirement -
allowance payable lor life with the provision that. atler death, a beneficiary receives .. 
benelits fbr I i Ie or li.x a spec i lied number 0 f years. i3enclits vest upon completion of 
eight years of membership service (four years of membership service for those who 
became members of PERS bef()re .July I. 2(07). PERS also provides certain death and .. 	 disability benefits. Benefit provisions are established by Section 11-1 et seq., 
Mississippi Code Ann. (1972) and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi.. 	 Legislature . 

.. 

.. 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30,2012 
 .. .. 

(16) Pension and Retirement Plans (Continued) .. 
A cost-of-living adjustment payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries. The 

cost of living adjustment is equal to three percent of the annual retirement allowance for 

each full fiscal year of retirement up to the year in which the retired member reaches age 

60 (55 for those who became members ofPERS before July 1,2011), with three percent 

compounded for each fiscal year thereat1er. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the total 

annual cost of living adjustment payments for PERS (statewide) were $402,514,750. 
 .. 
Funding Policy 

Members covered by PERS are required to contribute nine percent of their earned .. 
compensation toward retirement. In the year ended September 30,2012. City employees 

contributed $1,432,389. If a member covered by PERS leaves employment prior to 

retirement. accumulated member contributions plus interest (3.5% in 2012) are refunded 
 -
to the member or designated beneficiary upon request. -
The City is required by statute to contribute to PERS at an actuarially determ ined rate. 

For the years ended September 30. 2012, 201 Land 2010. the City's contribution 

requirements representing 12 percent (from October I, 2009 through December 31, 20 II) .. 

and 12.93% (from January L 2012 through September 30.2012) ofcovered payroll were 
 ..$2,072.313. $1,916,658, and $1,865,457, respectively. The City contributed 100 percent 

of its requirements in each ofthese years. 


The Meridian Airport Authority (a discretely presented component unit) contributed 100 .. 

percent of its required contributions to PERS in the years ended September 30, 2012, 

2011. and 2010 of $192,183, $157,132, and $138,335. respectively. .. 

Trell(lll~t()rmllfi()11 

Ten-year historical trend information showing PERS' progress in accumulating sufficient .. 

assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the PERS June 30, 2012, comprehensive 

annual1inancial report. 


Municipal Retirement Systems: .. 
Plan Descriptiol1 .. 
The City also participates in the Municipal Retirement Systems ("MRS") which has been 
closed to new participants since July I, 1976. MRS is an agent multiple-employer .. 
defined benefit plan of PERS. MRS was designed to provide retirement benefits for 
general municipal employees. as well as firefighters and police officers. The City is one 
of two cities providing retirement benefits to general municipal employees and one of 
seventeen cities providing retirement benefits to firefighters and police officers. .. ..
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements ... 
September 30, 2012 ... 

... 
(16) Pension and Retirement Plans (Continued) ... 

Membership in the MRS is comprised of employees who were hired prior to July 1, 1976,... and includes only those eligible employees of the City who did not opt to become a 
member of PERS. PERS is also responsible for the administration or MRS. MRS is... 
considered part of the financial reporting entity of the State of Mississippi. The total 
payroll for City employees covered by MRS for the year ended September 30, 2012 was ... 
$170.773; the City's total payroll tor all employees was $16,691.654. At September 30, ... 2012, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, there were three participati ng 
general municipal employees, firdighters and police officers and 197 retired participants ... and beneficiaries currently receiving benetits . .. The PERS annually issues publicly available information entitled the Report on the 
Annual Valuation Covering the Participation of the City of Meridian in the Mississippi ... Municipal Retirement Systems. The report may be obtained by writing to Public 
Employees' Retirement System 01" Mississippi, Accounting Department. 429 Mississippi ... 
Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS . ... 
Funding Policy 

Funding policies for MRS, established by Mississippi statutes, provide ItH' a properly tax ... to be levied within each mUllicipality and deductions from salaries or members. at rates 
suflicient to make the plan actuarially sound. For the year ended September 30. 2012. the ... City levied 7.93 mills to help fund MRS. An actuarial valuation is performed on an 
annllal basis to determine the rates necessary to make the System actuarially sound. ... However, Mississippi statutes limit any increase in the prOpeJ1y tax levy for pension 
contributions to one-halfmill per year. 

During tiscal year 2012. tire and police employees and Illunicipal employees covered by 
MRS were required to contribute ten percent and seven percent, respectively, or covered 
payroll. Any increase to the seven percent base contribution rate is made in increments... 
not to exceed one percent per year. Ir a member leaves covered employment, 
accumulated member contributions are refunded to the member upon request. Members 
covered by MRS do not receive interest on their aceumulated contributions. The City 
contributes the remaining amounts necessary to finance participation or its employees in 
MRS. Contribution provisions are eswblished by Sections 21-29, Articles 1.3. 5 and 7. 

-
.. Mississippi Code Ann. (1972) and annual local legislation. Statutes may be amended 

only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. 

-... 
-
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 


(16) Pension and Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Annual Pension Cost .. 
The required contribution to MRS was determined as part of the actuarial valuation .. 
performed as of September 30, 2012, using the entry age actuarial cost method, the level 
dollar closed amortization method (with a twenty-two year remaining amortization 
period), and a five-year smoothed market asset valuation method. Significant actuarial 
assumptions include (a) an 8 percent investment rate of return (net of investment 
expenses) and including a price inllation rate of 3.5 percent, (b) projected annual salary 
increases ranging from 4.5 to 6.0 percent and including a wage inflation rate at 4.25 .. 
percent, and (c) no cost of living adjustments. 

The following provides pension cost and obligation information for MRS: .. 
Annual pension cost 

(required contribution) $ 2,538,402 2,437.538 2.438.798 

Less contributions made 2,538,402 2,437,538 2,438,798 .. 
Net pension obligation at year end $ .. 
Percentage of annual pension 


cost contributed 
 100% 

Funding Status oml funding Progress .. 
As of September 30, 2012. the most recent actuarial valuation date. the plan was 31.2 
percent runded. The actuarial accrued liability tor benetits was $26.5 million. and the .. 
actuarial value of assets \\as $8.3 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability ("'UALL") or $\8.2 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $170,773, and the ratio of UAAL to covered pnyroll ­
was 10,638.0 percent. Becausc MM RS is a closed plan with only three active employees. 
this percentage is highly misleading. .. 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplemcntary infl)nnation ..
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information 

about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time .. 

relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
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SCHEDULE 1 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Required Supplementary Information 

Mississippi Municipal Retirement System ("MMRS") 


Schedule of Funding Progress 

Last Three Fiscal Years 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 
 .. 
Actuarial .. 

Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a 
Actuarial Value of Liability ("AAL") Funded Unfunded Covered Percentage of 
Valuation Assets - Entry Age Ratio AAL ("lJAAL") Payroll Covered Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) l(b-a)/cl~ 

9/30/12 $ 8258 $ 26,449 31.2% $ 18,191 171 10,638.0 % 


9/30/11 8,533 27,229 31.3% 18,696 169 11,062.7 % 


9/30/10 8,581 27,754 30.9% 19,173 166 11,550.0 % 


.. .. .. 
I\otes to Schedule of Funding Progress .. 
The AAL is a measure intended to help users assess the Municipal Rdirement System (ltMMRS") 

funding status on a going-eon cern basis and assess progress being made in accumulating surticient 
asset" to pay benefits when due. The LAAL, as a percentage of annual covered payroll. also aids in 
analysis of progress being made in accumulating sutlicient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, 

the smaller the percentage, the stronger the plan. However, for closed plans such as MMRS, this figure 
is highly misleading and should be ignored. 

The aetuarial value of assets is determined on a market-related basis that recognizes 20 percent of the 
previously unrecognized and unanticipated gains and losses (both realized and unrealized), 

For additional information regarding this schedule, refer to the separately issued Public Employees' 

Retirement System of Mississippi Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 2012 by writing to 
Publ ic Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi, 429 Mississippi Street, Jaekson, MS 39201 1005. .. 
.. 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Fund 

The special revenue fund is used to account for revenue sources from grants and contributions, 
interest on investments, narcotics related forfeitures, and miscellaneous registration fees and 
rentals. These revenue sources are restricted to expenditures for public safety, culture and 
recreation, and economic development. .. 

Capital Projects Funds 

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
tac i I ities other than those financed by proprietary and trust tlmds. 

Sowashee Project - This flmd was originally used to account for construction of the water 
drainage project along Sowashee Creek in the City's jurisdiction and is currently accounting for 
maintenance costs of the same. The financing for this project was from general obligation 
bonds. U. S. Army Corp of Engineers, and the Pat Harrison Waterway District. 

2003 General Obligation Bonds - This fund is used to account for the proceeds and .. 
disbursements of the 2003 general obligation public improvement bonds. 

2003 Flood Damage - This Illlld is used to account tor grant revenues used for repairing areas 
damaged by floods in 2003. 

Highway 19 Drainage - Th is fund is used to account for the local and grant revenues to be uscd 
to repair drainage damage along Highway 19 near First Street. .. 
City Hall Improvements This fund is Llsed to account for the bond proceeds lIsed to tlllld the 
renovation and restoration of City Hall. 

2008 General Obligation Bonds - This fund is used to account for the proceeds and 
disbursements of the 2008 general obligation bonds. 

2009 General Obligation Bonds - This fund is lIsed to account for the proceeds and 
disbursements of the 2009 general obligation bonds. .. 
2009 Tax Increment Financing Bonds - This fund is used to account lor the bond proceeds 
used to flmd infrastructure improvements to the Meridian Crossroads site. 

2010 Negotiable Note - This fund is used to account for the proceeds and disbursements of the 
taxable negotiable note used lor the payment of pre-development expenses incurred in 
conjunction with the Threefoot Building Redevelopment Agreement that was terminated in 
December, 2009. 
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.. NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

.. 

.. Capital Projects Funds (Continued) .. 

.. Safe Routes to School Project - This fund is used to account for grant revenues for sidewalk 

.. improvements between Carver Middle School. Harris Elementary School, and the Boys and Girls 
Club; plus activities to promote pedestrian safety and reduce speeds in the Carver Middle, Harris 
Elementary, Oakland Heights Elementary, and Crestwood Elementary school zones. 

26 th Avenue Viaduct Safety Upgrades This fund is used to account for the local and grant 
revenues used to pertorm safety upgrades and enhancements to the 26th Avenue viaduct. 

--
29 th Avenue Sowashee Creek Bridge Replacement ­ This fund is used to account for the local 
and grant revenues used for replacemcnt of the 29th !\venue bridge at Sowashee Creek. 

20J J General Obligation Bonds This fund is 
disbursements of the 20 II general obligation bonds. 

used to account for the proceeds and 

.. 


.. 


351h Avenue and 40 th Street Bridge Replacement - This fund is used to account for the local 
40thand grant revenues used for replacement or bridges on 35 th A venue and on Street over 

Gallagher Creek. 

STP Milling, Leveling, and Overlay - This fund is used to account for the local and grant 
revenucs used ror milling. leveling and asphalt overlay of selected City routes, including 
drainage and sidcvvalk improvements as required . 

-
 Highland Park Gaoionsfhis fund is used to account tor thc local and grant revenues used to 
repair gab ions along Gallagher Creck in High land Park. 

Fire Station No.9 Briarwood This fund is used to account for the local revenues used to -
construct Fire Station Number 9 in the newly annexed northeast part of the City. 

.. 


-
-
-.. 
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SCHEDULE 2 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Combining Balance Sheet 


Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

September 30, 2012 


Nonmajor 
Special 
Revenue 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,950 
Investments 200,000 
Receivables, net: 

Interest 224 
Miscellaneous 4,363 

Due from other funds 225,436 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,931,146 
Intergovernmental receivables 660,506 

Total assets $ 

LIABILITIES AND FlJND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 3.105 
Due to other funds 660,40 I 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets: 

Accounts payable 142,674 
Accrued salaries 2,716 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 884.439 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Sowashee Creek maintenance 
Construction/acquisition of capital assets 
Flood damage repairs 
Debt service 
Purposes of grantors/donors 
Law Cnfl)rCel11ent 

C0I11111 itted to: 
Urhan renewal and redevelopment 

Assigned to: 
Puhlic safety 
Sports events 

131.722 
2,649,623 

345,786 

21,565 
8,490 

Total fund blliances 3,157,186 

Nonmajor 

Capital 

Projects 


377,704 

3,900,368 

5,032,698 

186,861 

1,076,165 

346,385 
3,321,756 

76.465 
25,066 

],769,672 

Total 

Nonmajor 


Governmental 

Funds 


19,950 
200,000 

224 
4,363 

603,140 

6,831,514 
1,415,132 

9,074,323 

3, I05 
847,262 

1,218,839 
2,716 

75,543 

.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 


.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 


.. 

2,147,465 

346,385 
3,321,756 

76,465 
25,066 

131,722 
2,649,623 

345,786 

21,565 
__8.490 

6,926,858 

.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 
.. 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 4,041,625 9,074,323 .. ..
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SCHEDULE3 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 


For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2012 


Revenues: 
I ntergovernmen tal 


Fines and forfeitures 


Local contributions 


Interest on investments 


M iscellaneolls 


Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 


Publ ic safety 


Culture and recreation 


Econom ie development 


Capital outlay 


Total operating expenses 


Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sonrces (uses): 
Tran~fers ill 


Transfers out 


Loan proceeds 


Total other financing sources (lises) 

Net change in fund b;lIances 

Fund halances, Octollel' 1,2011 

FUlId lmlances, September 30,2012 

Total 
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor 

Special Capital Governmental 
Revenue Projects Funds 

$ 432.423 790,578 1,223,001 
17,398 17,398 

440 440 
15,364 27,619 

41.421 


507,046 81 197
-_...._._-_._.­

942,069 942,069 
116,856 IIC),856 

231,008 231,008 

1,289,933 

I 

I 

(782,887) 

1],51] 620,605 6]4,118 
(S(),589) (463,685) (544,274) 

--_._._._. ­

(67,076) 


(849,963) ( 1 ,(H5,8S5) ( 1,885,848) 


4,007,149 

$ 3,157.186 

\ '·-·-0vt:" 

MAY 2 9 2013 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI ... 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds ..

September 30, 2012 .. .. 
2003 2008 2009 2009 Ta, .. 

General 21lO3 Grneral General Int'fement 

Sowashee Obligation Flood Highway 19 City Hall Obligation Obligation Financing 

Project Bonds Damllge Drainage Improvements Bonlls Honds Bonds 

ASSETS -
Due from oilier funds 
Restricted assets 

Cash Hnd cash equivalents J-l6,3H5 "06,769 76.'165 ~,57~ 19",g05 ",DS 41lS,g51 -1,659 
I nterg,o\,ernlllcntal recclvllblcs -.. 

Total aSsl~ts 346)S5 "(6)69 76,465 ",5n 19",S05 ",DS 465,851 -1,659 

LIABILITIES ,\NIl H"1l BAL\NCES 

Ijabilitie" 

Due 10 olhel runds 
LiabllJllCs pa!'able from re:-.trlClcd assets ­

Account..., pa~'(lhlc ,1.50l) .. 
Tnllliliahililies -1.509 .. 

Fund hahllH.·(,~: 
RcstrlCied I(ll" 


S{}\\a:-.llcc l'r~d. IllClllllcnflncl' .',lb.]S) 


COll..,tllll:lloll/acLllll~111011 or capllul a:-'~l'h ]06,769 ~,57~ Igg.:>9h 1.~7X -I65,S51 


J'lood dallla~c rqxlIr:-. 76.465 

Debt scr\ ICC -1.659 


Totlll fund halanees 346)8.5 0111>.769 76.465 ~,57~ IgS,"% ".cn 465.851 ,t,h5lJ -
Tnt.lliabilities anti fund ballwees J46.3>{5 ~()6.769 76.465 ].,57~ ll)c.S() o,DX 465 X, I ~ .. .. .. .. .. .. 

-.. .. 
-..
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SCIIEDIILE .j 

--
26th Awnue 29th ,,\\'eJlIJ(' 2011 35th ,\venlle STI' Fire Total 

20111 Sare Route, Viallu,.t SO\\3slu,"c General & ~()th Street I\lilling, Uighlaml Station Nonmajor - !\egotiablc to School Saret~' Creek Bridge Obligation Bridge Leveling, Park :\0.9 (~o\'ernmcntal 

Note Project l'llgrades Replacement !londs Rcpla{"em ent & Overlav (;ahions Hriarnood Funds 

,1,).1:' ~I.l)b<j :'0,911 21 ~.347 IIS,53.' 377.704 -
20,'107 ':A97Jn~ 42,2~X 24,063 IX.lli :' J,<!OO,.l6S 

_ 75,1.6:'11 
------ ..._-­-

-
~ 21.504 3.9-t=: :' 1,l)69 25IX.7H:1 .J2,22X %9,53:' IX3li2 IIX,535 5,032,6')8 -

-
151).J ~(),12 2 LlJ69 IIK535 20,91 I 1,%.1<61- 4,:"011 97.624 1,()7h,lh5

-,--'" 

.'I."IH .:; q,-i' ~ l.t)f1(!. __..! 1}S,535 ()()LJ.5J2 ,I,SOO l.~«~_(l~()--_...­-
3-16.3X) 

-
,IOIL'51l ~~,22?1 13,51 :' 3.J:: 1.7:'\fl 

7hA65 
~O,~O7 2:'.066 ..-....-----­

21U07 -U.~2X 1351 ) ; 7hl).67 )
----' 

20.,.107 _?I~():, ::1.9(19 ,~~_::2X 1~,OI:' J 11(535 5.0,'i. 1 J)l)S 

.­

-
-------
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CITY OF MERIDIA~, MISSISSIPPI 


Combining Statement or Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 


For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 
 -
2003 2008 2009 2009 To, 

General 2003 (;cneral (;eneral Increment 
Sownshce Obligation Flood flighw.y 1'1 City 11011 Obligation Obligation Financing 

Project Ronds Da,"agt.~ Orninae.c I nlprovcments lIonds Bonds Bonds 
Revenues; 

IntcrgovemHlclllal ~ ..Federal $ 

fnlerc<;t ollul\eslments ..... ~ ~ ___1_0 ~~~2,024 ~ .. ..... 2 

Total rcn,!nlh.:!:; __1.116 ·1\5 1.'J90 1.1 
 ~:!ll. 

Expenditures: 
('onstnlctioll contracts 355. J:;2 
Engineering and olher 51.252----.:!.2.!i ----

Towl expenditures ..... 4.514 ·10(>.384 

Excess (defidency) of re\'cllueS ­
o\-er (under) C\llCliditnres -'-1.:7l ~U5 H04.3'i4 ) ___1_3 352}) 26 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 198.(){JIJ 

Transfers oul ( 1 983)()O) 

Loall PIO<':CCOS 1 )1).0110 ..rotal otht.!r lin<mcmg soun.:cs (uses) ~~gOQ) 

Net change in fllnd b~lhHlccs IJA91l) 1.175 43" IS JJ10tl 13 1194.'172) 2(i .. 
Fulld 11"lances, October 1,21111 .·q~Un5 205.5tj~ 76.0.111 __~,557 Ig·l.b911 21hS 6()O.323 ~.63:' 

Fund balances, September 30,2012 3~6.3X5 10fJ.769 76.-1(1) ::!572 1 R8,l'16 2.27R ~65.851 ~.()5t) -
.. 
.. 
-
-
...

102 .. 



.. 

1M 

1M sCtIEl)lIl..E ::; 

1M 

-
1M 

261h ..henue 291h Avenue 2011 35th ,h·enue STP nrc Tolal 
1M 2010 Safe Roufes Viudutr Sownshee (;enerHI & ~Olh Street Milling. II ij!h'."" Station Nonm..jor 

i'\l1!;otiablc 10 S('hool Safel)' Creek Bridge Ohlig,"ion !Iridgc Leveling. Pork '0.9 (jo\crnfllcntal 

Note ')rojH' llJ)f!rades Renlacement Bonds Reu)acement "" O..rlov (;abions IJriHn\ood Funds-
11.202 775Jy16 7%578

1M 
116 18.206 ~7,619 

116 .1.7511 IX 20(, 818.197- --_._.- ~1l:01!2 .. .--.-~~ 

15.2711 625,125 969.532 51-RIO 2.012.869 
5".950 18A" , UIIIJ 60.72:' - I S.170 987.973 ·UIlI) 1185,).') 

.----~.. ---------._-----­ ----~----
~) 1661.86')) 78 __!212.~~7) _~.i:L~X8) ~:!112811<) 

---~-

1M 

J.9·L: 27.6.11 ·12.150 12.317 18.1I111J 118. '3' (;20.605 

\2()).6R:' ) ( t(d.6S5, 

211J.IIIJO---_.. --- ­
_1.9-0 (2.18.0 S·H 2 J] ,3·17 IX 000 IIS.535 :V}(),920.... -- ..... - .._--- -----­---~-

- 11(, ( 116i UN9,t)2:\) ~~,2~g. I \:'l~ i I.O.l:U<g') 

__.__~~_).~91 .1300 173 UW'::'.))7 

:::.·WO._~50 1\51 ~ 
~.~~~.~~~~-~ -

.... 
1M 

-
1M 

-
.... 
.... 
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SCHEDULE 6 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances­


Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2012 


Budgeted 
Original 

Actual 
(Budgetary 

Amounts Basis) 
Final Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget ­

Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues $ 4,977,750 6,000,000 5,583,322 (416,678) 

Expenditures - debt service 4,977,750 6,000,000 37&,800 

Net change in fund balances $ (37,878) (37,878) 

Fund Balance, October 1,2011 

Fund Balance, September 30,2012 $ 

104 
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.. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Special Revenue Fund 

SCHEDULE 7 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 


For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 
--
-- Actual Variance with 

(Budgetary Final Budget ­

Bud~eted Amounts Basis) Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative)-

Revenues $ 400,000 715.000 773.557 58.557-
Expenditures -

Proiect costs 2.5()().OOO 1.500.000 1.1)94.189--_.- ...--. ­--.-~ ~- Net chan!!,e in fund balances ); (2. 1 O()J)()()) ( I. 785.()OO) (320.732) 1.464.268- Fund balances, October 1,21111 4.009.468- Fund balances, September 311, 2012 $ 

-----
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SCHEDULES 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI ..
Capital Projects Funds 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances .. 
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 .. .. 
Actual Variance with 

(Budgetary Final Budget­ .. 
Budgeted Amounts Basis) Positive 

Original Final Amounts (Negative) ..
Revenues $ 85,000 335,000 5,013,141 4,678,\4\ 

Expenditures - capital outlay 3,635,000 6,500,000 5,273,409 1,226,591 .. 
Net change in fund balances $ (3,550,000) {6, 1 65,000) (260,268) 5,904,732 .. 

Fund balance, October 1, 2011 7,666.589 .. 
Fund balance, September 30, 2012 $ .. 

.. .. .. .. .. .. .. 


.. 


.. 
.. 
106 .. 




-
----
----
---
-----
-------

.. 


(This page intentionally left blank) 

107 




-
.. 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule ofGeneral Fund Expenditures -By Departments and Divisions 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2012 
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2011) .. ..

Executive, Finance 
Legislative and Community Fire Police 

IlDdlyd1£111 Rmu:sb llilv!lI2Rm!lnl llilRlll:lm!lnl llilWll:lment 
Personnel services: -

Salaries· regular $ 796,185 780,000 629,904 3,724,404 4,098,479 

Salaries· overtime 6,286 3,158 108 387,245 134,508 
 -Salaries· temporaries 65,000 36,010 8,068 11,733 25,183 

Fringe benefits 309,077 283,290 222,005 1,448,989 1,467,860 
 .. 

Total personnel services 1,176,548 1,102,458 860,085 5,572,371 5,726,030 
Contractual servic:es and supplies: 

Supplies· office 6,406 8,114 2,281 1,882 4,469 -
Supplies· operating 585 5,358 2,334 5,862 37,979 
Supplies· household 5,801 2,226 11,145 3,758 
Supplies· uniforms and clothing 27 1,955 19,566 47,143 ­
Supplies· materials direct 143 
Materials· small tools and workorders 193 604 582 5,076 1,312 -
Professional serv ices 433,731 123,205 6,794 4,841 508,473 

Telephone 6,847 85,036 5,460 6,451 24,192 
 -Postage 266 839 258 239 642 

Travel 18,708 3,904 3,711 14,930 10,150 

Freight 90 95 
 -
Advertising and publishing 22,581 5,853 2,845 148 46 .. 
Printing and binding 957 3,028 2,205 185 4,296 

Insurance 124,157 37,357 35,749 181,263 324,784 

Utilities 5,621 1,104,875 7,104 91,290 34,308 
 .. 
Operating and maintenance· buildings 3,094 6,237 5,503 31,906 8,723 

Operating and maintenance· grounds 852 1,097 80 
 .. 
Operating and maintenance· equipment 1,691 8,978 1,497 19,531 10,720 
Operating and maintenance· vehicles 4,206 888 16,301 107,985 520,365 
Operating and maintenance· computer services 9,070 78,506 18,301 73,500 64,086 
Rentals 2,520 12,709 2,968 2,751 -..Judgments and claims 14,028 4,685 11,299 29,314 111,373 
Dues and subscriptions 33,597 3,067 3,769 1,491 3,877 
Public relations 8,025 1,199 1,462 
Refunds 688 9 .. 
Job training 10,203 5,544 2,857 30,803 7,156 

Safety 20 63,762 
 .. 
Hospital and medical 9,715 17,372 24,304 


Total contractual services & supplies 717,080 1,506,483 136,151 722,667 1,753,618 
 ..
Capital outlay: 

Land ­Buildings 95,000 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and equipment 3,556 74,433 17,575 87,221 

Vehicles 20,969 15,950 
 -Total capital outlay J 55!! 7~ 4ll J8.5~~ 198171 

Debt servlee: 
Principal 53,797 ­
Interest 17,429 -Total debt service 

Transfers and other charges: 
71,226 .. 

Transfer to other funds 950,694 357,300 6,267 5,105 
Special projects 
Miscellaneous contributions 318,638 

54,706 120,288 
25,334 .­

Other projects and charges 
Total transfers and other charges 

23,479 

1,292,811 54,706 477,588 6,267 30,439 .. 
Total General Fund expenditures ·1011 
Total General Fund expenditures .1011 

3,189,995 

3,467,173 

2,809,306 

2,965,898 

1,512,368 

1,638,569 

6,499,476 

6,649,277 

7,510,087 

7,302,495 .. 
Increase (d ecrellse) $ 12771178~ 1156.592) 11261201) 1149,801) 207,592 .. .. 
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... SCHEDULE 9 

... 

... .. Parks, Arts District Totals 
Homeland Public Recreation & Parking Increase 

Works Cultural Affairs 2011 (Decrease).. m.w:!tt ~ ~ 

- 125,535 1,906,805 734,015 8,187 13,064,055 (260,541) 
871 82,942 27,906 6,607 473,865 175,766 

1,455 121,655 209,337 425,001 53,440 

. ­ 104,616 758,297 283,646 3,111 5,227,866 p46,975) 

- 232,477 2,869,699 1,254,904 19,190,787 P78,310) 

607 1,719 1,263 27 26,768 20,682 6,086 - 9,868 61,312 73,188 196,486 209,147 (12,661) 
1,946 5,097 19,215 526 49,714 47,338 2,376 
1,700 17,708 4,473 92,572 85,184 7,388 ... 
3,698 

122,623 
6,136 

23,245 
5,456 

146,011 
23,057 

133,561 
27,246 

12,450 
(4,189) - 29,502 3,619 61,341 4,090 1,175,596 1,283,218 (107,622) 

1,524 7,114 2,635 613 139,872 140,511 (639) 
221 (590) 1,875 35,7% (33,921) ... 1,199 2,405 586 55,593 53,992 1,601 
340 525 264 261 

- 807 2,317 
4,055 30 

34,597 
14,756 

30,854 
12,321 

3,743 
2,435 

- 15,175 
29,485 

276,294 
43,847 

69,248 
163,917 

13,564 
28,039 

1,077,591 
1,508,486 

997,994 
1,542,892 

79,597 
(34,406) 

11,369 17,418 36,256 12,961 133,467 112,500 20,%7 

- 3,678 42,161 37,101 84,%9 49,296 35,673 
10,891 48,424 54,968 2,806 159,506 200,601 (41,095) 

- 23,281 
20,670 

288,313 
31,390 

51,910 
20,043 

1,013,249 
315,566 

999,669 
243,794 

13,580 
71,772 

14,203 2,852 38,003 24,014 13,989 

- 211 98,871 48,583 318,364 472,255 (153,891) 
18 3,052 222 49,093 36,729 12,364 

- 15 
10,686 

712 
4,647 
1,996 

6,039 
(1,284) 

1,483 2,750 705 61,501 49,374 12,127 

. ­ 2,410 10,934 
195 

2,664 79,790 67,948 11,842 
764 

- 168,800 1,106,953 685,653 62,671 6,934,730 (74,654) 

- 7,856 4,803 107,659 
70,000 

9,963 
(70,000) 
97,696 

2,299 (2,299) 

- 2,263 64,133 
119,948 

47,702 
40,655 

1,000 297,883 

197.2" 

353,517 
5032~ 

(55,634) 
147200 

- 10119 184081 9316Q 1000 603.064 486101 116,963 

.. 53,797 174,555 

199,287 

(120,758) 
F,303) 

(128,061) - 45,821 170,000 1,535,187 1,684,034 (148,847) 

... 34,681 35,019 244,694 
343,972 

468,978 
402,706 

(224,284) 
(58,734) 

18,993 4,486 

80,502 205.019 2,147,332 2,574,711 (427,379)... 
411,396 4,241,235 2,238,736 81,576 28,494,175 29 385 616 !891 1441) - 1 1

4,471,576 2,277,069 29,385,616 

(38,771) (230,341) p8,333) (81 816) (891 ,441) .. 1
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.. NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

.. .. 	 Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
simi lar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the government's council is that the .. 

.. costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges, or where the government's cOllncil has decided that 
periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accollntability purposes . .. 
Golf Course This fund is used to account for the activities of the Citis public golfcollrse . .. 
Union Station This fund reflects the operating results of the multi-modal facility located in the 
downtown area of the City. .. 	 Concessions - This fund is lIsed to account for the activities or the Citis Highland Park 
Carollsel concessions and concession stands at the softball parks. 

,. 
.. 
.. 
.. 

.. 

.. 
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SCHEDULE 10 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Combining Statement of Net Assets 
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

September 30, 2012 

ASSETS 

Coif 

Course 

Union 
Station Concessions 

Total 
Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds III 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash e4uivalents 

Receivables - miscellaneous 
Invcntory 

Prcpaid itcms 

$ 38.031 

37,247 

134.420 
6.047 

1.420 

89,772 

2.299 

262.223 

6.047 
39.546 

Total current assets 75.950 92.071 

Capital assets: 
Buildings 
Impro\'Clllellts other than buildings 
Maehiner) and equipmcnt 

Total capital assets 
Less m:cumulated depreciation 

126.628 

98.924 

(532.500) 

126,628 
98.924 

(576.798 ) 
599.628 60.774 660...102 

Capital assets (net of 

accumulated depreciation) 16.4 76 83.604 

Tota I assets 143.078 92.071 12 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liahilities: 

Pa) roll 

Sales tax 

Due to othcr funds 
('urrcl1t portion or capital leases 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities­
('apital I<.:ase payable. net or current portioll 

10.829 

:n.062 
1.661 

315 

46.145 

1.026 

19.186 

6.893 

555 

--­

26.634 

2.432 

189 

687 

3.308 

32...147 

40.144 

2.348 
87() 

278 

7(,J)87 

1.026 

.. 

Totallillbilities 47.171 77.113 

NET ASSETS 

111\'<.:sted in ellpitulassets. net of relatcd debt 65.824 16.476 82.3()O 

l Jnrestrieted 30.083 88.763 .. 
Total net assets $ 95.907 131.729 316.399 

112 .. 
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 SCHEDULE 11 

1 154 

CITY OF' MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets -

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 -

Total 
:\onmajor 

Golf Union Enterprise 
Course Station Concessions Funds 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for sales and services: 

Memberships $ 57,936 57.936 
Green fees 69,009 69,009 
Cart rental 6~.807 62.807- Concessions 105.666 34,216 139.88~ 

Rental income 64,325 64.325- Miscellaneous 146 .. Total operating revenues 295,564 64,325 

.. Operating expenses: 
Personnel services 229.805 89,509 9,830 3~9,144 

Supplies and materials 113.2~9 10.459 15.569 139,~57 

Rent and utilities 24.474 40,8~6 65.300 
Operation. maintenance. and repairs 82,104 98,833 180,937 
Depreciation 7.499 4.713 1~,~12 

M iseellaneous 1.096 118.740 

Total operating cxpenses 26.495 845.590.. 
Operating income (loss) ( 170,667) (~88539) (450.477).. 

:\onopenlting revenues (expenses): 
Jnterest income 40 673 471 1.184 
Interest ex pense (85) 

Total nonoperating revenucs (expenses) 1,099 

Income (loss) hefore tnlllsfers ( 170.712) (~87,866) (449378) 

Transrers ­
Transfers ill 170.000 299.450 

Change in nN assets (71~) 11,584 9.~00 ~0.()7~ 

NN assets, October I. 20 II 96.619 .. NN assets, Septemher 30, 2012 $ 95.907 131,729 316,399 

-.. 
.. 
.. 
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SCHEDULE 12 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Comhining Statement orCash Flows 


Nonmqjor Enterprise Funds 


For the Fiscal Year Ended Scptemhcr 30, 2012 


Total 

Nonmajor 
Golf llninn Entel'prise 

Course Station Concessions Funds 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts !rol11 customers and users 295.564 69.472 :15.224 400.260
'" Paymcnts to suppliers (230.279) (271,538) ( 13.4(5) (515.282) .. 

(89,564) (329,961)l'aYll1.:nts to employees 

Net ellsh provided by (used in) 

openlting llctivitics (291,630) (444.983) 

Cash flows from noneapital financing aclivities­
Transli:rs from other funds 170.000 469.450 

Cash flows from capital and rehllel.l tinllncing activUies: 
Acquisition or capital assets (6JW6) (6.806) .. 
Principal paymcnts - capital Icasc (262) (262) 


Interest paymcnts - cllpital lease 


Ncr cash used in capital and 

related tinllncing activities (7,15:1) 


('Ilsh 110ws from in\'(~sting m:thities­
III tcrest reed vcd 67:1 1.184 ..

._-­

Net increase (decrease) in ellsh lind cash cqul\'lIlents (:2.349) 8A93 12.354 18.498 

("lIsh lind clIsh equhalents, October t, 2011 40.380 77.418 .. 
('ash IIml cash e(luh'alents, September 30, 2012 $ 134,420 262.223 

R('cllncililltion of openlling income (loss) 10 net 

cash provided b~' (lised in) IIllcmling activ it ies: 
Operating im:omc (loss) '[; (170.667) (288.539) 8.729 

Adjustments to reconcile operating 111<':0111<': (loss) to 
l1et cash providcd b~ (used in) operating activities: 


Ikpreciation 7.499 4.713 12.212 

Changes in assets nnd linhilitics: 
 .. 

Accoulits r..:ccIvahlc 1.965 1.965 


Due Ii'olll cOlllponcnt uni" :1.182 3.182 


Invenllll') 5.758 1.168 6.926 

I'repaid itcms (25) ( 129) ( 154) 
 .. 
Account;, pa)ablc (7.394) (13.(141 ) 2.232 ( 18.2(3) 


Act:rued liahililii:s (562) (56) (246) (864) 
 .. 
Due to otiler funds 275 .t30 

rotal udjustmcills (3,091 ) 5.494 .. 
Net rllsh pnlvided by (used in) 


operating activities $ (165.236) 
 ..11.883 

114 .. 




- INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

-- Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one 
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City and to other governmental 
units on a cost reimbursement basis. - Municipal Supply Fund ­ This fund is used to account lor City garage and fuel activity. 

- Municipal Office Supply Fund This fund is used to account tor City office supply activity. 

- Health and Life Insurance Reserve Fund This fund is used to account for the receipts and 
disbursements of claims paid by the City for employee health and lile insurance. .. 

-
Unemployment Compensation Fund ­
City for unemployment compensation. 

.. 
----.. 
-.. 
.. 
-

-.. 
--

This fund is used to account for the claims paid by the 
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SCHEDULE 13 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Combining Statement of Net Assets 

Internal Service Funds 

September 30, 2012 
 .. .. 

Health Total 
Municipal and Life Internal 

Municipal Office Insurance Unem ployment Service 
.fu!.Im.!y Reserve ComQensation Funds~ 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 166,876 19[ 2,389 16.415 211,871 
Receivables - miscellaneous 6,617 6,617 
Due from other funds: 

General fund 50,592 200,146 250,738 ..Water and sewer fund 8.019 151,085 159.104 

Waste collection & 


disposal fund 50 50 

Golf course fund 316 316 

Unioll Station fund 555 555 


Due from component unit 407 407 

Inventory 
 .. 

Total current assets 277,766 28.542 360,237 16.415 682,960 

LIABILITIES 
II1II 

Current liabilities ­
Accounts payable 52,545 113 41 

.-~---~-- .. 
Total current liahilities 360.237 412.895 .. 

NET ASSETS .. 
lJ nrestricted S 225,221 28,429 15 270.065 .. 

..
116 .. 



--.. SCHEDULE 14 
CITY OF MERmIAN, MISSISSIJ>PI- Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

.. .. Internal Serviee Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2012 

.. 
 Health Total 


Municipal and Life Internal 

Municipal Office Insurance Unemployment Service 
Reserve Compensation Funds - fu!Im.!.t fu!Im.!.t .. 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for sales and services $ 481,463 2,816 484279- Premiums 3354,231 3,354231 
Reinsurance reimbursement 108,805 108.805 

Total operating revenues 481,463 16 3,463,036 5 -
Operating expenses:
.. Administration fees 523.767 523.767 


-
Costs of sales and serv ices 480,458 2,no 483.178 
Claims paid 47.585 2.986,858-.. Total operating expenses 480,458 3,463.040 3.993.803 

Operating income (loss) 1.005 96 (4) (47.585) (46,488) -
Nonoperating revenues ­-

Interest income 839 151 4 99..t-.. I ncome (loss) before transfers in 1.844 247 (47.585) (45.494) 

Transfers in 64.000 64.000 
~....--" ---"" -

Change in net asset!. 1.844 247 16.415 18.506 .. Nel assets, October 1,2011 182 251 

Net assets. Septem ber 30, 2012 $ 28,429 15 nO.065 ----.. 
- 117 
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SCHEDULE 15 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 


Internal Service Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 .. ­

Health Total 
Municipal and Life Intcrnal 

IVI unicipal Office Insurancc Ilncmployment Service ­
Reserve Compensation Fundsfu!..Lu!.!l: ~ 

('ash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from clIstomers and llsers $ 507.841 2.816 3.657.013 4.167.670 ­
Payments to slIppliers (474.950) (4.064) (4.187.080 ) -

Net cash provided by (used in) 


operating activities 32.891 (1.248) (3.474) (47.585) (19.416) 


Cash flows from noncapital financing activities­ -
Transfers from other funds 64.000 64.000 

Cash flows from investing activities ­

I nlerest received 4 
-~"".---

I\el increase (decrease) in -
cash and cash equivalents 33.730 (1.097) (3.470) 16.415 45.578 .. 

Cash and cash e!luivalents, O(·tober 1,2011 166.~93 
~---

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30,2012 $ 166.876 ~6.191 2.389 

Reconcililltion of operating income (loss) to net 

cash provided by (used in) orerating activities: -
Operating income (loss) $ (47.585 ) /46.48!i.) -Adjustments to reconcile op\!nlting income (loss) 10 


net eush provided by (used in) operating activilies: 


Changes in assets and liahilities: 

Receivables - miscellancous 4.213 4.223 

Due I'rol11 olher 1I.lIlds 23.85:1 189.755 213.6()8 


Duc from cllmponellluilits 2.525 2.525 

Imentory (2.199) 107 (2.092) 


Accounts payable 7.707 (1.451 ) -.L197.448) ( ]91.192) 

~.....---

Totul adjustments .11.886 .. (1.344) _ (3.470) 

Net cash provided by (used in) oJleratin~ adi\itics $ 32.891 ( 1.248) (19.416) -----
118 -
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Agency Funds 

Agency funds are lIsed to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments and/or other funds. 

~Firemen & Policemen Disability & Relief This fund is used to account for the dedicated 
property tax assessment and collections forwarded to the Public Employees' Retirement System 
("'PERS") for a closed tire and policemen retirement system managed by PERS. 

General Retirement - This fund is used to account for the dedicated property tax assessment 
and collections forwarded to PERS tor a closed municipal employee retirement system managed 
by PERS. 

Meridian Community College This fund is used to account for property tax collections and 
disbursements to Meridian Community College to be lIsed for its operations. 

Meridian Separate School District This fund is used to account for property tax collections 
and disbursements to Meridian Separate School District to be lIsed for operation and 
maintenance. 

Hospital Insurance - This fund is used to account for additional amounts withheld from 
employees' pay which are held for the purpose of offsetting potential large future rate increases 
on hospital insurance premiullls. 

State Police Fines & Fees This fund is lIsed to account t()1' state tines and fees collected by the 
City Municipal Court for the State of Mississippi. 

Meridian Separate School District Bonds & Interest This fund is used to account for 
property lax collections and disbursements to Meridian Separate School District to be used for 
debt service reduction. 

119 
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SCHEDULE 16 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds 


September 30, 2012 


Meridian 

Firemen & Meridian State Separate ..
Policemen Meridian Separate Police School District Total 

Disabilit}' General Community School Fines & 

Retirement 

~Iospital Bonds & Agency 

& Relief College District Insurance Fees Interest Funds 


ASSETS 
 ... 
Cash and cash equivaicnts $ 120jO& 73.381 118,495 998,802 48,746 28.419 92_602 1,480.951 

Intergovernmental receivables-

County _ 9,528 tURO 13,976 112,029 1) 153232 ...-.~-- II1II 

Total assets $ 130,036 79,761 2RAI9 

LlAHlIrrn:S 

InlergO\ crnmcntal pavabks 

School, $ 132,471 UI(UGI 103.921 IJ47.223 

I'FRS IJO()31> 7'U61 209,797 ... 
Stal.: 2R 41') 28.419 

1':lTlpIOl cc tllsunmcc II Ithhdd 48.741> 48,7-16 
~ .....--- -_._­ ... 

'/'ntalliabilitil'S S Lli (J.S31 4i!.741> 

... 

... .. .. 

... .. 
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... SCHEDULE 17 (Page I of 3) 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities ... Agency Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 

Balance Balance... 
September 30, September 30, 

2011 Additions Deletions 2012 

Firemen & Policemen Disability & Relief 

ASSETS- Ca,h and ~ash ~qllivalcnls $ 110.174 1.583.461 1.573.127 120.508 

InlcrgovCnlllll'nlal - cOllnl~ 10.084 9.528 IO.()84-
Total assets $ 120.258 1.592.989 1.583.211 130.036-

LIABILITIES 

130J)36Inll'rgO\ crIllllcnlal - I'I:RS $ 120.258 1.592.989-... 
General Retirement 

ASSETS 

... ('<I,ll find I:<I,h cqlli\ aicills 73.795 964.860 %5.274 73.381 

Illkrgo\ cfIllllcnlal - count: 6.813 6.380 6.813 6.380 

Total assets 80.608 972.087 

... 
LIABILITIES ... 

Illlcrgmcrnlllclltal- I'LRS 80.608 971.24() 972.087 79.761 

.. Meridian Community College 

ASSETS-
('ash and 1:<1,11 CQU1\ ~dcllls $ 124.707 2.142.156 2J48.368 118.495 

inlcrg()\ CrilillClI1,iI - COlllll: -
Total assets $-

I 

LIABILITIES 

... Illlcrgm CnlIII 1..'11 taI - schools 

( '(Jillilllled) ---
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SCHEDULE 17 (Page 2 or 3) -


CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI .. 
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 


Agency Funds 
 .. 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 ... 
..
Balance Balance 

September 30, 
2011 Additions Deletions 

September 30, 
2012 ... 

Meridian Separate School District .. 
ASSETS ... 

Cash and cash equivaicnts $ 1'()52.273 16.924,224 16,977.695 998.802 

Intcrgovcrnmcntal - counly 116.4()6 112.029 

Total assets $ 1.168.679 17.036,253 1,l10,831 

LIABILITIES .. 
Intergovernmental - schools $ 1.168.679 17.036.253 17,094,101 1.11 0.831 

ASSETS 

48.612 

LIABILITIES 

Emplo) ec insurance \\ ithhcld $ 48.612 

Hospital Insurance .. 
48.7463.076.103 -.. 

3.076.103 48. 746 

State Police Fines & Fees -ASSHS 

Cm,h and c<lsh cquivakllts 

LIABILITIES 

Intergovcrnmental - slatl: 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash <=quivaients 

Inkrgovcrnlllcnial - count) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Inlcrgovernr11l:nlal - schools 

$ 69.151 876.551 l)J 7.283 28AI9 -
69.151 28AI9 .. 

Meridian Separate School District Bonds & Interest .. ..
$ 101.023 1.675.312 1,683.733 92.602 

12,903 11.319 I 11.319 ... 
103.921$ 113.926 1.686.631 ... 

... 
$ 113.926 103.911 ...

(Conlinlll'd) -122 -
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 SCH EDU LE 17 (Pal!e 3 of 3) 

1.741.488 

27.242.667 

153.232 

27341,449 IASO,953 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI - Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities .. Agency Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2012 -- Balance Balance 


September 30, Septem ber 30, 


2011 Additions Deletions 2012 


Total Agency Funds 

ASSETS.. .. Cash alld cash equivalents $ 

.. Intergovernmental n:cei vab les 


Totlll assets $ 


- LIABILITIES 

Inll'rgO\cl'rnJlH:ntul payable;; $ I.A92,X76 24.319.796 24.427.233 1585,439 

Emplo,\ ec inslirancl' wilhh.: Id ·IK() 12 

Totlliliabilities $ 1.741.488-


-
-
-------

MAY 2 9 2013 

-
-
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NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS 

,. 

Meridian Transportation Commission - The Meridian Transportation Commission ("MTC') 
(a discretely presented component unit) is a legally separate entity established by resolution of - the City Council of the City of Meridian. MTC was established to account for and manage the ,. 
local public mass transit system. 

Meridian and Bonita Lakes Development Authority - The Meridian and Bonita Lakes -
Development Authority ("MBLDA ") (a discretely presented component unit) is a legally- separate entity established by resolution of the City Council of the City of Meridian. As such. it 

,. is a political subdivision for the purposes of constructing or leasing a convention center and/or 
coliseum facility and of developing and operating any improvements, lands or structures and ,. commercial activities compatible with a sllstained and viable tourism industry within the City of 
Meridian. the County of Lauderdale or the general geographic region. - Additional information regarding component unit status can be tC)lllld in note 1 (a) of the notes to 
the financial statements. -,. 

,. 
,. 
,. 

-----
------
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SCHEDULE 18 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI .. 

Combining Statement of Net Assets 

Nonmajor Component Units 


September 30,2012 
 .. 
Meridian and Total .. 

Meridian Bonita Lakes Nonmajor 
Transportation Development Component .. 

Commission Authority Units 
ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,311 4,311 

Receivables ­ .. III 
Intergovernmental - State 4,329 

Total current assets 4,329 4,311 8,640 .. 
Capital assets (net of 
accumulated depreciation) ­

Machinery and equipment 844 844 .. 
Total assets 173 9,484 .. 

LIABILITIES .. 
Current liabilities: 

Bank overdraft 17 17 

Current pOl1ioll of note payable 3,756 3.756 

Accounts payable 1 I 14.261 .._._- 18,034Total current liabilities 18,034 

Noncurrent liabilities ­

Note payable, less current pOl1ion 11,857 .. 
Total liabilities 29.891 

NET ASSETS 

Invested ill capital assets, 
net of related debt 844 844 

Unrestricted (deticit) 4.311 (21.251 ) .. 
Total net assets $ (24,718) 11 .. .. 

.. ..
126 .. 
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SCHEDULE 19 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Combining Statement of Activities 

Nonmajor Component Units 


For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30. 2012 


Net (Expense) Revenue 
Program Revenues and Changes in Net Assets 

Meridian and Total 
Operating Capital Meridian Bonita Lakes Nonmajor 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Transportation Developmcnt Component 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services C<mtributiQns Contrlbutions Commission Authoritv Units 

Nonmajor component units: 
Meridian Transpoltation Commission $ 420.716 25.508 205,.:129 (\89.779) (\89.779) 

t'-' Meridian and Bonita Lakes 
--..I 

Development Authority 2.905 300 

Total nonmajor component units S 423.311 15.508 108.334 ( 189.779) 300 (J 89.4 79) 

General rcvenues ­
Interest income 40 

Change in net assets (189.740) 301 ( 189,439) 

Net assets, October I, 20 II 165.022 4.010 \69.032 

Net assets (deficit), September 30,2012 $ (24,718) ..Ull (20A07) 
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(This page intentionally left blank) ... -.. .. -.... 

-... 
... 
... .. .. .. 
... 
... .. 
... 
...

128 .. 



.. 

-
-
.. 

.. 

.. 
.. 
.. 

.. 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
.. 

-

-
-
-
.. 


OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule Reconciling Original Ad Valorem 


Tax Rolls to Fund Collections 

For the I-iscal Y car Ended September 30, 2012 


Assessed 

City of Meridian: 

Realty 

Persona I property other than auto 
Public utilities 

Personal autos - 2010 rates 

Personal autos - 20 II rates 

Personal autos - 2012 rates 

Value 

$ 226.864.762 

53.387.753 
24.198.956 

3.531 
3.169.248 

Millage 

50.84 
50.84 

50.84 
50.84 

50.84 
50.84 

Total City of 'Hcridian valuation $ 

Less homcstcad excmption allowed 

Total City au valorem taxes 

Adjustments to original tax roll: 
Realty 

Personal 
Ilolllcstead excmption 

Add: 
Actual homestead rcilnbursenlent 

Motor vchiek rent tax 
Payments in lieu ol'taxe, 

Prior year tax collection 

Mobile homes 

A ircra II 

Total ('ity to Ilccount lilr 

Scparatc Schooll>istrict: 

Realty 

Personal property - other than Huto 
Public utilities 

Pcrsonal autos· 20 I() ra«;, 

Personal autos - 20 II rates 
Persona I autos 2012 rules 

$ 221.621.904 
53.0:n.329 
32.558.508 

3.531 
2.952.245 

26.160.892 

67.31 
67.31 
67.31 

64.23 
67.51 
67.31 

Total SCPllrlltc Schooillisirict \aluation $ 336.329.409 

Less homestead c'\emrtion allo\\cd 

Total Separate School District au \lIlorem taxes 

Adjustments 10 original ta" roll: 
Reali) 

Persollal 

Iloll1estcmJ c:-;elllrtioll 

Adll: 
Prior year tax collectioll 

Mohilc hOlllcs 

Total Separate Schooillisirictto account lor 

Total City of I\lcriuian and Separate School I)istricllo account for 

SCHEDULE 20 (Page I of2) 

Ad Valorem 

Taxes 

$ I 1.533.805 
2.714.233 
1.230.275 

ISO 

161.125 

17,060.367 

_(957.\01) 

16.103.266 .. 
(21.163) 

3.231 

(26.71)3) 
 .. 

576.845 
80.788 

115.041 
76.228 

5.659 

861.1\10 


16,1)38..156 -
14.'>17.370 
3.569.606 
2.191.513 

227 
199.306 

1.760.890 

21.638.912 

( 1.812.428) -
20.826,484 ..(46.296) 

4.572 
(49.530) 

160.664 

17.684 178.348 ­
$ 37,893,658 

(Con/iI/lied) 

-
130 




.. 

... SCHEOlJLE 20 (Pa2e 2 o(2) 

... 

... 


... 


.. Accounted for as follows: 

General Fund .. (jenera I Fund - Pilot 

.. 
General Bond and Interest 
School l~(lnd <lnd ]nlerest 
Police and Fire Disabilit) 
General Retircmcnt 
School Fund 

... 
Total accounted for 

.. 
 Hahmce represented by: 

Rcal property held trolll tax sak 

Unpaid personal property 
Ikid b) ta'. colkclor... Sold to slatc 
1,1' collector's conlll1i,siOIl... Iinaccolll1led tilr 

rota I ad \alorrm taxes 

.. 

.. .. 

.. 

.. 

... 


... 


... 

... 

... 

... 

... 

.. 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule Reconciling Original Ad Valorem 


Tax Rolls to Fund Collections 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 


Taxes 

$ 9.212.902 

115.041 

4.103.072 

1.675.312 

1,527.524 

930.821 

18.916.830 

131 

Uomestclul 

Reimbursement 

336.M4 

150,225 

55.937 

34.039 

--_.... ­

$ 576.845 

Total 

9.549,546 

115,041 

4.253.297 

1.675,312 

1.583.461 

18.916.830 

:n.058,347 

138.986 

383.410 

28.244 

112.443 

172.225 

964.860 



CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Investments 


September 30, 2012 


Issue Maturity 
Oate Oate 

General fund unrestricted: 
Certilicate 0 t'deposit 06/30/12 12/27/12 
Certi lieate of deposit 07/05/12 01/03113 

Total general fund investments - unrestricted 

Oebt service fund - restricted -
Cenilicate or deposit I III 0/20 I I 11/10/12 

Special revenue fUlld unrestricted ­
('erti lieate or deposit 7/1112012 01107113 

Proprietary funds - restricted: 
lInited States Treasury Notes 11/15/12 

United Sllltes I"rcasury NOles OJ/15/13 

Federal Ilome Loan Mortgage Corporale Discounl Notes 12117/12 
Federated (jO\crnmcnt Ohligatiol1s hllld 

Total proprietary funds investments - restricted 

Interest 

Rate 


O.50oA, 

OJO% 

O.M'Yo 

O.50'}O 

SCHEDULE 21 

Amount 

$ 675.000 -
$ 1.350.000 

S 400.000 

$ 200.000 

$ 427.062 

303.676 

751.681 

$ 

.. .. --

-

-
-




-.. .. SCHEDULE 22 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI - Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials 

September 30, 2012 --
- Name Position Insurance Company Bond 

Cheri M. Barry Mayor Travelers $ 50,000 *-
George M Thomas Councilman Western Surety Company 100,000 

Mary A. B. Perry Counci Iman Western Surety Company 100,000 -- Barbara I-Jenson Councilman Western Surety Company 100,000 - Jesse E. Palmer, Sr. Counci Iman Western Surety Company 100,000 

.. Robby R. Smith Councilman Western Surety Company 100.000 

- Tim Miller Chie f Administrative Officer Western Surety Company 50,000 

Ed Skipper City Clerk/CFO Berk ley Surety Group 50,000-
Leigh Hm'ber Assistant Director, Finance & Ohio Casu,llty Insurance Company SO.OOO - Record/Deputy Clerk 

.. James M. Reed Police Chief Western Surety COIllP<lIlY 50.000 

Blanket Policy All city employees Travelers SO.OOO-.. 
-.. 
.. " noml coverage for the City'S Mayor represents coverage under the blanket bond for all City employees. rhe 

City Chief Administrative Officer and ClerklTreasurer are covered under special tidelity bonds fix SSO,OOO . 

--

-
---
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 SCIIEDlLE 23 
CITY 01; MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule orChanges in Long-Term Debt- For the Fiseal Year Ended September 30. 2012 -- Amount of Balance Balance 

Ilale of Inlel'cst Original September JO. Prineipal "iew Septemher JO. 

Issue Rale Issue 20 II I'll"men ts Issues 2012 
_ GOI'Crnrnental al'livities: 

Public Improvement or 1998 03!01/1l)<}X 420,600% $ 1,500.000 XI5.00() .l9S.000 420.0()() 

Public Improvement of 1999 (WO I! Il)99 4, IO-5,70% 1.1 SO/)OO 300.000 9S.00() 2()5,O()O - Public Improvement 012006 06iOI/2006 ,j()O-5jO% IO.(JOO.O()O X275,OOO ~OO.()()() 7Jl75,{)OO 
Water and S<.:\\er Improvcment of 2007 04/01/2007 175-5.25(% UOO,OOO j, I J().OOO 135.000 2,975.000- Public Imrrovcl11cnt or 2008 04/22/20()X 2,60-.H,5% 1.000.000 845.0()O 5:'.000 79(UJO() 

Public Imrrovement of 200t) 06/01/200') 3,OO-,I,()()O,,, IO'c)()O.OOO lJ.365'()OO 3,j().O()() 9.025.000 
Refunding Bonds of2011 07/0112{JII 2,()()-2S0'% 3.'J60.0()O 1.960.000 :'X5.000 3,375,000 
I'uhlic hnrnll emcnt of 20 I I OJ/OI/2011 110-4,,10% .)j()().()()() ~,500.()()0 145.000 .J3S5.000 
I'uhhe Il11prLlIement ot2012 04/12/2012 I, 90-2 70j~o .J.500'()OO ').500.(jOO -.. lotal general ohligal HlIh honds ·1,1,21 (),()()() JI,17(U)()0 2,15(),()OO .J.500.00() H:'i20.000 

Special Ohligmion Bonds 2(jOJA 07/01120U} 2. 7.'i-~.50':·o 5500.000 3,890.00() 2S0.00() 3.6·IOJ)()() 

Special Ohhgatioll Bonds 200311 07/01120OJ .130-:'U75°0 I,)OO.O()() IJ)95 000 65.000 1.030,000.. Total special ohligation honds 7,(lOO.OOO .)'J85,OOO .J'()70,()OO 

- I 1111 lied ()hligatioll Ta'. Increl1lent Bonds 09/01/2000 '!,()(j",(, UOO,(IOO 655'!)()O 31 SJ)OO 3.JO,()O() 

Lll1llh:d (lhllgalioll Tax Incremenl Bonds 12!O1/20()() <) 00"" I 100.000 ]00.000 1--I:i,OOO 1:'i).O()O 

-
I 1I1111ed Obllgalion Ta'. Incrcl11enll3onds 12/17/20()'i X 75(!u .J'()OO'()O() .l,X65 000 1,\5.000 3.720.()(l()... Limited Obligatiun Ta:-; Im;rc:mC:1lI flonds 0110 1120 10 " O()'~u 300.000 2XOJJOO 20J)O() 260'()O() 

I otal 1:1\' increment honds 7,(,()(UIO() 5,IOOJ)OO 625,1)00 .J,.J75,OO() 

l~e\'()I\lng loan - eapilal impro\cmenl> Oh/0I!2001 .1J)OOu I.IIOO.O()() 73.237 2S6,23H - Inerg~ Conserl'lIl iOI1 loan (13/01'20 II O.25i~o 210'(100 210,000 I W.224 

Total prol11i,sol) IOHns L2111.000 3:\9 . .J75 IOJ.OU 21O,()OO 466.462 

I;l\ahlc Negotiable Notes 02/IXf20 10 1.100.000 XXOJ)OO no 000 6611.0()O 

rolalla\able negotlahle notes 1,II)O.IIlIl) XXlLO()() 220J)0() 

--
'>pceial :\>s.:ssmClit Public Improvemcnl 061() 1119%1 711-6 7()':" 2.0()O'()()(I 73S,()()(J 131UJOO ()()'i.()()O 

Spcellll i\'scssll1ent Public Ill1rrovcmenl 06iOl!20()() 5.211-().2'i':0 1,12:i0()() h7()'()()() (1),()()O 610.000 

Sp~'lal ;\SS""I11<:11I Public Imr 200 I OS/O I!2()() I .) )0-6 (10"0 50()O(II) ,\ 15.00() 25,000 2'li!JI()() 

TOUII 'p.:cial a"c"nl~nl 362:iJIlIO 1.720'(1()() 215.000 1.50:'UJ()O 

l'iliCapilal I case encrg} saving equipmenl 0512112002 709,(j()h 325,73h S3.7'16 27i'J40 

I otal capilal lea'<:, 71J ).Ot>h 32~. 7Jh 53.7'16 27l.lJ.)O 
~--'

')')~4(J,211.. rotal gm "l'nllH'lllal llt'ti\ ilirs 

IIl1silH',s-typr arti\ities: 

Wat..:r and '>':llcr lI.el eilllC 12/0 III '1<)5 4 6il-(l.:iO"" 'I> :UIOIl.O()() I,XJ5J)()O ,\25J)OO 1,511i,(I()O .. Wal':l and St:llcr Revenue IOfO Iii 9<)7 .),)0-(d75"" 5000'()OO 2,375.000 2X5.000 2.0l){J,()1)1) 

Walcr and >,ellcr Relenue OhIO 112000 :; OO-h.25';" 2.000,()OO 1.210.0()O IIJ5.0{)O I.IO),()()() 

roml revellllc hond, 12.1)111)()OO 'i,.J2IU)()O 15.000 4.70),()()0 

Water and seller plOml"<lI1 loan 1211l11l'l9l{ .J70-6125";, 5.31l0.000 3.7.1.',000 225.000 J.511I,O()() 

Water and sCller promissol) loan 11/2912001 2.30-5.125" .. .t IOO.()OO 2.275.0()() 110.000 2,1()5J)OO 

Wat.:r and sellcr pwmi>Slll")' loan 07101/200J 2 (>1)-.\ 25"" 75'111.()()() 2.J.J5'()OO 755.000 I.5l)O.O(JO -- Waler and SC\lcr promissor) loan 0312~/20().J I Oll-::' OO'!" 2')()().OOO 2 I 65.0()0 125.000 2 O~(lO()O 

EP;\ Clean Water Sink Revolving hll1d 1.0an IO!O If20 10 1.75"" SA 11.225 1,60X.323 

Total rrol11issory loans n)OI.225 IO,520.00() L215.000 160lU2" 1O')IUn 

ClliCapitallcasc energy saving cqllirmcnl 05121/2002 ~,X71Jo LIJS.UXI ~76,l)35 79,904 397,(131 -
Citit 'apllallcu,c energy saving equipment 05i21J2002 :'i,X7"", ,1A60 Ij6h 262 1,3(),1 

h'lal capital leases 1.056.6.J I _~7XjOI J9X.335 -
TOlill hllsim'ss-Iypr ilclivilies 16,4Il(501-

135--
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-.. ..CITY OF MERIIlIA-' •.\'IISSISSIPPI 
Schedule of Long-Tcrlll Debt Maturities 

Septemher 30, 2012 MIll 

Amount of Balance -Date of Interest Original September 30, 
Issue Rate Issue 2012 2013 

Governmental activities: .. 
Public Improvement of 1998 0310111998 420,(iOO% $ 4,500,000 420,000 420.000 ..Puhilc Improvement of 1999 041011I'N9 4.10,5.70% 1.150.000 105.000 IOO,t)OO 
Puhlic Improvement 01'2006 06/01/2006 40()-550'Yo 10.000.000 7.R75J)()() 410.0()() 
Water and Sc\Ycr Ill1provel11~nt of 2007 04!OI!2007 3. 75-5.25~o 3,600.000 2.975'o()(} 145.000 .. 
Puhllc Improvement or2()(}8 04/22!200S 260-365% I,()(}(l,l)()() 790J)OO 60,000 
Pllhlic Improvement 01'2009 06101/2009 300-4.00% In,non,ooo 9,025,000 355,000 .­Refunding Bonds or 2011 07101/2011 200·2.50% 3.%0.000 3,375,000 605J)()() 

I'uhlie Improvement or2011 0310112011 3.10·4.40% 4,S00,OOO 155,000 
.'uhilc Improvement 01'2012 04/12/2012 1.<)0-2.70% 4,500.0()() .. 

Total geneml ohligations honds 43)IO.O()() ..
Specml OblIgation Bonds 2003A 07/0112003 275·4.50% 5.5()().O()() 3,640.000 26(jJ)OO 

Special ObligatIOn Bonds 200313 07/0112003 3 30-5 3751Yo 1.500.000 1,030.000 70,000 ..Total special obi igation honds 7,()OOJ)()O 4,6?Q,OOO 33(),OOO 

Lllllited Ohligatiol1 Tax Increment Bonds 0910112000 900% 2.2(lO.O(lO 340.000 340,000 .. 
Limited Ohllgation Tax Increment Bonds I210 I/:WOO 900% I IOOJ)()(J !5:i.ODO I 55.00() 
I Imiled Obligation Tax Increment Bonds 12/1712009 R 75%) 4J)OO.OoO 3,nO.OOo 160.000 
Limited Ohllgalion Ta;,: Increment Bonds 03/0 1/20 I 0 500'Yn 300.000 260J)()0 20.000 ..

---"._--"­
Total tax IIlcrcmcnt bonds 7.600.000 4.4 75,000 675,O()() .. 

RC\(llvlIlg J08n capiwl Improvements 06101/2001 .)00%) IO()O.OOO 2&6.23S 75.276 
I:ncrgy Con~er\'a!lon LOtH! O}IO IllO II {) 151;ilj 18(J,22~ 2LJ.8:\O 

IDial promissory 10HI1S 41)6Ahl 105,126 -
Ta'~lbk Ncgolillbk NOleS 0211812010 2.711%, LlllO.OOO 660.0(JO 22(),()(lO 

Tolal w,lIl>k I1cgotlUhlc 110tcS 1.100.000 660.()O(l 220,000 -
SpcClal /Issl'ssmcnl Public Improvcmcnt 06/011i9% 4.70·67()O;, 2.000.000 605.00() 140.0(1(1 
SpceJaI Asscssmcnl I'ublle Improvement 061011200(J ).20-().25~/o 1.12).000 610.000 60.000 ­
Special Assessment I'llhlic: Imp 200 I OSlo 1/100 I .j )0·6 00% 500.0(J() 25.0(10 

TOlal spcclal ,\S>,CSS111Cl1l .1625.0()O 225,()()() -..ClllCapiwll.casc energy sa\ ing equipment 05111!2002 :) R7{;/(I 70Y.066 27L'J40 57,0.)3-_.........- ---_.. 

Totall'apltal leases 7(Jl)'()66 271.940 57.0-1] 


Tolal gnvrl'nmrntaJ activities $ -
IIIIiIBusiness-IvIIC activities: 

Waler llnJ Sewer Re\enuc 12/01/1<)<)5 .j "D·6 50'!" '); 50()().OOO Ijl(UIIIII 345.()()O 
MIll

Waler c1llJ Sc\\cr Re\ CI1UC IOiOIIIl)97 45()-h.37)(!,'\l 5.0110.000 2,09001JlI 30S.(J00 

Waler and Sewer Rcvenue 06f(1I !2()(lO ) {)(l-6 lS(~';) 2.(J(JO.(J()(J 1.I0S,(JOli IIO.OliO ..Totul ICVCI1lIC honds Ic.OOO.OO() 4.705,000 71>O,O()() 

Water and SC\\l'r pnllllissory loan I 2iOIII 9lJ8 ..f 70-6 12.5 1 
)·u ),3(J(J.O(l(J ,.:1 IO,U(JlI 2J5,()()O ... 

Walcr anu scwer promissory loan 11/291200 I :2 30-5 1251~~) ].100.000 2.II)S.OIlIl IIS.OU() 
Water Hnd st\vcr promissory loan 07!O ICOO] ..2 60- 3 15(~1) 7,59(),()OO Ij90.()()(J no,ooo 
Watcr and sewer promissory loan O.<i241200-l IOO-)iJ(J% 2,'lO(J 000 2.0~O,(J0() 130.00() .. 
EPA Clean Walcr State Revolvlllg FllnJ Loan 10/0 1/20 10 175%1 841 I 225 __.._.-..._ .....,_.. 22,Ou2-_. 1.6(1U23.._ 


Towl promissory loans 27..l0 I ,22) 10.913)23 1.2S2,OU2 
 .. 
ClliCapilullcase energy saving equipmenl 0512112002 5.870;6 I,OS3,! 81 397.03 I 84717 
CitlCapitallease energy saving equipment OS/2112002 5.R7t~;) 3.460 1.304 278 

To(al capital leases 1,056,641 398.335 -
IIiIIII 

Total bllsilJcs~-typc aclivities $ -
IIiIIII

136 ... 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

-... 	 This part of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and 
required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health. 

- Contents 

Financial trends information ........................................................................................ . 141 - 148
... 
These schedules conlain Irend il7/ilnllolion 10 help Ihe reada lIndasland 
how Ihe Cily '.I' ./I'noncio! pa/imllonce and wel/-heing have changed ova -
lime.-

Revenue capacity information ..................................................................................... . 149 - 152
.. 
These schedules conlain in/imllolioll 10 help Ihe reoda ussess Ihe Cily's 
/1/0.1'1 signi/icollilocol nll'enlle SOllr("£', Ihe jJropall' lu.\".-	 Debt capacity infonnation ........................................................................................... .. 153-157 
... 
These schedules preselll ill/orl7lalion 10 help Ihe reuLia assess Ihe 
uflilrdohilil), o{lhe Cill' ',I currelll lel'cls o{ oulslLlnding dehl and Ihe - ('ily's ohililY 10 issue addilional dehl ill Ihe/ilillre.- Demographic and economic information ..................................................................... . 158 - 159
-
TI,ese schedllles of/"r t/ell/ogrul)hic Uiul econolllic indieulors 10 hell) Ihe 

-
.. reuc/er Ill7iferslund Ihe em'irollll/el7l \I'ilhin lrhich II,e gOl'en7llIel7l's 

.lillollcial aclivilies loke IJluce. 

- ()perati ng in tornlation .................................................................................................. . 160 - 162 

These schedules ('(mluin serrice ul7d ill/i'oslmclure dolo 10 help Ihe 
rewler 1I1Idersiulld hOII' Ihe illji)mlUliol7 in llie gO],('1'l7l1lelll's ./I'llu/lciol -- rel)()rl relules 10 Ihe se/Tices Ihe gOl'enlll7el7l pr()\'ii/es ul7d Ihe oclivilies 
il per/orll/s . 
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SCHEDULE 25 
CITY OF 1\1ERIDIAN, 1\1ISSISSIPPI 


~et A"eb h~ Component 

La,t T'cn I'iscal Years 


(accrual basis of accounting) 

(anHlunh e\:[lresscd in thou,ands) 


Fiscal Year 

Governmental activities: 
Imestcd in ca[lital asset>. net or related dcht 

Restricted 
lJ nrestri cted 

2003 

S ·B.6·D 

2.214 
6.496 

$ 

2004 

45.SR6 

1.561 
6.156 

2005 

$ 45.997 

4.009 

5.635 

S 

2006 

4R.025 

5.626 
7.197 

$ 

2007 

4R.799 

6.881 
3.920 

$ 

2008 

50.692 

5.810 
4.076 

$ 

2009 

75A92 

6A29 
3.700 

$ 

2010 

nR23 

6.9R5 
4.19R 

2011 

$ 74.694 

6.519 
2.324 

2012 

$ 75.049 

5.755 
4.605 

Total governmental activities net asset~ $ 52.353 $ 53.303 S 55.641 $ 60.R4R S 59.600 $ 60.57R S R5.621 S 84.006 $ 83.537 $ 85A09 

+:. 

Business-type activities: 
Invested in capital assets. net or related deht 

Restricted 
1 Jnreslriclcd 

'I) 22.0S:? 

3.362 
1.7S9 

'I) 20.624 

3.949 

1A54 

S 19.003 

4A67 
3.779 

'I) 19.534 

4'<)21 

3A40 

$ IR.938 

7.509 
3.354 

$ 17.684 

7.717 

3.167 

$ 19.326 

5A41 
2.253 

S 19.767 

4.354 

2.682 

$ 19.795 

5.151 

3.825 

$ 20.841 

5.657 
4,538 

Total business-type activities net assets $ 27.173 S 26'<)27 $ 27.249 $ 26.995 $ 29.801 $ 28.568 $ 27,020 $ 26.803 $ 2R.771 $ 31.036 

Primary government: 

Invested in capital aso-eb. net ol'rclatcLi debt 

Restricted 
t]nrestricted 

$ 6S.695 
5.S7h 

R.255 

S 66.210 
5.510 
7.610 

$ hS.OOO 
8.476 
9AI4 

S 67.S59 
9.647 

10.637 

$ 67.737 
14.390 

7.274 

$ h8,376 
13.527 

7.243 

$ 94.818 

11.870 
5.953 

$ 92.590 

11.339 

6.880 

$ 94A89 

11.670 
6,149 

$ 95.890 
IIAI2 
9.143 

Total primary government net llssets S 79.526 S 79.33U $ R:?R90 $ 87.843 S 89AO I $ 89.146 $112.641 $110.R09 $112.308 $116A45 

Source: Audit Reports - Statemcnt of \ct ,\sseb 



SUIEm! ...: 2(, (Page I o(2) 

on OF \tERIllIMI;, MISSISSIPPI 

Chunges ill Net Assets 


Last Ten F !seal Years 


(dccruul baSIS of acc{)unring) 


(amounts e,pressed in thousands) 


Fiscal Year 
2003 200-1 2005 2006 1!!!!2 2008 2009 2010 Mill 2012 

Ewen,. ­
(io\'~rllmel1tal acti\ ltit:s 

G~II~ral gO\ c.:! nlll~1l1 "i,::t"(J :',711 \ q7R S 0.209 j, 6,526 S 7.211 ".017 s 8.825 s 6.907 $ 6,871 

Public ,afetl 111.S6·1 11.')81 1·1.87' 16.07·1 1·1.976 15.1)17 1(>,iiIO 16.238 15.528 15584 

Pllhl ie \\arks 6.::::;0 h.77u o.65IJ 6.738 6,893 6.567 7,4~O 8,187 7,877 7,671 

Culture and reneatiol1 1.800 LY6~ 1.1)15 :::.008 2.156 2)QO 1.307 2.284 J,2~3 2,051 

Economic de\,dopmc111 8' ~ 69 12 lOS 98 13,1 2.976 124 169 

Other 50 12, 82 6<1 6 42 19 24 
Interest onlong-Ienn 1.3'10 1.6B:" H3 1.333 1,918 un 1,615 ',071 ',061 1,908 

Total gOlernmental acth ities e'lwn"s '"l~ ()li5 __ 2g.Jl)5 10.96<1 32519 3::!.63 I 33.097 ~0.592 35.739 34,281 

BOS1I1CSS-typc aeu\ ItlC~ 
~/at~r and s\!\\cr 1(J.7.12 10.381 10.879 11577 12,218 12,078 11,557 12,161 11,742 1,857 
\\.'aste culkctlon and dl~po~al ::!,5~9 1.'739 2.2.1,1 2332 2.380 2,101 1,526 2,466 1,825 1,876 

Golf course ~33 ..C3 407 }\)4 400 ·'119 418 397 446 466 
UniOn Slatton 
Concessions 

251 

·18 

284 
39 

307 
41 

335 

37 
323 

26 
::;31,::; 388 

29 
35~ 

29 
364 

28 
353 

27 

Total business-type actil ities ",Je"ses .~ 1:1.866 13.868 15.J~7 15.261 15.918 15.'105 14.405 14,579 
.p, 
t-> Total primftr~ goye-rnment e\Jlen~e~ S 3Q7U I ·E26 I S 47.224 ~ S ~8,358 $ 50.371 S 55.997 S 50.144 ~ 

I)rogram revenue, 
Go\('rnmental actl\ Itll":" 

Charges lor services. 
General t!o\·\~rnn)(>nt gn 681 781< 1.063 587 581 355 501 412 

Puhlic satel) 853 .1~8 :::'484 2,856 1,730 1590 I,no 1.037 1,039 

Culture and recreallon 157 135 162 164 180 173 376 182 327 

Opt:ratlng granl!< alld conjnb1l1101l~ 817 1.168 3,257 3,229 2.194 1.379 ,572 1,6~5 60S 515 
Capital grants and contributions '80 6UJ 581 2.169 250 500 1.497 3,699 1,65'1 

Tota' governmental acthitie, 
program re,'(>oues 2.Y14 '.744 6.91:" 9.107 6,051 4,429 5.41 J 7,195 3,982 4.105 

Busill~ss~typc a('\I\'1116 

Charges fol' sen Ices 

Water and sewer 93102 i.).7l)~ 10.902 11.036 10,907 ILI:?5 11)15 12,145 12...104 13.187 

\Vasle collectIon and dtsposal .5"9 I.:"XO 1.509 1.51>4 I,S60 1.570 1.611 1,870 1,828 1,871 

GolfcoUl~e 367 346 31U 3~3 314 318 284 271 249 296 

Station '18 103 14 103 80 84 81 64 

C onccsslons -+~ 41 ..D 36 35 43 44 46 42 35 

Operatlllg grams and J I~ " Capltal grants and contnhutiol1~ 1.6·1·\ 494 NO 87 65 328 1,314 

Total busines'-type acthitie' 
I)rogram re, enue' IU~3 , 121 13590 13,680 13,799 14..116 16,767 

Totall}rimar~' gon.''flUuC'nt 

I}rogra m re~ enues S 1~.3Y7 <; 15.865 S 2 1..1'IX S ::'2.697 S 19,731 !21!2 ~ 1'l.212 S '1.711 S 20.8n 

(( 'oI1!Inued) 

I. I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 1 I I I I. I I I I I I I I I 
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SCHEOlU: 26 (Page 2 of2) 
CITY or :\IEIUOIA " \IISSISSIPPI 


Change, III Net ASSd, 


Lust Tell c,s<:al Yealrs 

(accrual basIs or accollnlillgJ 


""pressed III thousands) 

Fiscal Year 

-I'­
l"J 

"'ot (.xpensel/revenue 
Go.... ernlllcillal aeU\ HIC'~ 

I3uslI\e~s~t) Pl' a..:o\ Illl,.'~ 

Total pdmar~' governm(,.'Ot 

net «('),lwnw)/re\'enue 

Gent'ral reyenlle~ imd nth!.',.. changc"'" 11(.'1 ilsseb. 
(lo\'~rnI11..:nlal ill.'tl\ I[lc~ 

T[l\CS 

ra\('s 

Sales ta\e, 
Fr,J!lI:i1hc 
COlllHY rond la'\-:~ 

\10hH rll-:lttl\c' 

gmnh <lllcll,:nilH lhHlhllh 

t !llrc:-;trlc!\:,d lI'\\..:~tmC'nl e;lrIl1ng:-. 

Sp~CI<IlltCIll 

rf ansl'cr~ 
Pll)PL'rt: 

Tutf)1 go\ernmental acti\,jtit"~ gener:.ll 

revenues and olher fhiln~e" in m:1 .p.......·h 

Busine::;s-t}- pc (ltli\'ltIe, 

Pmp('n! fa\cS 

Unre~trlcled (ll\estll1cnl ~anlln!!' 
C[ r.;:msiers 

Total busint'ss-t~'pe ,lIcti,'iti{'s ~t.'flcral 

n'\'cnue~ and oCher ('h~lI1g,es in net a~ ...eh 

Total prirnilr~ I;O\ernment gt"nt"l-al 

rC'CIlUC!;I and othl'l' dUln~t'~ in nct 41SSt'r .. 

Change in \(.( :\sst"f~ 
(im,crnment;ll ,lCtn iTle;. 

!-!u";'ln":';;:-i: pc <!CIi\ Hl(';':' 

Total l)rimal"~ 2.0\ l'rrlllll..'nt 

change in net a~set .. 

6.ill!J. 

S 1:':',781) 

~ 1:'5"J(,{) 

9.fCR 
IIX1<) 

"'l\J~ 

8(,8 
1'1 

{)X 

It') 

Mill:! 

(l·L():;1 

~) 

L8·t~ 

RI' 
I') 

() 

(, 

.\0~ 

~L~: :::5,~~O 1 

270 
L~~4) 

RS~ 

II' 
(V):; ) 

81{ Il()O---, ---, 

S ::5,:57 2(),201 

2.14 

~q) 

., 950 

,II{' I 

11')51 

~ 

~ 

S 

~ 

Ic-LOj4) 

!(U62 

!~" 15 
I (!'J(I 

-98 

(d 
~':;9 

y;~ 

26JK? 

l5.2 
(.175 ) 

51 

2(,,899 

_)_~'X 

I,~.22 

2()06 

~ (23A4:') 
__1_1,_085 

SIIl,121 

~J81 
')71 

19 
6() 

56,~ 

~53 

:::~U~~R 

975 

:10 
\y5}') 

s:n 

S 29A80 

5.~O() 

(~~3 ) 

L953 

2007 

(2(L580) 
~) 

10,098 
l.l,,~74 

1.587 
JIW 

6' 
,1'1 

1,_182) 

:::.'i33_1 

81 

480 
':;.18:: 

-~ 

~ 

(1.2{8) 

2.R06 

S U58 

200S 

(28_668) 

12,015) 

$ !-'OJ,S;;) 

$ 10,826 

14,166 

1,(P2 
19 

'0 
628 

':;]'7 

~9J)46 

810 
299 
O~7) 

78::: 

S 30,428 

$ 978 

( Ll1~) 

;;;"'~l.;(2;,;;5;:;.51 

) 

$ 

_ 

$ 

S 

1!.!!!2. 

(29JI{O) 

(2,119) 

(3 LI 591 

IV)85 
13 74-1 

2,741 
1 191 

19 

I,l(, 

~_-;_.'i~9 

5~g 

:;·1.08.1 

999 

(51SI 

571 

5{,651 

~5_0-l3 

11.548) 

],A95 

$ 

_ 

l!l.!.Q 

(0,\2971 
(989) 

~J 

14,17" 
11502 
2J),I' 

1221 
I'! 
7, 

1% 

1151) 

31,682 

50(, 

II { 

L~1 

7i2 

(1.615) 
i 217) 

ll&fU 

£!!!l 

$ (31.757) 

527 

1-l,722 
1.,,708 

2.529 
982 

19 

19~ 

(9:l1J) 

31.288 

{00 

105 
___9'-'.)..:.6 

1.'1,11 

(469)S 

_~I~.9~6~R 

,;;.........:1.:.,~:.,;9;:;.9 

2012 

S 130.176) 

~ 

$ (27,9881 

1 {,439 
14,082 

:::,462 
781 

20 
75 

LB 

66 

:12.048 

103 
___16_6) 

1,872 

2,165 

~ 

Source: Alldll RC-porb - Stall"mr.::l1t (1[, lOt:, 



SCHEDULE 27 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source ­
Last Ten Fiscal Years -(accrual basis of accounting) 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 

County Motor ­
Fiscal Property Sales Franchise Road Fuel -.. 
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Total 

2003 $ 9,828 $ 1 1,839 $ 1.794 $ 868 $ 19 $ 24,348 MIl. 

2004 10,107 12,179 1,845 815 19 24,965 
2005 10,162 12,715 1,990 798 19 25,684 -2006 10,12 I 14,170 2,381 971 19 27,662 
2007 10,098 13,574 2.587 1,040 19 27,318 
2008 10,826 14,166 2,568 1.042 19 28,621 
2009 12,085 13,744 2.744 1.194 19 29,786 
2010 14, I 73 13,502 2.647 1.224 19 31.565 
2011 14.722 13,708 2.529 982 19 31,960 ­

Mil2012 14.439 14.082 2.462 781 20 31, 784 

Mil 

..
Source: Audit Reports - Statement of Activities 

-. 

.. 

.. 
-
..
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SCHEDULE 28 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last 'I en Fiscal Years 
accrual basis 

(amounts expressed in 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

General fund: 
Nonspendablc S 70 $ 86 $ 90 S 99 S 1297 $ 1,297 $ 1.469 $ 1,454 $ 1,571 $ 
Committed 100 486 515 339 220 151 2 

930 795 655 1,069 141 742 677 LOll 1,204 1,93\ 
6,099 5.638 5,618 6.433 --2494 

Total general fund $ 7.099 $ 7.091 $ 6.483 $ 7.469 $ 8.677 $ 8.172 $ 6.760 $ 8.369 $ 9.359 $ 11.021 
VI""" 

All other governmental funds: 
Nonspendable $ - $ - $ - $ 1,198 $ S - S - $ S - S 
Restricted 14,474 7.269 5.842 15,278 14,947 11,544 \6,857 12,992 II,l94 13,457 
Committed 347 344 345 
Assigned 16 16 16 16 17 16 12 24 16 30 

Total all other 
governmental funds $ 14.-+90 $ 16.492 $14.964 SlL560 $16.869 $ J 3.363 S 1 1.554 $ 13.832 

Source: Audit Reports - Gon::rnmcnwl l'Ullds Balance Sheel 

Note: Fiscal years 2003 through 2010 have been reclassified with the of GASB Statement 54 in fiscal year 20 II. 



SCHEDULE 29 !I)age 1 of2} 
CITY OF MERJl)IA"i, 'IISSISSIPPI 


Chanl!l:s in Fund Balam;es of (io\ ernmental Funds 

Last ren Fisea I Years 


(modi tled accrual basis of accounting) 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Fiscal Year 
2003 200 .. 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

..,. 
0' 

Re\'enue~: 

Taxes 
Franchise 
Licenses and permits 
Intergo\ernmental 
Charges I(lr sen ices 
Fines and t(lrfeilllfL'S 
Special assessments 
Payments in I ieu of taxes 
Local contributions 
Investment earnings 
I nterest costs and damages 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 
Other 
Capital outJa) 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 
Bond issuance costs 

Ii; 22.380 
1.79-1 

225 
976 
137 
853 
120 
100 
189 
148 
84 

651 

17.658 

4.885 
10.576 
3.541 
1.750 

85 
51 

2'()83 

3.346 
1.261 

$ 22.9-1·1 
1.8-15 

298 
1.613 

1..J4 
1.148 

132 
86 

123 
176 
94 

471 

29.174 

5.342 
IUOO 
3.817 
1.884 

169 
102 

8.855 

3.440 
1.705 

$ 23.534 
1.990 

302 
3.7-1(, 

135 
2.16-1 

96 
83 

155 
159 

95 
499 

33.058 

5.440 
14.767 
3.956 
1.963 

411 
127 

4.519 

3'()59 

U06 

$ 25.121 
2.381 

305 
4.913 

162 
1.-184 

79 
80 

555 
564 

91 
758 

37.493 

5.843 
16.420 
4.223 
2.017 

105 
268 

4.647 

1.356 
1.354 

186 

$ 2-1.562 
2.587 

373 
2.203 

164 
1.855 

75 
77 

307 
1.131 

92 
234 

34.660 

6.033 
15.684 
4.425 
2.065 

98 
150 

1.772 

3.019 
1.736 

$ 25.889 
2.568 

386 
1.514 

180 
1.730 

86 
66 

434 
628 

99 
302 

33.882 

6.760 
14.731 
4.146 
2.484 

134 
56 

5.868 

3.467 
1.790 

36 

$ 26.859 
2.744 

256 
1.951 

173 
1.580 

67 
67 
98 

146 
117 
389 

34.447 

6.836 
16.117 
4.671 
2.639 

118 
42 

5.860 

3.062 
1.555 

165 

$ 28.716 
2.647 

301 
3.888 

375 
1.219 

74 
68 

461 
196 
132 
85 

38.162 

7.634 
14.732 
4.441 
3.406 
3.201 

II 
6.071 

3.498 
1.982 

304 

$29.113 
2.529 

271 
2.257 

182 
1.037 

72 
152 
55 

193 
169 
268 

36.298 

6.711 
15.144 
4.422 
2.673 

158 
19 

5.657 

3.687 
2.043 

240 

$ 29.196 
2.462 

251 
1.513 

157 
1.039 

74 
156 

123 
141 
301 

35.413 

6,190 
15.352 
4.195 
2.186 

231 
23 

2.221 

3.682 
1.995 

110 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of rnenucs 
over (under) expenditures 

27.933 

(175) (7.650) 

35.758 ---- ­

(2.700) 

37.429 

64 

36.()68 

( 1.4(8) 

39.472 -11.065 

(6.618) 

45.280 40.754 

(4.456) 

36.185 

(772) 

rCol7lil1l1ed) 
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SCHEDlLE 29 Wage 2 of 2) 
CITY OF \I ERIf)I~:\. 'IISSISSII)PI 

in Fund Balances or Governmental Funds 

nSl len Fiscal Years 
(ll111ditkd acuual hasis of 

(amount,; c\\)f(?ssed in thousands) 

Fiscal Year 
2003 2004 200S 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Olher linancing sources (uses): 
Transters in 

Transfcrs out 
Honds i,Nled 

\kgotiahk notes i,;sucJ 

leases 

Premium Oil n.:runding bonds isslled 
Principal payments on refun,kd honds 

S I.·OR 
(984) 

L~JJOO 

$ 2.634 
(1.264) 

67 

S 1.929 
( L576) 

312 

$ 1.%0 
(1.629) 
10.000 

1.22:­

'(; 4.5:1 I 
(7.733) 
3.6()(J 

690 

'(; 9.599 
(9.283) 

1.000 

365 

1> 10.304 
(9.789) 
10.000 

$ 6.017 
(6.197) 
4.300 
1.100 

$ 2.448 
(3..447) 
8.160 

7 
(3.895) 

$ 2.236 
(2.234) 
4.500 

2]0 

~ 
-J 

Total other linandng 

source (uses) J:U5~ Li7 1.681 IO.S]5 5.220 3.637 ·U12 

:\et change in fund balance $ 13.179 '(; (7.213) S CU)35) $ IIAlO $ (320) $ (3.909) $ 3.897 $ (1.898) $ (819) $ 3.940 

Debt scni('c as a percentage 
of noncapital expenditures 18)0" ]-1 So" ~ 160% I '3 7~'il 1-15°., 165%~ ~ ~ 

SourCl': Audn Report· Governmental Funds Sta\~l11enl Dr i{e\cnuc,. Expenditures and Change, in rund Balances 

~ 
-< 
~ 

<.0 

", ~:::~(';::, 
c:;,) r1'l 

CJ 
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SCHEDULE 30 


CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
General Government Tax Revenues by Source 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 

County Motor 
Fiscal Property Sales Franchise Road Fuel 

Year Tax ITax Tax Tax Tax 

2003 $ 9,653 $ 11,840 $ 1,794 $ 868 $ 19 $ 
2004 9,930 12,180 1,845 815 19 
2005 10.002 12,715 1,990 798 19 
2006 9,961 14.170 2,381 971 19 
2007 9,929 13,574 2,587 1,040 19 
2008 10.662 14,166 2,568 1,042 19 
2009 11,902 13,744 2,744 1,194 19 
2010 13,971 13,502 2,647 1,224 19 
2011 14,404 13,708 2,529 982 19 
2012 14.313 14,082 2,462 781 20 

Source: 	 Audit Report - Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

ISales tax is not an "own-source revenue" of the City. Sales taxes are levied by the 
State of Mississippi at a rate of seven percent. The State of Mississippi levies and 
collects all sales taxes in the state and then rem its I 8.5 percent of the 7 percent lev ied 
to each city based on their portion of sales taxes generated from sales within their 
city. Principal payer information is not currently made available to the cities. 

24, I 74 
24,789 
25,524 
27,502 
27,149 
28,457 
29,603 
31.363 
31,642 
31,658 
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SCHEDULE 31 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Assessed Value Estimated Actual Value ofTaxablc Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(amollnts expressed in thousands) 


Fiscal Less: Total Total Estimated Assessed 
Year Real Property Personal Property Tax Exempt Taxable Direct Actual Value as a 

Ended Residential Commercial Motor Real Assessed Tax Taxable Percentage of 
September 30, Property Property Vehicles Other Property Value Rate Value Actual Value 

2003 $ 59.118 $ 120.764 $ 34.521 $ 40.667 $ 2.138 $ 252,932 50.08 $ 1,608,689 15.72% 
2004 58.359 122.919 34.883 40.798 2.719 254,240 50.08 1.629.911 15.60% 
2005 58.138 125.003 34.466 40.651 2.911 255.347 50.08 1.645.053 15.52%-"" 

-0 	
2006 58.094 122.836 36.032 44.443 2.530 258.875 50.08 1.657.502 15.62% 
2007 59.190 I 24'()49 34.299 43.847 2.527 258.858 50.08 1.662.921 15.57% 
2008 60.176 123.601 44.701 3.139 257.691 53.08 1 190 15.55% 
2009 76.714 I 32.355 49.060 5.131 307.530 50.84 2,002.797 15.36% 
2010 87.063 170.953 31.722 56.584 4.120 342.202 50.84 2,234,043 15.32% 
2011 87.731 171.11 I 30.877 53.247 3.973 338.993 50.84 2.221,081 15.26% 
2012 86.209 171.700 31.118 53.388 6.845 335,570 50.84 2.195,722 15.28% 

Source: Lauderdale County real and personal ta!\ rolls. 

Note: 	 During 2008. all property in Lauderdale County was reappraised and resulted in an increase in assessed values. 


During 2009. the City annexed approximately 9 square miles into the City which resulted in an increase in assessed values. 




CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
$ 1.000 of assessed value) 

SCHEDULE 32 

Fiscal 
Year 

Operating 
Millage 

City of Meridian 
Special 

Debt Revenue Solid 
Service Pension Waste 
MiIIllge Millage Millage 

Total 
City 

Millage 

Lauderdale County 

Debt Total 
Operating Service County 

Millage Millage Millage 

Overlaeeing Rates 
Meridian Separate School District 

Total 
Debt School 

Operating Service District 
Millage Millage Millage 

Meridian 
Community 

College 
Total 

Milla!?,e 

V1 
0 

2003 
2004 
::,W05 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

26.39 
26.39 
26.19 
25.56 
26.51 
29.23 
25.71 
29.92 
29.65 
28.72 

12.09 
12.20 
12.10 
12.47 
11.17 
11.19 
12.38 
11.88 
12.41 
13.24 

7.60 
7.49 
7.79 
8.05 
8.40 
8.66 
8.75 
7.44 
7.48 
7.93 

4.00 
4.00 
4.00 
4.00 
4.00 
4.00 
4.00 
1.60 

1.30 
0.95 

50.08 
50.08 
50.08 
50.08 
50.08 
53.08 
50.84 
50.84 
50.84 
50.84 

34.87 
35.80 
38.08 
38.36 
39.27 
40.66 
39.66 
39.36 

41.66 
41.66 

8.19 
6.70 
6.71 
7.09 
8.40 
7.78 

10.95 
7.47 
9.12 
9.12 

43.06 
42.50 
44.79 
45.45 
47.67 
48.44 
50.61 
46.83 

50.78 
50.78 

52.50 
54.38 
54.38 
53.30 
54.00 
54.40 
49.89 
51.42 
54.84 
54.84 

2.87 
0.92 
2.99 
3.35 
1.87 
6.68 
6.09 
5.81 
5.67 
5.47 

55.37 
55.30 
57.37 
56.65 
55.87 
61.08 
55.98 
57.23 
60.51 
60.31 

7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 
7.00 

7.00 
7.00 

155.51 
154.88 
159.24 
159.18 
160.62 
169.60 
164.43 
161.90 
169.13 
168.93 

Source: Office ofthe Cit) Clerk. 


Note: The above table represents rates which are one-thousandth of a dollar. 
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.. .. SCHEDlJLE 33 
CITY OF ivIERIDIAN, VlISSISSIPPI ... 

.. Principal Property Taxpayers 
Current and Nine Years Ago 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 

.. 
2012 2003 

Percentage of Percent:tge of 
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed... 

Taxpayer Yulue RlHik Vulue Value Rank Yulue ... rv1 ississippi Power Company $ 12,585 3.75% S 17,027 6.80% .. 
Bonita Lakes Mall/Bonita .. 
 .., ')'O/.
Properties, Inc.lCBL 8517 2 2.54%) 8,080 3 .}._.J ~ 0 

.. 
 Wal-Mart Supercenlers 7,959 :> 2.37% 4,214 4 1.68% 


.. 

AT&T 5,344 4 1.59% 9.336 2 3.73% 


Anderson Regional Medical Center 5,337 <; 1.59% 2.541 6 1.02% 


Merid ian Crossroads 3,678 6 1.10%... .. 
 A very Dennison Corporation ],5()8 7 1.05% 


Peavey Electronics Corporation 2.581 8 (J.77% 1,992 7 0.80'!') 


Nortolk Southern Railway Company 2.478 9 0.74% 1.867 8 0.75'% 


Atmos Energy Corporation 2.269 10 0.68% 


Meridian Hlv1A/Riley Ilospital 4,182 5 1.67%
... 
.. Ru~h Health Systems 1,348 <) 054% 

.. S{)\\ashce Investment ct 111 1,063 10 

Totals 1618% $ 51.650-.. 
.. 
.. Source: Lauderdale County real and personal property tax rolls . 

.. 

.. 
151 

-




Fiscal Year Total Tax 
Ended Levy for 

Septem ber 30, Fiscal Year 

2003 $ 12.362 
2004 12.569 
2005 12.613v. 

t.J 	
2006 12,962 

2007 12.850 
2008 13.570 
2009 15.634 
2010 16.960 
2011 16.956 
2012 16.938 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Collected within the 

Fiscal Year of the Levy 


Percentage Collections in 
Amount of Lev)' Subsequent Years 

$ 12.104 97.91% $ 175 
12.393 98.60% 167 
12.482 98.96% 70 
12.835 99.02% 42 
12.745 99.18% 30 
13.505 99.52% 54 
15.462 98.90% 76 
16.824 99.20% 43 
16,766 98.88% 71 
16.540 97.65% 

SCHEDULE 34 


Total Collections to Date 
Percentage 

Amount of Levv 

$ 99.33% 
12,560 99.93% 
1 99.52% 
12,877 99.34% 
1 99.42% 
13,559 99.92% 
1 99.39% 
16,867 99.45% 
16,837 
16.540 97.65% 

Source: Schedule Reconciling Original Ad Valorem Tax Rolls to Fund Collections. 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I. I I I I I I I I I I I I. I I I I I. I 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, ;\lISSISSIPPI 

Ratio~ or Outstanding Debt b) T) pe 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(amount<, in thousands. e'\cept per amount) 

GO\ rrnm~ntal Activities Business-Tn.!e Activities 

Fiscal 

Year 

(;encral 

Obligation 

Bonds 

Special 

Assessment 

Bonds 

Limited 

Obligation 

Bonds 

Special 

Obligation 

BOlld~ 

Certificates 

of 

I'llrticipation 

Re\oh'in!! 

Loan 

Taxllble 

:\egotiable 

:\otes 

Capital 

Leases 

Water & 

Sewer 

Re\enue 

Bonds 

Water& 

Sewu 

PI'omissory 

"otes 

Capital 

Leases 

Total 

Primar) 

Government 

Percentage 

of Personal 

Income I 
Per 

Capital 

u. 
t-J 

20()3 

200-1 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
20lU 

20 II 
2()12 

$ 13.790 
1 L770 
9.955 

19.070 
21.-115 
20.985 
19~55) 

n.7"O 
31.l70 
33.510 

S -1.-150 
-1.2-10 
-I'()20 

3.780 
3.520 
3.2-15 
2~955 

2.()'iO 

L720 
I 

S 5.':100 
5230 
-1.5-15 
3.765 
2.960 
2.13:'\ 
L770 
5.680 

'i. IOn 
-l.-Ii'i 

I! H)OO 
6.790 
6.565 
6.335 
6.1)85 
'.105 
5.:i()5 

:'.2Xn 
-I.9X:i 
-1.670 

i, 130 $ 877 
815 
756 
69-1 
631 
566 
SOO 
-I.1I 
359 
-167 

'Ii 

1.225 
1.005 

77-1 
329 

1.372 
8XO 
(160 

'Ii 766 
688 
9-15 
785 

1.309 
1.283 

887 
SOO 
326 
272 

$ 23.370 
14.750 
13.655 
12,490 

I L260 
9.955 
8,575 
6,090 
5,420 
-1,705 

S I\A06 
18.045 
17.mQ 

16.088 
153)51 
13.973 
12.858 
11.697 
10.520 
10.913 

5) 1.00-1 
986 
913 
837 
lN6 
785 
673 
55-1 
479 
398 

S 65.693 
63.31-1 
58,.138 
65Jl69 
MJ32 
59,536 
63,867 
62.(lO-l 
6(),959 

61585 

6.88% 
6.46% 
5.70% 
600% 
5.73% 
-1.95% 
5.51% 
5.06% 
4.74% 
4.79% 

'Ii 1.621 
1.581 
1,468 
1.646 
L620 
1.504 
1,609 
L507 
1.478 
1.493 

"'ote: Dt:lai!..;; l\:garJlng th.: Clt\ \ nllt~landlr);;: ",h.'bl C~Ul bl..' IlHl1ld 1l11h;,; not(' .... to [11-: fiI1<Hli.,:i{iI ~lilL.:m~!l!~ 

IS~t:' lhl.' ~('I'h,'dllk ot"(l(,I1'h)gwplilC allJ L(oniJl11lC ~latl"'lIC~ I(H pcf'.onaJ iIlC()111~ and pnpu!atloT1 data 



SCHEDULE 36 


CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Ratios of Genera I Obligation Bonded Debt Outstanding 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capital amount) 


Percentage of 

Less: Amounts Estimated 

General Available in Actual Taxable 

Fiscal Obligation Debt Service Value t of 

Year Bonds Fund Total Property 

2003 $ 13,790 $ 1,023 $ 12,767 0.79% 


2004 11,770 957 10,813 0.66% 


2005 9,955 345 9,610 0.58% 


2006 19,070 473 18,597 1.12% 


2007 21,415 554 20,861 1.25% 


2008 20,985 589 20,396 1.23% 


2009 29,555 720 28,835 1.44% 


2010 27,750 695 27,055 1.21% 


31.170 855 30,315 1.36%20 " 
2012 33,520 899 32.621 1.49% 

Note: 	 Detail, regarding the Cit) 's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the linall(:ial 
statements. 

.. .. 

... 
Per 

C 	 . 1aptta­

$ 	 315 
270 

241 
470 IIIIi 

527 
515 

726 ..658 


735 

791 
 ... 

ISee the Schedule ol";\ssessed Value and I':stimated ;\dual Value of Taxable Propert) for prnpert) value 
data. 

2See the Schedule ul" Demographic and ICCllnomie Statistics ItH' population data. ... 

... 


...
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SCHEDULE 37 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 


As of September 30, 2012 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Governmental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes: County 

Debt repaid with property taxes: Scllool 

Subtotal, overhlpping debt 

City of Meridian direct debt 

Total direct ~md overlapping debt 

Debt 

Outstanding 

Estimated 

Percentage 

Applicable l 

Estimated 

Share of 

Overlapping 

Debt 

$ 42.790 49.70% $ 21 

92.12% 

60.675 37.743 

100.00% 

124 192 

Source: 	 City Clerk. Meridian Separate School District and Chancery Clerk . 

Note: 	 Overlapping governments are those that coincide. at least in part. with the geographic 
boundaries or the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those 
overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City. This 
process recognizes that. \vhen considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt 
the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. 
Ilo\\ever. thi" does not impl) that every taxpayer is a resident. and theretore responsible lor 
repaying the debt. of each overlapping government. 

lThe percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. 
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the county's taxable assessed value 
that is within the City'S boundaries and dividing it by the cOllnty's total taxable value . 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
expressed in thousands) 

SCHEDULE 38 

2003 2004 2005 2006 
Fiscal year 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Debt Limit S 38,261 $ 38,544 S 18.719 $ 19.211 $ 19,208 $ 39,125 $ 46,899 $ 51.948 $ 51,445 $ 51,362 

Total net debt applicable to limit 12,767 10,811 9.610 18.597 20.861 20,396 28,835 27,055 30,315 32,621 

Legal debt margin $ 25,494 $ 27.731 S 29.129 $ 20.614 $ 18,347 $ 18,729 $ 18,064 $ 24,893 $ 21,130 $ 18,741 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit ~ '\1/1% ,\712% ~ ~ 

VI 
0\ Legal Debt :\1argin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2012: 

Assessed value 
Add back: exempt real property 

$ 335,570 
6,845 

Total assessed value 

Debt limit (1 SlY" of total assessed 

Debt 

Less: Amount set aside for 
repayment debt 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

(899) 

32,621 

$ 18,741 

Note: 
debt 

the City'S outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 15 percent oftotal assessed property value. By law, the general 
to the limitation may be offset by amounts set aside for repaying genera] obligation bonds. 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I, I I. I. I I I. I I I I. I 
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SCHEDULE 39 

CITY OF MERIDIAN. MISSISSIPPI 

Pledged-Revenue Bond Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

expressed in thousands) 

Water & Sewer Less: Net 
Fiscal Charges Operating Available Debt Service 

Year and Other Expenses I Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage 

2003 $ 9.002 $ 5..+35 $ 3.567 $ 1.555 $ 1,655 $ 3,210 111.12% 
2004 9.798 5.269 4.529 1.845 IA95 3340 135.60% 
2005 10.902 5.690 5.212 2.020 1.516 3.536 147.40% 
2006 11.036 6.416 4.620 2.125 1.399 131.10% 
2007 10.907 7.016 3.891 2.230 1.298 3.528 0.29% 

'Jl 2008 11.125 6.976 4.149 2.3-1-5 1.193 3.538 17.27% 
-.l 

2009 11.715 7.510 -1-.205 2A55 1.072 3.527 119.22% 
2010 12.1.+5 7.239 -1-.906 3.605 963 4.568 107.40% 
201 12..+0.+ 7.017 5387 1.840 789 2,629 204.91% 
2012 13.187 7.5'+'+ 5.643 1.930 706 214.07% 

Source: Audit Reports - Stllleillellt oj' Rl'WIlUl's. L:xpenses and ill Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds. 

Note: In ~()()~. the 1994 "akr and Sc\\cr l{C\ CIlLIl'S B'lnds \\crc dcl".:ascd in the amount of $6.980.000. 

Dclai Is thc '5 outstanding. dd)tean be found ill thc noll's to the linaneial statcmcllts. 

cxpellses cxclush e and al11orti/atioll expense. 

fE 
-< 

1"0..;) 

<..0 
,,-, r;~::~ 
c;:" .. 

C:;:) fi/o 



SCHEDULE 40 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Personal 
Income Per 

(amounts Capita 
Fiscal expressed in Personal Median School Unemployment,
Year Population I thousandsr Income2 Age3 Enrollment~ Rate5 

2003 40.538 S 2.496.375 $ 23.564 34.6 6.619 8.4% 
2004 40.057 2.588,611 24.459 35.5 6.305 8.1% 
2005 39,795 2.721,308 25,785 35.6 6.449 8.6% 
2006 39.541 2,894,287 27.415 35.9 6,722 7.8% 
2007 39,596 3,002.310 28,287 36.5 6,630 8.6% 
2008 39.572 3.245.373 30.379 36.6 6,612 9.1% 

'Jl 
00 	 2009 39,695 3.140,476 29.221 36.2 6,461 12.7% 

2010 41.148 3.196.119 29.768 35.7 6,418 14.7% 
2011 41,258 3.345.080 31.156 34.9 6,250 14.9% 

2012 41.258 3.345,080 3 l,l 56 34.8 6,209 12.6% 

Sources: 	 lU.S. Census Bureau. Population Division website at www.census.gov. 
lU.S. Depal1ment of Commerce. Bureau of Economic Analysis website at www.bea.gov. 

Per capita personal income estimates refelct county population estimates available as of April 2012. 
jU.S. Census Bureau. 2007-2011 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates at www.census.gov. 
~Meridian Separate School District. 
~Mississippi Department of Employment Security "Annual Labor Force Report" at www.mdes.ms.gov. 

Note: 	 Education level in years offonnal schooling is not included on this schedule because the information 
was not available. 

I I I I I I I I I I. I I I I I 1 1 1 I I I I I I. I. I 1 I. I I I 1 
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 SCHEDULE 41 
CITV OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Principal Employers 

Current and Nine Years Ago 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 
-
2012 2003 -

Percentage of Percentage of 
Total City Total City -

Taxpayer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Emt1loyment 

Rush Foundation Hospital 2,610 17.69% I, I 23 3 7.79% 

East Mississippi State Hospital I,SOO 2 10.17% U50 2 7.98%-
Anderson Regional Medical Center 1.275 3 8.64% 1,065 4 7.39%-
Meridian Public Schools 1,050 4 7.12% 987 .5 6.85%-
Walmart Supen:enters 698 .5 4.73% 


Peavey Electronics Corporation 600 6 4.07% 1,700 11.80%
-
City of Meridian 570 7 3.86%) 508 8 3,53~/o 

Mississippi Air National Guard 420 8 2.85% 389 10 2.70%--
 Alliance Health Center .185 <) 2.61%) 

--
Meridian Community College 

;vleridian HMAiRiley Hosrital 

327 10 1.22~/~ 471 

700 

<) 

6 

3.27% 

4.1)6% 

-
Winn Dixie Food Stores 

Totals 9.'115 6, 96(~;) 

589 

8,682 

7 

Source: East Missis,irpi Business Develorment Corporation 

---
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SCHEDULE 42 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Full-time Eguivalent Em~lo~ees as of Se~tember 30, 

Function 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

0\ 
0 

General government 
Public safety: 

Police: 
Officers 
Civilians 

Fire: 
Firefighters and officers 
Civilians 

Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Culture and recreation 
Water 
Sewer 
Golfcourse 
Union Station 
Municipal Garage 
Homeland Security 
Community Development 

49 

94 
15 

105 
II 
69 

42 
48 
44 

5 
I 

13 

21 

47 

96 
17 

106 
10 
68 
2 

45 
51 
45 
5 
2 

15 
2 

21 

46 

104 
18 

103 
9 

70 

52 
52 
44 

3 
2 

15 
6 

20 

47 

106 
18 

104 
10 
75 

1 
45 
50 
44 
3 
2 

14 
7 

21 

49 

112 
14 

106 
8 

70 

49 
44 
45 

3 
2 

11 
6 

20 

54 

105 
18 

98 
9 

72 

49 
50 
45 

3 
2 

14 
5 

19 

49 

111 
19 

101 
9 

72 

1 
49 
48 
46 
3 
2 

14 
5 

19 

50 

108 
15 

108 
11 
60 

56 
47 
44 
5 
2 

13 
5 

19 

46 

109 
15 

112 
10 
65 

I 
42 
48 
42 
7 
2 

11 
4 

16 

59 

108 
19 

114 
II 
57 

1 
42 
48 
39 
8 
2 

II 
5 

16 

Totals 518 532 545 547 540 544 548 544 530 540 

Source: City'S payroll department. 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 
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SCHEDULE 43 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Operating Indicators by Function 

Last Tell Fiscal '{ears 



SCHEDULE 44 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Asset Statistics by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

f'iscal Year 

20U3 200""' 2005 2006 21107 20118 2009 21110 2011 2012 
Function 

I'ublic safety: 

Police: 

Stations I I I I 

Patrol Units 36 37 ~3 71 67 77 73 84 84 88 
Fire stations 7 7 7 7 7 8 8 8 7 8 

Hij!;h\\ays and streets: 

Streets (miles) 306.01 306.15 306.83 306.83 306.83 307.50 330.35 330.35 330.35 330.35 

Streetlights 6.273 6.187 6.298 6.351 6.400 6.411 6.570 6.589 6.603 6,639 

T raftic signals 118 118 120 111 121 120 120 120 117 117 

Culture and recreation: 

01 
Parks acreage 383 443 443 443 443 443 443 443 443 443 

N Parks 16 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 

S\\ imming pools 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Tennis COllrts 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 16 
..,

Community ccntcrs 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 .) 3 

Softball/Baseball tields 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 
Soccer fie Ids 12 12 12 11 12 12 14 14 14 14 

Golf course I I I I I 1 

Water: 

Water mains (miles) 426 ~26 428 428 428 418 429 429 430 430 

Fire h: drants 3.793 3.802 3.820 3~832 2.105 2.113 2.131 2.136 2.141 2.180 

Maximum dail; capacit: 

(thousands or !lallons) I·uno I-UOO I-UOO 14500 I·UOO 14.500 14.500 14.500 14.500 13.952 

Sewer: 
sewers (m i1es) 442 -141 -142 4-11 444 444 4-15 445 445 445 

Storm se\\ers (miles) 100 100 200 200 200 215 225 225 225 225 

13.000 1-1.000 1-1.000 14.(lOO 1~.OOO 14.000 14.000 14.000 14.000 14.000Maximum dai" trealmen! capaci!\ 

Source: Variolls 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 1 I I I I I. I I I I 
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 

Thc single audit section contains audit reports on internal control and compliance matters 
resulting from the single audit procedures conducted in accordance with the Single Audit Act 
and Otlice of Management and Budget Circular A-133. An additional report on compliance with 
state law required by thc Oflice of State Auditor is also presented. 

MAY 2 9 2013 
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SCHEDl:LE 45 (Page I of 2) 
CITY OF \IERJI)IAl\, '\IISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of r:--:pendllures of Federal Awards 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30.2012 

Federal G.-anto.-lPass-through 
G.-antor/Prognlm Title 

Federal 
CFD~ 

"umber 

Pnss-th rough 

Grantor's "umberl 
Federal Contract 

Prognlm or 
A\vard 
,\moun( 

Accrued 

(I)eferredl 

Revenue 
9/3012011 

Fede.-al 
Receipts 

Fede.-al Sha.-e 

Disbu.-sementsl 
E~penditures 

Accrued 

(Defe.-red) 

Revenue 
9/3012012 

Cum ulative 

Federal 
Receipts 

CUlilulati\'e 

Fede.-al Sha.-e 

Disbursements 
Expenditures 

Fund 

Il::lli: 

C. S. Department of Agriculture 

DITcel program -
;'\; ReS Gnllagher ('I ee\.. C;~lbllll1 Rcpc·ur ..l1 Illghlalld l\nl III 9::; ()8-...J.-C~·1 2-::-19 lu2.0(JU Capital proJect 

L S. Depanmenf of Housing & C.-han Development 
Pass-through \'11S~IS<:;IPPl De\ el('pmenl \ut)ll)nl~ 

Kmnna CDBG BOl11ta L8\..e~ Dam Reh!lb 
CDRC; SanllJT) So;.'\\,,-'r Reh.lblilt;lIlll1l 

1-1 :::28 

I~ ::8 
Totall".S. Depa.-tment of Housing & l rban De\'elopnH.'nt 

R·II1)-::,~-nl-G/ 

11~-;'-I()-2.5~·pr·lll 

I ,7~(1 litH) 

(~(I(.l, ()( I( I 

:;77A9() 

38.1 q2 

~ 15.688 

365.237 

5~ll. 748 

895.985 

1:;0.49...J. 

561.808 

69~)02 

1...J.~.753 

69.~52 

21 ~.005 

1.643.~...J.7 

530,7...J.8 

2.173_995 

1.786.000 
600.000 

2,386,000 

SpeCial revenue 

Enterpnse fund 

l . S. Department of .Jus[ice 

Dm"cl program -

ARR·\-COPS 111rtng Recu\cn Pl0gr..l111 1(,71 () 2(Jt!C)RK\\ \:05ll"i .58 1.t)81 , ~8.866 48.866 89,4";9 138.3...J.5 SpecmJ revenue 

0\ 
~ 

P3ss.-!hrough \'IlS,)]<;SI]lPI Department of rubllc \(lfL'l~ 

\IS SlOP \ loicncc \~dlllSl \\ lllllCll P'-,'gr ..l1 l 1 
\15 SlOP \"10!ence .-\g[llll~1 \\ nmen Plogr81l1 

Bulletproof \ est::; Partncf'ihlP 

Total pass-through programs 

I (, ):-;~ 

I h 588 

I(~N17 

II)~L=::I 

I I SL::c I 
13,-\·:(J()US-HI)()1 

:;-;.~(':" 

,-;:;9...J.1) 

1-;.1'5 

.1 S~ 

1.18~ 

1.1 S~ 
7.477 
'.]]9 

11.000 

7.-.177 

:.339 

9.816 

3.S~3 

3.8~3 

'.8~~ 

7.~77 

'.339 

13.659 

SpeCial revenue 

SpeCIal revenue 

Specml re\'enue 

JAG Program cluster 

Direct programs 

Ed\\·;ud B:vme \lemorwl JustIce --\SSlstom..:e 

fdward Bymt: r-demof1al Jusllce ,--\sslstance 

Fd\\arJ Ryme ~lem{ln<ll .Iu~!lce ,-\~Slst311Ce 

ARR--\-\lendI3n Cm .I0Illt RecO\er:. --\c\ L\Ci 

Tom1 J --\G Program clustt:r 

IC,7<8 

16738 
1()/:iS 

I C, SIJ~ 

201 "1_D.I_ W, -11058 
:0IO-D.I-H\-1I58'l 

=(lll-D.l-R'\-~(/)l) 

~UOC)-SR-RC)-17...J.-I 

5~,()~(J 

·.\':',61 ~ 

r'_CJI-I 

:57.1 ~I 

2...J..:'95 

17.166 

41,461 

1.,95 
~q.~57 

...J.~.91...J. 

I :.il47 

95.7D 

29.651 
15.06: 

:5.748 
1~.0...J.7 

82.508 

28.256 

'8,256 

22.603 

39,357 

4:.91~ 

257.I...J.l 

361.015 

50.859 
39.357 

42.914 
257.141 

390.271 

Special revenue 

SpeCIal revenue 

SpeCIal revenue 

Specm1 revenue 

Total l:.S. Depa.-tment of Justice ~ 1,461 96.897 142.374 86.938 455.337 541,275 

l~. S. Depa.-tment of Transponation 
Pass-through MISSISSIppI Depanment of Public Safct~ 

Occupant Protection Seatbelr Enforcement 

Occupant Protection Sentbelt Enforccment 

\1endI31l DL'I Enforcement Program 

Mendlall DL:! Enforcement Program 

Pass-through ~vlS Depamnem of TranspOmHl011 

ARRA-26th "'"e Viaduct S~lt'e[\' l;pgrade~ 

Central Busmess Olstnct & l...J.th St Signal L'pgr~ld('s 

Safe RoU[es to School ProJect 

Replacement of Bndges 011 ~5th A\e [I!ld ...J.llth Sr 

Milling, Le\elmg, Jnd O\erb~ of \'3nLllls CJt~ Ruutes 

V.':ldenmg LS H\\\ II 8U i.l! ~'lalone Ranch Road 

Total l'.S. Depa.-tmenC ofT.-anspo.-l.ltion 

2() 600 

20600 

:0 (,00 

:0607 

20205 
~u ~05 

2U ~05 

20 ~05 

2u 205 

2U 2U5 

I I-OP-22~-1 

I :-OP-:::-I 
I I·T.\·2::-1 
12-T:\-:22-1 

STP-SI61-00(0011 
STP-O,211-0U( 0:: 1 

SR Sp-o, :O-OO(02~) 
STP·O':O-OO(O:51 
STP-ll,:U-00(0:6) 
STP·9...J.57-()U(()U2 ) 

15.000 
15.000 

100.000 
95.000 

912.797 

1.075.550 

ROO.b~6 

5...J.l),6(JU 

l.llS~.56U 

~5().()UU 

4.647 

1:.579 

5.238 

4,.946 

17.7.5...J. 

S~.164 

4.647 

1:.579 

52.~39 

16.~40 

43.946 

4~.504 

172A55 

2.611 

:;0.944 

11.202 

3.750 

775.6~6 

82...J..131 

:.611 

(: 1,3951 

: 1.50~ 

733.1~': 

735.84~ 

14,033 

71.707 

52,339 

693.961 
1.033334 

~:.504 

1.907.878 

14,033 

2.611 

71.707 

30.944 

693.961 
1.033.334 

21.504 

775.626 

~,643.720 

SpeCIal revenue 

Specml revenue 

SpeCIal revenue 

SpeCIal revenue 

Capital project 

CapItal project 

CapItal proJect 

Capital proJect 

CapItal proJect 

((UIl/ll/lled) 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I. I I I I I I I. I I I l I 
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SCHElHU: 45 (Page 2 0/"2) 

('In OF \IERII>I.\,. 'IISSISSII'PI 
SdKduic ofl,penditurc:, of'l.:d.:ral A\\ards 

For the FIScal Y car Lndc:d '>cptcmber 30. 2012 

.\n'rlll'd ,\ccrut'd ('umuhtti\'C 

f«'dl'nl' t'lI:...-chnmgh Progt';ilH Of i I)ef<n'<d) Federal Share (Deferred, Cumulathe Federal Share 
F'Nt'fill GrantorlP~,~s-throLl2h CFO~ (;rantnr's ~umher/ "'," 11 r£l R('\i..'llue Federal DisbursPIUt'nts/ Rew..'llue Fedt'nll I}isbursements Fund 

GnlOtor/Program Title '\umber Fedc-ral ("ontr'act Amuunt 913012011 Rt'{'eints E,,[H;·nditur<.-S 9130/2012 Receipts [xl!endltures Il:i!ll 

l • S. En"ironmentul Proh.,{,tiHrl .\!!enc, 
[)1!'("Cl pi O~r3m\ 

Sl"lllth I ndu::>.lf1 (I I Pad·, ~lud\ c.(> :I(:! :,\P.. 'lr",W'::l}{)~ I '~l).,+(H J PI) -PI.?-)I QS.:'19(-, 1.. ::':5~.tI(J 1 I.J -l.q .. ~OO Enrerpl1SC fund 

\\':It('[ P,llllillOll ClIntW[ Rl'\(lh [(\:111 run" I)() 4~~ SRI, C2SIJSIS·()1 S 1 I I,{,{!S.:t~l \,()O:\,~~~ l .. ()l)~ .. ~~~ Enterpn:,e 

Total r.S. E",'ironnH.'l1wl Proh'('1iUI1 .\gen('~ ,-;u.ssn :;,11 ),098 ~,OE.;o .. ll J C)5 .. )'lh ::': .. 8«::: .. 127 

. S. Ih'partl1l('n( flfth-alth ~Hld "timan S,,'n i\'t:\ 

Pass-through \ 11~<;IS'>l]lPI S,tDll' Dt;>p:ll1nwm (if! !(,Glth 
Fire ..\cJdcm" ('.'11 "Id~ ,}:;ql)1 :R()ll.wU()c)llJ::':~ 11 ""IJ(J 7t.)() :OU SpecIal rei ~nlle 

t. S. Department of Uumt.·land Spt'urin 

0-+4 E\I\\ -::::010-FO-tllj:=;"~\"'i :-t l,7U: 3(1,70: :56.39~ Spccwi re\'t"nlH'; 

~5ll-\1S-DI{ 15'.{1::1 Spel,:131 re\t.'llue 
\-.ll'BI-llR·\I:; ] ~.S-+') :.8·19 1:.849 SpeCH)! rei el1ue 
lnCC251-: Special revenuer:;-, 
~i.)( C::,;,;'J> Spc('lal revenue 

SpeCIal re\"enue 
Sp't'clal 'revenue 

"-SH\':::=;SR Spct'lal revenue 

Spcl'lal re\ cnue 
,'II"nSR Spenal 
1J!·h'::5~R Spt'~'!al re\,enue 

Ilnn1C'llllld SI..'ClIrll\ \ .. 1\ F'l'l.:llll\L' Pn)k'I.:11~11) '1' ()(;"r \1 SpCI,,'lJl 1e\ enue 
HDJl1l'ialld ~Ct'Llfll\ .. [\eo.: r}roiC'vO('ll Tt.llllll1 07 (I!.'-.... l:il'IIS:,SI Spenal revenuece 

H Dm..:lumi S';I,.'lll U\ l'11.tI1J ~e.!I ""I & RI..':)L lI~' I: dlnm~ Spe(ld~ reH'flue 
Ilnmdalld Sel'lIII1\ PPF q.- 1)'7'-; -I')I1,:5,T '.l-;')5 Speclai rt'Hnue 

C)- IJ:'J 1 !.IIIS::;S I 711 :n.. ~5~ ~13n 7,1 Spt'clal re\emh? 
,.-...,,-;0; 1)-:' ..""; 1nll'S'::"'~ 1: 2,7:3 SpecHll rt\ enue" 

C), 1)(1'IUlld:::- ~11H~'::5:;':T SPl'CIUI r('ienllc 
()~-:; L')11 ...... ,; ..;~ I ,)11(: 1:'.5'::(1 : 1 '"'!Q6 (.., .. ~7(; ::1 :;Q6 ~1 .. 7t)(1 Spec131 revenue 

11,,1111t'lanu St.:'I..'l.ll1t\ ~~I;1l \1,.'" ()7, \ I (JI-IS:'S r \1(11) 9 .. ()0: ') .. i)6:' SpeeJal re\ ('IlUc 

,..... SH~~)S I I'" II :('1 (1::':(1) 1-l0",67 I ,~9,,:: t 1 SpeCial rc\ cnlle 
I\QI!")'::':;ST \)1)11 II ,-l~-ll 11.181 I .5:;,7~(') 52 .. :-1: Spel'lal rc\-ellue 

III IS::" 1 SpeCIal r~\ el1ue 
10!lS:::;,s l!){l,.{i'!(1 7S330 2zU75 ISI,IUlI) 1()O,OOU 4~:(l)UO Spec-wI re\ ('nue 
lll~~";~ I (XU!(1I,) L5 .. u13 ::':KOJ9 1:"+::':6 15.. tdJ ::':8.0:19 Speclal re\enue 

\1l)HS'::58'1 2-1,:N< ::,C68 ~ 1.:68 SpeCIal rt'\ enue 

SpeCial revenue 

rutal r.S.l}epartment uf Homeland S{>ellrit~ I Su .. .)S,-; l5:l,7-14 1.. 755.2·t() 

Total federal limIneial assistance S 85''.n6 $ 3.-U-Un9 $ 3,9':;:: .. 8 L:! ~ U-lO"G9 ~ ~ 

l.."pt.'lh.:l!lure-. ~11l' ;\Pp~i.1\ ed h\ lh\.' ftlllJmg h~H.e 

th ....' amount of dl<;burc;l'nh.'llh :,tl\l'~('ql1('nlh ~Ipprmt;;'d 

\,',¥ Ih,,.' i/(.\(!/lIt'dll1'l!1g f/I)!L'I til ;III' >,-'/).'JII/,' ilf <!I/h'ihlillti'c)\ oJ !,,,/,,,.,r/ .III llr./\ 

i-111111L'l.lllJ "ICCHfI(\ 

Hn1Tll+mJ SI......'Ul'l!\ 

HOlTIt"Jand Fon.'(' f"unJs 
11\)mcland 

')7 n7-, 



.. 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards .. 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 

.. 
(1) Basis of Presentation .. 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant .. 
activity of the City of Meridian, Mississippi and is presented on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audils of Stales, Local Governments, and Non­
Profit Organizations. .. 

.. 


.. 


.. 
.. 


.. 
.. .. .. .. .. .. 
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.. 

.. 

.. CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 


For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 
... 
... .. There were no prior year findings or questioned costs . 

-
.. .. 
-.. .. 
... 


.. 


.. 
-
.. 

-
.. 
... 
.. 
-
-
-
-
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.. 

.. .. 

.. 
BREAZEALE, St\I.JNDERS l!i O'NEIL, LTD•.. ACCOUNTANTS .. 

.. .. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

.. 
 BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS 


-.. The Honorable Mayor Cheri M. Barry and 
Honorable Members of the City Council 

City of Meridian, Mississippi: -

.. 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Meridian, Mississippi ("City") as of and for 
the year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 26, 2013. We did not audit the .. financial statements of the Meridian Airport Authority, which represent 99.97 percent, 100 
percent, and 98.58 percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets, and operating revenues of the.. component units column. Those statements were audited by other auditors. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 

.. 
 and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States . 


.. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal .. 

.. 
 control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose 

of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 


.. 
 opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, 

we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial 

reporting . .. 

.. 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
.. management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 

prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 


.. 
 deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 

possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, 

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. - RECEIVED 

.. MAY 2 9 2013 
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The Honorable Mayor Cheri M. Barry and 
Honorable Members of the City Council 

City of Meridian, Mississippi: 
Page two 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or 
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Com pliance and Other Matters .. 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, .. 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated 
April 26, 2013. .. 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, Honorable 
Members of the City Council, management, the State Auditor's Office, federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

.. 
Jackson, Mississippi 
April 26, 2013 .. 

-

-
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--- BREAZEALE, SAUNDERS lit O'NEIL LTD. 
.. 	 ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH.. REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL 
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL.. OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

The Honorable Mayor Cheri M. Barry and 

Honorable Members of the City Council 


City of Meridian, Mississippi -.. 
Compliance 

.. We have audited City of Meridian, Mississippi's ("City") compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-I33 Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the City'S major federal programs for the year 
ended September 30,2012. The City'S major federal programs are identified in the summary of 

.. 

.. auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs . 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each .. of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City'S management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

The City's financial statements include the operations of the Meridian Airport Authority 
("MAA"), which expended $4,009,036 in federal awards; and the Meridian Transportation .. 	 Commission ("MTC"), which expended $135,508 in federal awards; both of which are not 
included in the schedule during the year ended September 30, 2012. Our audit described below 
did not include the operations of MAA because they engaged other auditors to perform an audit 
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. -
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted .. .. in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. .. Those standards and OMB Circular A-i33 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements .. referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance .. .. with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit 
does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements . .. 

.. 
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The Honorable Mayor Cheri M. Barry and 
Honorable Members of the City Council 

City of Meridian, Mississippi: 
Page two 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended September 30, 2012. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal 
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with OMB Circular A-l33, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material 
weakness. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, Honorable 
Members of the City Council, management, the State Auditor's Office, federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 

other than these specified parties. • ')tt.Y. ¢. 
Jackson, Mississippi ~..s.....4. ! tl.'. · 
April 26, 2013 
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CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 


Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Y car Ended September 30, 2012 


Section I - Summary of Audit Results 

FifllWcitll Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: .. 
Jnternal control over financial reporting: .. .. 
 • Material weaknesses identified? 


.. 
 • Reportable conditions identified that are not 

considered to be material weaknesses? .. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? .. Fetleral AW(lrd.~' .. 

I nternal control over major programs: .. 
• Material weaknesses identi fied? .. 
• Reportable conditions identitied that are not.. considered to be matcrinl weaknesses'? 

.. Type of auditors' report issued on complinnce tor 
ll1~jor programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported.. in accordance with section 51 O(a) of Circular A-133? 

.. 

.. Idelltification of major program tested: 

CFDA Nllmber .. 14.:228 

:20.:205 

66.:202 


.. 
66.458 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A 
and type B programs: .. 
Auditee determined to be a low-risk auditee? .. 

-
173-

Unqualified 

No 

None reported 


No 


No 

None reported 


Unqualified 


No 


Name olFetieral Program or Cilister 

COllllllunity lkvclopmcnt BlocI-.. Grants 
fl ighway Planning and Construction 
South I ndustrial Park Study 
Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund 

$ 300,000 

Yes 

( 'olllilll/cd 



--
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-
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-
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Page 2 of2 
CITY OF MERIDIAN, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012 


Section II - Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

No significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, or instances of noncompliance related to the 
financial statements were reported. 

Section III - Findings and Questioned Costs - Federal Award Programs 

No audit findings required to be reported by section 51 O(a) of Circular A-133 were reported. -

-


-
-
-
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BREAZEALE, SMJNDERS & O'NEIL LTD.... 
... 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR REQUIREMENTS 

The Honorable Mayor Cheri M. Barry and 
Honorable Members of the City Council .. City of Meridian, Mississippi 

.. We have audited the financial statements of the governmental aCtivIties, the business~type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
remaining fund information of the City of Meridian, Mississippi ("City") as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and 
have issued our report thereon dated April 26, 2013. We did not audit the financial statements of 
the Meridian Airport Authority, which represent 99.97 percent, 100 percent, and 98.58 percent, 
respectively, of the assets, net assets, and operating revenues of the component units column. ... 	 Those financial statements were audited by other auditors. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard<;, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. 

As required by 	the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State ... 
Auditor, we have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and 
regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was ... 
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion . ... 
The results of those procedures and our audit of the City'S basic financial statements disclosed .. no material instances of noncompliance with state laws and regulations . 

This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the Honorable Mayor, Honorable 
Members of the City Council, management, the State Auditor's Office and appropriate federal ... 
awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 

... April 26, 2013 

... 
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specified parties. 

Jackson, Mississippi 

http:www.bsolld.com
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